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* * * * *

(Starting tinme of the hearing: 9:00 a.m)
* * * * *

JUDGE CLARK: Ckay. Good norning. It is
now nine o' clock so let's go on the record.

Today is April 15th of 2024 and the
current tine is nine a.m This proceeding before the
M ssouri Public Service Conm ssion today is being
held in Room 310 of the Governor O fice Building
which is the Conm ssion's headquarters.

The Comm ssion has set aside this tine
today for an evidentiary hearing in In the Matter of
the Petition of Union Electric Conpany doi ng business
as Ameren M ssouri for a Financing O der Authorizing
the Issuance of Securitized Uility Tariff Bonds for
Energy Transition Costs related to Rush |Island Energy
Center. And that is File Nunber EF-2024-021.

My nane's John Clark, I"'mthe regul atory
| aw judge who is presiding over this hearing today.
The M ssouri Public Service Comm ssion is conposed of
five comm ssioners. Qur current chairman is Chair
Kayl a Hahn. W al so have conmm ssi oners Mi da
Col eman, Comm ssi oner Jason Hol sman, Comm ssi oner
d en Kol kneyer and we just had a new conm ssi oner

appoi nted and | don't, off the top of ny head, know
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what his nane is.

MR. KEEVIL: John Mtchell.

JUDCGE CLARK: John Mtchell, M. Keevil is
telling ne. So we have a new conm ssioner that |
have not net yet. The comm ssioners -- | saw Chair
Hahn this norning. The other conm ssioners wll
ei ther conme and go as they please or join by WDbEKX.

COW SSI ONER HOLSMAN:  |' m here, Judge,
Comm ssi oner Holsman, and |'mon nmy way in.

JUDGE CLARK: Thank you very nuch,
Comm ssi oner Hol sman. And Conm ssi oner Hol sman, as
you heard, is on the way into the building, but is
currently joining us online.

At this time I'"'mgo to ask counsel for the
parties to enter their appearance for the record
starting with Aneren M ssouri.

M5. TATRO Wendy Tatro, 1901 Choteau
Avenue, St. Louis, Mssouri, 63103.

MR. LOAERY: And your Honor, Jim Lowery,
al so for Aneren Mssouri, | entered ny appearance on
Fri day.

JUDGE CLARK: Ms. Tatro, M. Lowery, thank
you very much. And just so everybody is aware, while
this was slated to be the first day of the hearing,

we did take one wtness out of order on the 12th of
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April and that is what M. Lowery's referring to.

For the Staff of the Conmm ssion.

MR KEEVIL: Yes. Yes, Judge, appearing
on behalf of the Staff of the Conm ssion, Jeff
Keevil, N cole Mers, and Travis Pringle. Qur address
Is Governor Ofice Building, Suite 800, 200 Madi son
Street, P.O Box 360, Jefferson Cty, Mssouri,
65102.

JUDCGE CLARK: Thank you, M. Keevil. On
behal f of the O fice of the Public Counsel.

MR. WLLIAMS: Thank you. Nathan
Wl lianms, Chief Deputy Public Counsel appearing on
behal f of the O fice of the Public Counsel and the
Public. Qur address is Governor O fice Building,

Suit 650, 200 Madison Street, P.O Box 2230,
Jefferson GCty, Mssouri, 65102.

JUDGE CLARK: Thank you, M. WIllianms. On
behal f of M dwest Energy Consuner's G oup or MECG

MR, OPITZ: Good norning, your Honor. Tim
Qpitz on behal f of MECG

JUDCGE CLARK: Thank you, M. Opitz. On
behal f of M ssouri Industrial Energy Consuners.

M5. PLESCI A: Diana Plescia on behal f of
M EC.

JUDGE CLARK: Thank you, Ms. Plescia. On
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behal f of -- well, Natural Resources defense counsel

has asked to be excused from proceedi ngs and that was
granted. On behal f of AARP.

MR. COFFMAN.  Good norni ng, your Honor.

"' mJohn B. Coffrman, |'m appearing on behal f of AARP
as well as the Consunmers Council of M ssouri.

JUDGE CLARK: And thank you, M. Coffman.
And Sierra Cub had al so requested to be excused from
today' s proceedi ngs and that was granted.

Now, | want to briefly discuss prelimnary
matters. As the first prelimnary matter today it's
nmy understanding from M. Lowery that there were
W tnesses that were inadvertently left off Issue 3;
Is that correct?

MR. LOWNERY: That's correct, your Honor,
| ssue 3A.

JUDGE CLARK: And what wi tnesses are
t hose, sir?

MR. LOVNERY: That's M. Reed who we would
suggest go after M. More on behalf of the Conpany.
The other witness is M. Mchels who al so appears on
3B. M. Mchels' testinony doesn't really deal with
t he substances of the NSR permtting issues per se
and the suggestion that | had nade was he takes the

W tness stand first on 3B maybe for efficiency that
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we just have himcone up on that issue and any

guestions that would hang over on the harmissue from
3A could just be asked then just to nake the hearing
alittle nore efficient.

JUDCGE CLARK: Ckay. Let nme ask. Wre the
ot her parties -- at what point did they cone to be
aware that there were witnesses inadvertently |eft
of f?

MR. LOAERY: It was |ast week when we had

emai | correspondence anong the counsel about this

t opi c.

JUDGE CLARK: Was that on Friday?

MR, LOAERY: | think it was before Friday
but | can't swear. | believe it was either Wdnesday

or Thursday we had correspondence about it.

JUDGE CLARK: Okay. Are there any
obj ections to adding these extra w tnesses?

MR, WLLIAMS: Judge, certainly not. And
It was clear to Public Counsel fromthe tinme of the
filing of the testinony or thereabouts that M. Reed
woul d be testifying on this topic.

MR, KEEVIL: Judge, | just have -- may |
inquire of M. Lowery regarding this issue?

JUDGE CLARK:  You may. |Is your m crophone

on?
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MR, KEEVIL: Yes. But |I'mnot sitting
cl ose enough to it for it to work. You know ne, |I'm
very soft spoken and quiet. Jim on Mchels, are you
nmovi ng himoff one issue into other issue? Wat was
the thing about he doesn't testify on this issue?

MR, LOAERY: |'mnot noving himoff.
There's a sub issue on 3A that says if there was any
I nprudence, was there any harm and then 3B really
gets into was there any harmon the retirenent versus
retrofit decision. He doesn't really have any
testi nony on 3A about, you know, should we answer NSR
permt, all of the technical issues. | just thought
it mght be nore efficient to just have himtake the
W tness stand once. |t can be done tw ce but | just
t hought it m ght be nore efficient.

And then questions about harmrelated to
any hypothetical -- fromour perspective,
hypot heti cal inprudence can be asked all together at
that time. That was just a suggestion.

JUDGE CLARK: | have no problemwth that.
Are there any objections from Counsel? | hear none.

MR. LOWNERY: Just for conpl eteness, Judge,
OPC al so has a witness that needs to be added to an
I ssue, that's Ms. Chaben (phonetic) on Issue 9. And
I, like M. WIIlianms, knew probably fromthe
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begi nning that she should be on Issue 9 but we just

didn't get it done when we were doing the word
processi ng essentially.

JUDGE CLARK:  And M. WIllianms, is that
after Majors or is that in a different order in that
I ssue?

MR WLLIAVS: | believe after Mjors.

JUDGE CLARK: Ckay. Thank you. As
another matter, MEC s attorney enunil ed and request ed
that MEC be permtted to nake its openi ng statenent
as a mni opening when Issue 17 is heard because that
is MECs only issue this case. Are there any
objections to that? Oay. Then we'll do that at
that tine.

MR, LOAERY: Judge, | don't know if this
m ght still be on your list but just to bring it up.
| had email ed you and the other parties and we had
correspondence with the other parties about this
probably m d | ast week about |ssue 15, the DCE | oan
I ssue | ast week.

JUDGE CLARK: That is on ny list to get

to --
MR. LOAERY: Ckay. Sorry.
JUDGE CLARK: -- in regard to Aneren
M ssouri .
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MR, LOWNERY: Junped the gun on you.

JUDGE CLARK:  No, no, no, no. That is
fine. | nmean, | do not claimto be perfect in any
way, shape, or form So if | forgot sonething please
bring it to ny attention. But that is on ny |ist of
things to deal wth.

Now M. Coffrman, you had a prelimnary
matter you wanted to bring up as well.

MR. COFFMAN:  None other than just that |
may need to | eave the proceeding at certain points.
| may not have an interest in sone of the issues as
the week progresses and wondered if there was -- if
your Honor would desire nme to make a notion to be
excused or otherwwse I'mw lling just to accept the
fact that if I'mnot here |I'mwaiving cross or any
rights | have for not being here at any point during
t he week.

JUDGE CLARK: And that is fine with ne. |
know that the -- your interests are sonewhat nore
limted fromthe larger. So if you wish to be
excused for any portion of this, you may be. |[If you
are not here then | am-- you will of course waive
your right to ask questions in regard to that.

MR. COFFMAN:  Under st ood.

JUDGE CLARK: Al right.
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MR. COFFMAN: Thank you very much. And
M. Linhares, you had a simlar request, | believe,
on behal f of Renew M ssouri .
MR. LI NHARES: Thank you, Judge. | would
make the sanme question as counsel for Consuners
Council. | had planned to nake an openi ng today and

be absent for the rest of the hearing if it's
permtted.

JUDGE CLARK: Ckay. |Is that for Consuners
Council or for Renew or for both?

MR, LINHARES: That's on behalf of Renew
M ssouri .

JUDGE CLARK: Not on Consuners Council ?

MR. LINHARES: No. | was just neking
reference to the fact M. Coffman --

JUDGE CLARK: Oh, | follow. [I'msorry. |
monentarily got confused. That wll be granted under
t he sane circunstances.

MR. LI NHARES: Thank you.

JUDCGE CLARK: And then finally I -- well,
|l et's go ahead, since |I've got Renew up, and address
t he Departnent of Energy Loan issue, which I believe
Is a Renew specific issue. And M. Linhares, --

MR. LI NHARES:. Yes.

JUDGE CLARK:  -- | had a difficult tine
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understanding fromthat. There was not hing about the

way it was worded it just -- it's ny understanding
that the parties have agreed to waive cross on M.
Ownens; is that correct?

MR, LINHARES: Well, | believe sone, nost
of the parties have. There's a couple of parties
t hat have not weighed in there, at least to ny
know edge. And there were a couple of other
W t nesses, Murray and Robi nett, that were also in
that canp on that issue. | believe it's just Issue
15.

JUDGE CLARK: Unh-huh. [Is there anybody
who wants to address that?

MR. LOAERY: | nean, any party that had
testinony in the issue did in fact affirmatively
I ndi cat e anongst counsel that none of us had any
guestions and cross could be waived. And | believe
that under M. Linhares's position statenent they
rai sed the issue. They basically said, |ook, based
on what we now know we don't recommend any further
that you even pursue the DOE option. So there really
isn't an issue | don't think anynore but certainly
the parties don't have cross. And so we thought --
we thought let's just -- we can skip the issue and,

you know, save a little hearing tine. W have 21
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I ssues and we're probably going to need it.

MR, WLLIAMS: Judge, Nathan WIllians for
Publ i ¢ Counsel .

JUDGE CLARK: Go ahead, M. WIIians.

MR WLLIAMS: Qur position was that we
woul d waive cross if the Comm ssion has no questi ons.
W view that it would just stand on the pre-filed
testi nony unl ess the Conm ssioner has questions of
t hese witnesses about this issue.

JUDGE CLARK: | don't believe there are
any questions contenplated at this tine. Are there
any parties who are unwilling to waive cross as to
the issues for Issue 15 which again the issue is
shoul d Aneren M ssouri issue securitized utilitarian
bonds to the U S. Departnent of Energy under the
Energy Infrastructure Reinvestnent Program or issue
the bonds in the customary matter to public
investors. So is there anybody who is not waiving
cross on that? Obviously under the conditions you
indicated. Al right. | see no one.

And that brings ne to the second portion
which M. Lowery had nentioned. |Is this still a live
I ssue for Renew M ssouri. Are you asking to stand on
the testinony or is this an issue that's being

wi t hdrawn? And the reason |'m asking is because the
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email | received it was difficult for ne to

understand in that regard.

MR LINHARES: |'m happy to clarify ny
position here, Judge, and the Conpany or anyone el se
can weigh in. | plan to address this issue in ny
opening to add sone clarification to this issue. |
think it can be an issue for consideration when we're
dealing with securitization in the future, in future
cases. W do not intend to press this issue here in
this case but | do want to address it at least in ny
openi ng and entertain any questions at that tine.

But we do not have any cross around this issue and no
further issue to press there.

JUDGE CLARK: Okay. And | can certainly
understand wanting to keep it for future
securitizations. |Is it sonething you want the
Commi ssion to consider in this case? | nean, if it's
aliveissue it's a live issue.

MR, LINHARES: | believe we should keep it
as a live issue and I'll have a recommendati on ar ound
it.

JUDGE CLARK: Ckay. So it will be a live
I ssue that basically stands on the pre-filed
testi nony?

VR. LI NHARES: Yes, correct.
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JUDCGE CLARK: Ckay. Thank you.

There were sone notions to stri ke back and
forth that were done before this hearing. It is ny
intent to take those notions with the case. Are
there any other prelimnary matters that need to be
addressed by the Conm ssion at this tine?

MR WLLIAMS: Judge, | do have a
guestion, given what you said about the notions to
stri ke because there was sur-surrebuttal associ ated
Wi th one or nore of those notions.

JUDGE CLARK: That is correct.

MR, WLLIAMS: So your intention is not to
rule on the admssibility of the sur-surrebutal until
the end of the case? |'munclear.

JUDCGE CLARK: | amgoing to allowthe
parties to talk about the things in the testinony
that is being questioned but that is going to be
subject to the objections that have been filed. So
ultimately if that testinony is struck it is struck.
And | know that may seem | i ke a rather unusual way of
doing it but that is the way we're going to be doing
it for this.

MR WLLIAMS: Ckay. | just find it a
little awkward on cross-exam nation of

sur -surrebut al .
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JUDGE CLARK: | understand. W' re just

going to have deal with these bunps in the road as we
approach them

MR LOAERY: Well, Judge, if | mght.
Honestly | thought this is probably what you woul d do
so | didn't find it unusual. But | think what you're
saying is the testinony can be offered, it's going to
be maybe provisionally accepted subject to ultimte
ruling on the notions to strike and on the objections
and if you were to sustain the objections to the
sur-surrebuttal then it actually wouldn't cone in at
the end of the day, if you sustain the notions to
strike that testinony will be stricken and those
itens actually would informthe basis of any
Comm ssion decision but inthe interimwe're going to
have testinony and full cross-exam nation on those
I ssues; is that correct?

JUDGE CLARK: That is correct. And you
used the termthat | generally like to use, | did not
use it here, which is provisionally admt and that's
because sone parties sonetines take issue with that.
But that is correct.

MR, LOAERY: Ckay. | just wanted to nmake
sure | understood. Thank you for that clarification.

| had one other -- | don't know -- this is really a
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notion but | guess | just wanted to advise the

Comm ssion of what | intended to. There will be sone
exhibits in cross-examnation that are not part of
the record that we will mark and show the w t ness and
| ay whatever proper foundation, you know, kill a |ot
of trees and have the copies for everybody. There
may be others where the exhibit is a schedul e of
sonebody's testinony or otherwwse in. | did not make
copies of those, | didn't intend to kill any trees on
t hose because they should be available to the

comm ssioners and yourselves through EFIS; is that
okay?

JUDCGE CLARK: That is absolutely correct.
And that is kind of the direction that we've been
shifting is if these things have already been filed
in the case and just have not been admitted or
addressed then, yes.

MR. LOAERY: Thank you.

JUDCGE CLARK: Are there any other
prelimnary matters that need to be taken up at this
time?

MR, KEEVIL: Judge, | don't know that you
need to take it up at this point but | just want to
raise it in case. | believe Friday Ms. Mers

requested that official notice be taken of the
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transcript that has been filed in the record in

several places but not as an exhibit and not as

evi dence and | was wondering -- | was just going to
say, when she said take official notice, |I don't
think Staff would have an objection if you want to
take it as -- you know, if you want a hardcopy of it
or sonething. But since it's already in the record,
that was basically why we sent the official notice of
it. | was wondering if you were going rule on that
today or hold that for the hearing on the exhibit --
excuse me, |Issue 3 or 5 or whatever issue that
prudence issue is?

JUDCGE CLARK: |'m honestly not sure. | am
unsure -- you were tal king about the District Court
transcript, correct?

MR. KEEVIL: Yeah. | believe it was the
transcript of the hearing on March 28th that the
Judge ordered Aneren to file with the PSC.

JUDCGE CLARK: |I'mgoing to defer on that
for the noment. | amnot sure of a nechani sm by
whi ch the Comm ssion could take official notice of a
transcript that is not ours, that is another court.
It has been filed in the case but | don't believe
it's -- it's not part of the record certainly in that

it hasn't been admtted. So |I've been ki nd of
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struggling with that.

MR, WLLIAMS: Judge, Public Counsel has
no objection to its adm ssion.

MR KEEVIL: | think it's certainly
adm ssi bl e, Judge, whether you want to call it
official --

JUDCGE CLARK: Well, adm ssible and taking
notice are two different things.

MR KEEVIL: | was going to say, if that's
your hang up don't let that be your hang up. W'l
go -- however way you want to admt it we'll be fine
with it. W just want it admtted as part of the
evidentiary record.

JUDCGE CLARK: Ckay. Well, then | would
prefer it be offered at sone point.

Al right. Are there any other
prelimnary matters that the Comm ssion needs to take
up at this tinme? And thank you for rem ndi ng ne of
that, M. Keevil, that had slipped ny nenory
nmomentarily.

Al right. I'mgoing to issue two
rem nders right now One is if you have a cell
phone, please be sure it is on silent or vibrate so
it doesn't disturb these proceedings. And the second

one is there's a fair amunt of confidenti al
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information and | expect sone of it to cone up al nost

every day of the hearing. | amnot going to be aware
of what all that is. The attorneys will have a
better awareness of ne and the witnesses wll have a

better awareness of what that is than | do. So if we
| ook Iike we need to go in-canera to address

sonet hing or we're approaching an area where it's
beginning to look like we mght, if sonebody coul d
bring that to ny attention then we can address that
and proceed in-canera, okay?

MR, WLLIAMS: Judge, if | mght. In that
vein, it's come to ny attention that Aneren M ssour|
apparently filed sone materials that it had -- were
part of a federal court proceeding that had been
mar ked confidential in that proceeding but are not
confidential in this one. And | believe Staff has
mar ked sone of its testinony as being -- | believe
probably schedul es and maybe testi nony too as
confidential thinking that it was confidenti al
because it was nmarked confidential in the federal
court proceeding but Areren Mssouri is not treating
it as confidential in this proceeding. | just want
to bring that to the Comm ssion's attention.

JUDGE CLARK: Ckay. When that evidence

cones up, why don't we address that then.
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Now, as | indicated before, we took one

I ssue out of order on the 12th and we had sone m ni
openi ngs that were given in regard to that. But
today is the first day of the full hearing and the
parties have requested to do kind of an overall
openi ng statenent is nmy understanding. And with that
in mnd |'"mgoing to go ahead and proceed with
openi ng statenents. And | believe the first opening
statenent is from Aneren M ssouri .

OPENI NG STATEMENT

MR. LOAERY: (Good norning and may it
pl ease the Commission. M nane is JimLowery and
along with ny col |l eagues Wendy Tatro and Nash Long |
Wil |l be representing Aneren M ssouri in this
securitization docket related to the Rush |Isl and
pl ant .

Before di scussing the issues and evi dence,
sone of themat least, I'"'mnot going to hit all of
them | want to briefly touch on the securitization
statute and a couple of the provisions that apply
specifically to this case. The General Assenbly
enacted the securitization statute Section 393.1700
in 2001. The statute was enacted to expressly
provide to the securitization of costs associ at ed

wth either a retired or a to be retired electric
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generating plant. Asbury was a retired plant when

you decided that plant, Rush Island is a to be
retired plant to be retired by October of this year.

As al so contenplated by the statute there
are three buckets of cost at issue in a case |like
this. The first bucket is energy transition costs,
that's generally the | argest bucket, it holds the
unappreci ated i nvestnment in Rush |Island for exanple.
Second is up front financing cost. And the third are
ongoi ng financing costs. Wat falls within each of
t hese buckets is defined wth sone specificity by the
statute. Only the first two buckets actually affect
the principal amount of the bonds that the Conpany's
asking you to issue.

As between the Staff and the Conpany there
is, inrelative terns, not nmuch daylight between the
amounts that are recommended to include in the

principal to the bonds. The Conpany recommends 514.9

mllion, the Staff recommends 497.5 mllion, about 17
mllion less. And that difference arises fromthree
I Ssues. | ssue 4B on the issues list, |Issue 13 on the

issues list, and the | ast one Issue 9 is apart about
four mllion dollars. And on that one there's not a
di spute about whether those costs should ultinmately

be recovered, the question is should they be included
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in the principal anmount of the bonds in this case or

just be recovered in a rate case. So about 17
mllion out of around 500 mllion. So pretty close
from Staff and Conpany perspective on that.

OPC, by taking a variety of positions,
argues variously that less than 325 mllion should be
securitized on alternatively that none should be
securitized at all. OPC s none at all should be
securitized position, if taken to its |ogical
ext ensi on woul d nean that the General Assenbly
conpletely wasted its tine in 2001 enacting a
securitization statute to apply to retired generating
pl ants because no utility could ever neet the
requi renments of the statute. Such a result would
viol ate basic principals of statutory interpretation.
To conclude that the General Assenbly wasted its tine
when it enacted the statute would lead to
unr easonabl e, absurd, and illogical results and I
think that alone | ays bear the fallacy of OPC s
position on this.

Now, as di scussed when the hearings began
virtually on Friday there is another matter of
controversy in the case, that is relating to Aneren
M ssouri's NSR permtting decisions 15 or 20 years

ago and arising fromclains that have been made
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around its 2021 decision to retire the plant instead

of retrofitting it with hundreds of mllions of
dol lars and perhaps a billion dollars of pollution
control equipnent, in other words scrubbers. |
submt to you that the totality of the record in this
case will denonstrate that Aneren M ssouri acted
prudently when it nade its NSR permtting decisions,
that it acted im-- it acted prudently, pardon ne,
when it nade its decision to retire the plant instead
of retrofitting the plant and that it -- in both
cases its decisions have been in the best interest of
Its custoners.

Now, as for the NSR permtting issues.
It's no secret that in August 2021 the Conpany |ost a
| engthy battle with the US EPA over whether the
Conpany shoul d have sought NSR permits for certain
boi | er conponent replacenent projects done during
mai nt enance outages at Rush Island in 2007 and 2010.
"1l admt discussion of the technical aspects of the
NSR perm tting, you heard quite a bit about that
Friday, you're certainly going to hear nore about it
|'"'msure |later today or tonorrow.

But | want to say now a few things about
the evidence in this case which | think is largely

undi sputed and that | woul d contend overwhel m ng
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shows a fewthings. First that Aneren M ssouri, its

then Illinois affiliates, and the industry as a whol e
prior to and at the tine of the 2007 and 2010 out ages
routinely undertook the same kind of boiler conponent
repl acenent projects and they did so without first
obtaining NSR permts, that's the context at the
tinme,

Second, that none of the projects changed
the unit's maxi num hourly rate of em ssions at
maxi mum |l oad. In other words, did not increase
potential em ssions.

Third, that the M ssouri Departnent of
Nat ural Resources and the experts advi sing Aneren
M ssouri at the tine on NSR matters all believed that
under the M ssouri state inplenentation plan, which
iIs MDNR s regul ati on governing NSR permtting
approved by the EPA and that governs the permtting,

t hat because of the undi sputed fact that potenti al
em ssion woul d not increase an NSR permt was not
needed regardl ess of any other aspect of the rules.
That al one woul d have exenpted the projects.

And the evidence shows that when the
federal court later ruled that Areren M ssouri and
MDONR and the experts were all wong about the |aw the

court relied on facts, data, and case | aw that arose
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after the Rush Island projects were done neani ng

necessarily that the court relied on hindsight which
we all know as a fundanental prem se cannot be a part
of a prudence depreciation.

And | ast but certainly not |east, the
evi dence shows that while the federal court found
that the Conpany was, quote, "unreasonable," end
gquote, for not concluding that the project's increase
in unit availability would thus increase actual
em ssion the Court never found in anyway that the
Conpany's interpretation of the NSR requirenents with
respect to potential em ssions or with respect to the
guestion of routine maintenance and repair, RVRR for
short, were unreasonabl e.

And renenber, as discussed in the hearing
on Friday, an NSR permt is not required if either
there won't be an increase in potential em ssions or
the projects were routine or they won't result in an
actual em ssions increase. |If the Conpany's
under st andi ng of the | aw back then was reasonabl e on
any one of those three points, even if the Conpany
turned out to be wong, and it did, the Court said
t he Conpany was wong, then its decisions not to
obtain permts were reasonable. And since the

district court did not find or even consider the
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guestion of whether the Conpany's understandi ngs

were, knowi ng what it should or should have known at
the tinme, wong it didn't decide the prudence
gquestion. Keep in mnd that even on the actual
em ssi ons question what the district court found when
It was tal king about the Conpany's unreasonabl eness
on that question was that the Conpany's actual
cal cul ati ons of annual em ssions were unreasonabl e.
Those cal cul ati ons were perforned after the fact in
response to the NOB not before the projects were
conduct ed.

And the Court found that the Conm ssion's
-- excuse ne, the Conpany's cal cul ati ons were
unr easonabl e because the Court found that those
cal cul ations did not conport with the tests the Court
adopted seven to ten years later in terns of how the
cal cul ations had to be done. In short, the district
court had to decide and did decide the only question
that was before it was the Conpany right or wong
about the | aw and decided -- when it decided it
didn't need permts.

| f the Conpany was wong, and it was, it
doesn't matter how unreas -- it doesn't matter how
reasonabl e the Conpany was ten years earlier, the NSR

requirenents are a strict liability set of
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requi renments. The Conpany was wong it's liable

under the NSR provisions of the Cean Ar Act but

t hat says not hi ng about whether it was reasonable to
hol d the understandings it did at the tinme which is
the question for this Comm ssion.

So yes, the district court used the word
unr easonabl eness in one sentence of the renedy order
Wi th respect to one aspect of the NSR exceptions,
actual emssions. OPC and Staff want you to abdicate
your responsibility to independently decide the
reasonabl eness of the Conpany's actions based on that
one word in that one sentence which even as to the
actual em ssions question doesn't settle the issue
and it certainly doesn't settle the issue on the
potential em ssions and on the RVMRR question.

Now, to decide the prudence questions that
only you can decide, you nust apply | ong-standi ng
princi pals governing prudence just like you did in
the Asbury case. And if | could put up on the screen
-- | don't know if you can see that very well. But
this is an excerpt fromyour Asbury decision. And
it's basically your statenent of what the prudence
standard is that you -- | hesitate to say you adopted
in the case because it's really just a sunmary of

what the standard has been | think for decades. But
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| think it is a good statenent of it.

Under the standard how things turned out
doesn't matter. Under the standard what we may know
I n hindsight doesn't matter and you can't consider it
I n maki ng a prudence determ nation. Under the
standard you nust ask what did the utility know or
what was reasonably knowable by the utility at the
time. Under the standard the utility's decision
maki ng did not have to be perfect and as you sunmmred
up the requirenents if the decision naking was within
t he bounds there's range of reasonabl e behavior, it's
not a point estimte system |If it was within the
bounds of what a reasonabl e decision nmaker woul d have
done at the tine then the decisions are prudent under
t he applicabl e standard.

Now, in outlining the prudence standard
that I just tal ked about, you cited sone case | aw as
well. And you can't see it very well but it's at the
bottom of the quote. That case | aw does confirm and
val i date the prudence standard that you used but it
al so di scusses about anot her aspect that flows if
I nprudence were found and that is the question of
even if the inprudence is found is there a renedy for
that, should there be a renedy. And what the

standard says is, what the law says is if there's no
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harmto custoners there is no renedy. And | want to

tal k about that a little bit now.

Until rebuttal testinony was filed in this
case, while others, | guess maybe only Staff, had
made noi se about prudence in other cases, and |'m
referring primarily to the Rush Island investigatory
docket the Staff asked you to open in the Conpany's
| ast rate case, especially around the NSR permts
i ssue. No party had actually put a stake in the
ground and cl ai ned that the Conpany had acted
I nprudently in anyway on those issues. And the
evidence will also show that no party had uttered a
peep about the well-publicized and wel | -known
deci sion the Conpany nmade in late 2021 to retire the
pl ant instead of to scrub the plant.

That changed when rebuttal testinony was
filed in this case just a few weeks ago. At that
poi nt OPC was urging the Conm ssion to pernmanently
force a $34 nmillion wite-off based on cl ai ned
I nprudence on those issues and Staff was firing shots
across the Conpany's bow about harmto custoners
arising fromat |east one and perhaps both of those
decisions. And Staff's testinony arguably is a
little inconsistent on this but if you |l ook at M.

Major's testinony what M. Mjors says is the Conpany
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was per se inprudent because they were found to

violate the law. Now that's not the law | would
contend but that's what the Staff's position was.

But the evidence shows that even if hypothetically
there was sone inprudence, and | certainly don't
concede that there was. But hypothetically if there
was, the evidence shows that there is no harmto
cust oners.

Probably can't see that very well either
but it's on Page 26 of M. Mchels' surrebuttal
testinony and it's Table 3 from Page 26. \What t hat
table is showing you that is even if hypothetically
the retirenment versus retrofit decision was inprudent
any such inprudence didn't harmcustoners. If you
take just -- and that's shown by the 24 positive data
points on the chart. The 24 positive data points
represent | ower net present val ue of revenue
requi renment not hi gher net present val ue revenue
retirenent. And if you take just two of them if one
assunes the base, | wll call it the mddle estinmated
costs, for what scrubbers had cost instead of close
the plant and assunes the | oss of the NSR case and
then applies the probability weighted val ues of
carbon the other planning assunptions what the

analysis tells you is that the Conpany's decision to
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retire the plant and not retrofit it |owers revenue

requirenments in that case by 1.452 billion dollars on
a net present val ue revenue requirenent basis. And
even if you assune the | owest estinated scrubber
costs that are in the record that figure is still
$1.147 billion.

| also want to point out that these
figures do account for planned additional supply site
generation that the Conpany intends to install and
ask the Conmi ssion for permssion to install to cover
capacity that would have existed if Rush Island
wasn't retired, and these figures al so account for
the transm ssi on upgrades that are needed to nmake
sure that the transm ssion systemis reliable in the
absence of Rush I sl and.

Now, what about the NSR permtting
decisions? M. Mchels didn't provide a table for
this one but what his testinony shows that if again
you assune hypothetically that the Conpany was
I nprudent when it didn't get the permts back then
and it should have got the permts and scrubbed the
pl ant back at that tinme, even -- if that's so, what
the testinony shows is that the Conpany not getting
the permts and not scrubbing the plant at that tine

on an NPV of revenue requirenent basis actually has
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reduced custoner revenue requirenents by between 531

mllion and $770 m | li on.

And if, let's say, the Conpany decided to
get the permts and scrub the plant and so it was
going to stay open, as the record reflect there are
two different pending EPA regul ations, the good
nei ghbor rule, which | think deals primarily with

nmercury and em ssions that travel fromone state to

anot her, | apologize but I don't know the details
real well, and then there's a greenhouse gas rule
that's been proposed as well. And if the Conpany had

made a different decision and the plant was going to
stay open there is a real risk that we may have to --
m ght have had to invest even nore noney on pollution
control equipnent and if we had to do that the
reduced revenue requirenent based on the decision we
did make is reduced by nore than 1.1 billion on a net
present val ue basi s.

As sinply and as succinctly as | can put
it, the Conpany has been nmaki ng decisions all al ong
that it believed to be in custoners best interest not
to incur unnecessary costs and risks of building
scrubbers at Rush Island and as it turned out from an
econom ¢ standpoint the custoner -- the Conpany was

100 percent right. Custoner revenue requirenents
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have been, are, and will be | ower because of both of

the decisions that the Conpany's nmade over the | ast
15 years or so.

Before | wap up, I'd like to touch on
just two of the other 21 issues in the case, |'m not
going to touch on all 21 or we would be here
obviously all norning. Starting with the Conpany's
pl anni ng.

Staff's testinony indicates, or at |east
it inplies, that there was a |l ack of planning for a
possi bl e | oss of the NSR case and specul ates that had
t he Conpany planned earlier or differently and
sonehow the, quote, current situation the Conpany is
in -- what they nean by that is the Conpany is going
to be tight or sonewhat short on winter capacity in
the near term that that current system Staff says
m ght not exist. They say it m ght not exist, they
don't say it would not exist. To put a blunt point
on the issue, the evidence will show that Staff's
pl anning related clains are conpletely unsupported.

The evidence will show that first in the
2020 I RP the Conpany did plan for exactly what
happened, Conpany planned for an NSR | oss, the
Conpany assuned the plant would retire in 2024 at

that tinme, the Conpany exam ned what its capacity
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needs would be if that happened, and what the

pl anni ng showed is the Conpany woul d not need
addi ti onal dispatchable resources even with Rush

| sl and gone in 2020 -- after 2024 until the early
2040s. Staff didn't criticize the planning, Staff
didn't criticize the conclusions at all.

In its 2007 and 2014 | RPs t he Conpany
simlarly also specifically exam ned scenari os where
Rush Island were to retire in 2024, which is what's
happeni ng, specifically considered if that happened
woul d we need addi tional dispatchable capacity. The
answer was no, we wouldn't need additional capacity
until the late 2030s or the early 2040s. And keep in
m nd that Rush |Island was expected, for planning
purposes, to live to 2039 at the tinme. Again, Staff
didn't claimat the tinme the Conpany didn't consider
the right planning, Staff didn't take issue with the
concl usions that the Conpany reached at all.

Staff also seens to criticize the Conpany
about NSR | oss pl anning around the transm ssion
upgrade, but that criticismtoo falls flat. Aneren
M ssouri has, since as far back as 2011, consistently
accounted for the potential to need to make
transm ssion rates to the systemif Rush |sland

retires.
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Once agal n, not once over that entire -- |

guess it would be 13 year period that |I'mtalking
about, did Staff once express a concern about either
the planning that was done, or planning that wasn't
done at all, nor did Staff, but it does now, suggest

that the Conpany shoul d have perforned transm ssion

upgrades at an earlier point intinme -- they're being
performed right now -- but at an earlier point in
time when Staff, | would contend, specul ates that the

upgrades m ght have cost | ess.

In effect what Staff is saying is,
Conmpany, if you'd plan differently you m ght have
thrown in the towel on the Rush Island litigation a
few years ago, you m ght have cl osed the plant sooner
because you have to close the plant, you have to
announce that you're closing the plant in order to
actually do the upgrades. You m ght have done the
upgr ade sooner and we've had all this inflation in
the last few years and it m ght cost |ess noney,
that's the basic position that they're taking. The
problemw th that position is that that would have
been a very bad decision for custoners. Rush Island,
when it was operating normally, produced fairly
significant positive margins for the Conpany and for

-- actually for custoners. Basically all those
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mar gi ns woul d end up flow ng back to custoners when

you have fairly frequent rate classes and you have a
fuel adjustnent cl ause.

The evidence in this case shows that
closing the plant earlier and doing the transm ssion
upgrades earlier, even if theoretically it m ght have
been cheaper -- and we don't concede that it would
have. But even if it would have been, that the
savi ngs that m ght have existed are about seven tines
| ess than the | oss margins that the custoners woul d
have experienced had we done that. Staff's
supposition frankly woul d have been a very bad idea
for custoners.

And that brings ne to a discussion of
Staff's related hold harnml ess proposal in this case
which is related to the transm ssion upgrade issues.
M. -- Ms. Mers nentioned this at |least two if not
three tines on Friday. Wth all due respect, the
Comm ssion has absolutely no authority in this case
to i ssue what woul d anmobunt to a prejudgnent of how
i nvestnents not in rates today should be handled in a
future rate case. These transm ssion investnents
aren't anong the costs that are sought to be
securitized, they have nothing do this case, they

aren't in rates today. Wen the projects are done
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and we have a rate case then |like all rate based

i nvestnents they' Il be at issue in a future rate case
and that's when the Conm ssion can consi der whatever
argunent Staff wants to nmake. But the Comm ssion
can't prejudge it, nmake an advisory decision about
that in this case now.

One nore issue | want to touch on before |
wrap up. Many of you on the Comm ssion, Chair Hahn
per haps not unl ess you've been reading old cases and
you m ght have, are well aware that the confusion and
con -- of the confusion and controversy that
surrounded the determ nation of the net present val ue
of tax benefits in the Liberty securitization case.
And | know Judge Cd ark renenbers this because he
lived it I"'msure. And |'msure that you renenber
that a lot of that -- that figuring out the NPV of
tax benefits in the securitization case turns on how
you deal with accunul ated deferred i ncone taxes,

ADI T.

In that case the Comm ssion nade a
deci sion on how ADI T should be handled, it was
appeal ed, and the Western District did affirmthat
decision. That led to a different treatnent of ADIT
in that case that both the Staff and the Conpany are

recomendi ng you followin this case and it also | ead
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to a further conplication, that is the need to

account for future incone tax liabilities in ongoing
financing costs over the entire termof the Liberty
bond.

The evidence in this case however, the
record in this case is different than the record in
Li berty. And based on that different record the
Comm ssion should find that the net present val ue of
tax benefits is as recomended by Conpany W tness
Lansford and confirnmed by Staff w tness Mjors.

Doing so wll conpletely keep custoners whole. It
will keep the Conpany whole too but it will keep
custoners whole as well and it will obviate the

adm ni stratively conplex need to deal with future

I ncone taxes through ongoing financing costs over the
entire termof the bonds.

In closing, | submt to you that when you
consider the record evidence in this case you w |l
first conclude that the suns the Conpany seeks to
securitize should be securitized. Second, you wll
concl ude that the Conpany's consistently nade prudent
decisions in the best interest of its custoners. And
this is true even though sone of those decisions as a
matter of law the district court said were incorrect.

And you wll conclude that custoners were not harned
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by those decisions and in fact their revenue

requi renents are | ower given the decisions the
Conpany has made.

Thank you for your tinme and patience this
norning. |f there are questions I'll try to answer
themand if | can't answer them you can probably ask
them of our w tnesses.

JUDGE CLARK: Thank you, M. Lowery. Just
for the record, | want to note -- |'ve already noted
that Conm ssioner Holsman is attending this hearing
via WebEx. It's ny understanding that Conm ssi oner
Kol kneyer is here as well and we have Chair Hahn in
person. Are there any Comm ssioner questions at this
time for M. Lowery?

CHAI R HAHN:  Thank you, Judge. Good
nmorni ng, M. Lowery.

MR, LOAERY: (Good norni ng.

CHAIR HAHN: |'m going to back to Friday,
if you don't mnd. W spent a lot of tine discussing
the prudency of the decision to not pursue NSR  And
t he Judge asked you if, you know, you thought legally
that the Comm ssion had to nake a determ nation on
t he prudency of not taking an NSR. And what | think
your response was is that the Comm ssion had to nake

a determ nati on because of a $34 mllion disall owance
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that OPC had suggested. Am| recalling that

correctly?

MR, LOWNERY: You are. | think that you
either have to determne that OPC s adjustnent is not
supported in a way that you just disregard it. |
nmean, essentially it's wong, it's not supported, and
therefore it's no longer an issue. And then | think
probably you could not decide the underlying NSR
prudence issue because -- and this all -- 1'm hedgi ng
only because Staff's position's been a little opaque
about what they're asking for in this case and
particularly this transm ssion upgrade, hold harnl ess
argunent, you know, it all gets tied up into these
prudence questions also. But if you agree with ne
that you can't rule on this hold harm ess argunent in
this case, it's not appropriate for a securitization
case and if you were to agree with the Conpany that
you find OPC s anal ysis | acking then perhaps you
woul dn't have to decide the underlying case. But if
those are live issues since they're based on --
they're prem sed on a claimthat we were inprudent,
you're going to have to deal with the underlying
claimin order to conclude that, you know, we
shouldn't suffer, for exanple, a $34 million

per manent di sal | owance.
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CHAIR HAHN: Yeah. | can ask OPCin a
nmonment. But what | thought | recalled them saying on
their position was they think there should be a
$34 mllion disall owance but they were not sure if
there woul d be enough evidence in the case to nake
t hat prudence determnation. So | can ask them
recall that again |ater.

MR. LOAERY: That m ght be an instance
where M. WIllians and | sonmewhat -- m ght sonmewhat
be aligned, that m ght be the case.

CHAI R HAHN: Wi ch does get ne to why
Amreren had a witness file direct testinony on that
specific issue if it was only in response to a
di sal | owance that hadn't been recommended yet?

MR LONERY: Well, | think | can explain
t hat because | agree we probably woul dn't have
normal ly done that. So let ne give you a little bit
of history, all of which happened before you were on
t he Conmi ssi on.

After we made the decision to retire the
plant Staff al nost i medi ately asked the Conm ssion
to open an investigatory docket and made sone
recommendati ons one of which is that we shoul d
basically put on sworn testinony about why we were

prudent. W didn't object to that recommendati on but
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what we said to the Comm ssion was we're about to

file a rate case and so it probably makes npbst sense
for us to put on that evidence in that rate case.
And we did so a couple nonths later, two, three
nont hs | ater.

And then -- and so it appeared to us at
that tinme that Staff was absolutely taking issue with
t he prudence of those decisions. And we get into the
case, we have testinony back and forth and then Staff
says, you know what -- and |'mcharacterizing it, M.
Keevil m ght say ny characterization's unfair. But
our --

MR. KEEVIL: | have no doubt M. Keevil
woul d say that.

MR, LOVNERY: Qur interpretation of what
was happening at the tine is Staff then says, you
know what, Comm ssion, you don't need to decide the
prudence issues in this case, the tine to decide
those is in the securitization case that the Conpany
Is going to file. Because everybody knew we -- the
testimony | think reflected we would seek to
securitize the Rush Island costs. So from our
perspective Staff is telling us in that case we're
going to take on these issues in your securitization

case.
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The testinony of -- a ot of the testinony

we filed on direct in this case frankly is just very
simlar to the testinony we filed in that rate case.
|"m sure we el aborated and refined it in sone
respects but it's very simlar. And so having
essentially Staff give us the word, so to speak,
we're going to take these issues up in the
securitization case we thought it just wouldn't nmake
any sense to sort of act |like the elephant's not in
the roomso to speak and not file the testinony on
direct, so that's why we did it. W wouldn't have
had to but we thought we shoul d.

CHAIR HAHN. Ckay. Thank you for the
clarification. So |I'mgoing to ask anot her
clarification question. |In your opinion, what do you
think the Conm ssion has to decide in this particular
case as it relates to prudence and securitizing bonds
for Rush I|sl and?

MR. LOAERY: Wth the caveats | gave
before, you m ght not have to decide the underlying
NSR perm tting issue. Again, if you find the
evi dence insufficient, you agree there's no authority
on the hold harm ess to nake that so you woul dn't
have to decide that. But you have to decide that the

Conpany's decision to retire instead of retrofit was
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-- you know, that that's what led to the retirenent.

That's the |l ast decision that led to the retirenent.
You need to find that that was a prudent deci sion.

CHAIR HAHN. Thank you. One ot her
gquestion. You talked -- you nentioned this norning
capacity issues. W would be the rel evant w tness
for the Comm ssion to ask regardi ng capacity --
potential capacity projection?

MR. LOAERY: Matt M chel s.

CHAI R HAHN:  Thank you.

MR. LOAERY: He knows way nore about it
than I do. Any other questions | can answer,
Comm ssi oners Hol sman or Kol kneyer or Judge?

COW SSI ONER HOLSMAN:  No questions at
this time, Judge, thank you.

COW SSI ON KOLKMEYER:  No questi ons,
Judge, thank you.

JUDGE CLARK: Thank you, Commi ssioners
Hol sman and Kol kneyer. | do have a few questions for
you. |'ll try not to be repetitive.

MR. LONERY: That's okay.

JUDGE CLARK: Let's start with you had
said at the very beginning of your opening that if
you foll owed Public Counsel's recommendation to not

securitize as opposed to, | believe you said, a
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reduced anmount of 325 mllion, you didn't really

explain why -- why securitization couldn't occur
there. Now, | do renenber, from Mirray's testinony,
that there was sonething about that in regards to
carrying costs. |s carrying cost the only issue
there that would nmake it --

MR. LOAERY: No.

JUDGE CLARK: | guess what |'mgetting at
is what would -- what about OPC s position would
render the statute ineffective?

MR LOVNERY: OPC s position, as |
understand it, is that traditional financing and
recovery neans that you would anortize the bal ance of
the plan -- the Comm ssion always and every tine
woul d anortize and recover the undepreci ated bal ance
of the plan through base rates but there would be no
financing costs associated with that at all. And if
that's the case it is inpossible to show NPV benefits
of securitization.

That is not how you ruled in Liberty,
that's not the approach, that's not the nethod that
was taken, the nethod that you sanctioned. But if
OPC s right about that it's inpossible to neet the
NPV benefits, you know, requirenents of the statute.

And if that's the case then there wasn't any point in
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having a statute that allowed securitization of

undepreci ated costs in generating plants because you
could never use it. That's the basis.

JUDCGE CLARK: Thank you. The parties seem
to use the words term nate and retirenent
I nterchangeably and | noticed that the district court
decision used the termtermnate. |s there a
difference there, are those actually interchangeabl e?

MR. LOAERY: | don't know what term nate
neans, to be honest with you. | hope we haven't used
that term

JUDCGE CLARK: Term nate operations.

MR. LOAERY: Ckay. | don't think there's
a difference, not for this purpose.

JUDGE CLARK: (Ckay. Wiich wtnesses
shoul d | ask about Aneren's proposed financing order?

MR, LOWNERY: You should ask Darryl Sagel
and you should ask Katrina N ehaus and they are both
appeari ng today.

JUDCGE CLARK: Thank you. Now, | renenber
reading in testinony there's sone di scussion on
trackers but there's no -- there's been no
stipulation of the agreenent filed in this case. Was
there any further discussion of trackers in this

case?
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MR. LOAERY: |'ve got to admt you've

caught ne flatfooted. |'mnot really sure what

you' re tal king about. That maybe was our w tnesses
but I'mnot sure -- oh. Oh. M apologies. Now | do
remenber. Mtch Lansford does discuss -- | nean,
it's deferral nmechanism tracker. | nean, basically
when Rush Island retires and stops operations if we
haven't had a -- if we haven't concluded a rate case
by then -- and since it's already April and a rate
case takes 11 nonths and it's going to retire in
Cctober that seens alnost a certainty, right.

We proposed, for the benefit of custoners,
that we take the revenue requirenent associated wth
Rush Island that's in our base rates today, that's
I npacting our rates today and that we defer those
anopunts to a regulatory liability so that we can give
t hem back to custoners when our rates are reset.

O herwi se we would get -- and I'mjust going to use a
round figure here. Oherwi se we would get the

$500 mllion for retiring Rush Island. Say we issue
the bonds this fall, we get that noney and the O&M
associ ated with the plant would stop because it's not
operating, right. But our rates would still reflect
both that return on and of the investnent that's in

rates and the G&M | nean, really we would sort of
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be double -- | believe we woul d be doubl e di pping at
that point. It would be unfair to custoners. And so
that's -- | think that's what you're referring to as

a tracker, | believe.

JUDCGE CLARK: But there's no agreenent at
this time between the parties in regard to a tracker?

MR, LOWNERY: | don't think anybody
rebutted it at all. | guess -- I'lIl go out on a linb
and say | think there is agreenent that there shoul d
be a tracker. |If there's -- what | don't know for
sure is if the parties are conpletely aligned on
exactly what the amount should be. That may not be
conpletely resolved. But the concept that we should
defer to a regulatory liability these anounts,
what ever the right anmount is, | don't think there's
any dispute about that.

JUDGE CLARK:  Well, | think --

MR. LOAERY: Unless |I'm m ssing sonet hing.
Sorry.

JUDCGE CLARK: Well, there's the deferral
mechani sm and then there's the -- is there -- was
there any discussion of a tracker to track how nmuch
was actually spent for energy transition costs?

MR LONERY: Oh, oh. Gkay. That's -- I'm

sorry if | got off on the conpletely wong issue.
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The statute requires, Judge, that estinmated costs

that are included in the principal anmounts of the
bonds not just energy transition costs but upfront
financing costs those are both effect -- the statute
requires that differences between the anount incl uded
in the bonds, to the extent they're estinmated, and
sone of these are estimated, requires that in a
future rate case those differences be reconcil ed and
we would either collect a little bit nore noney or we
woul d gi ve back noney if it's different. So if
that's what you're tal king about, yes. And | don't
thi nk there's any di sagreenent what soever about the
fact that the statute requires that. Maybe if you're
tal ki ng about a di sagreenent, OPC in particular, |
think Staff only on one issue, sone of the issues
that we contend should be included in energy
transition costs in the principal anount of the
bonds. OPC says we're not saying you shoul dn't
recover them but we don't think they ought to be in
the principal of the bonds, we think they ought to
just be handled in a rate case as if there was no
securitization. So there is a dispute about sone of
t hose itens.

But to the extent that you include an

estimated itemin the principal anmount of the bonds,

888-893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required Nevada Registration #116F. LEXITAS
www.lexitaslegal.com California Firm Registration #179



© 00 N oo o b~ w N Pk

N N NN NN R R R R R R R R R
g A W N P O © W N O O M W N B O

Evidentiary Hearing April 15, 2024

) ) Page 53
| think everybody agrees that in a future rate case

we need to reconcile actuals to different -- to
estimates at that tinme. | think everybody agrees
wi th that.

CHAIR HAHN:. Thank you for clarifying it
on the trackers. It was -- you're right, the second
tinme,

MR. LONERY: (kay.

CHAIR HAHN: The difference in actual
costs versus approved costs. So you're right. |
mss -- if you said there's agreenent generally on
the principal anongst the parties | think that's what
the Judge was getting at.

MR. LOAERY: (kay.

CHAIR HAHN. We spent a lot of tine
tal ki ng about NSR and the prudency of that. Wat we
haven't spent a lot of tine on yet, and | assune that
we will, is the 2021 decision to -- prudency deci sion
to either retrofit or retire the plant. |'m assum ng
then witness Mchels mght be the person to --

MR. LOWNERY: For us, yes. That's right.

CHAIR HAHN:.  All right. And -- well, we
can di scussion that then. Thank you.

MR. LOAERY:  Uh- huh.

JUDGE CLARK: Thank you, Comm ssioner. |
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just got one last thing | want to kind of clear up

with you. Now this $34 mllion you were discussing
as a disallowance, is that Staff's or OPC s?

MR LOAERY: OPC.

JUDCGE CLARK: Ckay. That's what | was
t hi nki ng.

MR LONERY: M. Seaver.

JUDGE CLARK: Now, you've thrown out that
nunber and that nunber's related to anot her
confidential nunber. |Is that nunber still
confidential? 'Cause | believe when you' re talking
about that you're tal king about anmounts above a
certain amount; is that correct?

MR, LOAERY: Well, that's the transm ssion
upgrade issue and that nunber is still confidential.

JUDGE CLARK: Ckay.

MR, LOAERY: But | don't -- | don't recall
there being a confidentiality issue relating to the
34 mllion. But the transm ssion issue Staff
recomends, and | won't use figures, Staff recommends
-- that basically says, |ook, when you did the 2021
anal ysis you had a base anobunt of transm ssion
upgrade costs that you assuned, it was X, and it
| ooks |ike the actual upgrade costs are going to be X

plus Y. It's Ythat's -- well, it's the total, the
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actual total that's confidential because we're going

to do other transm ssion upgrades, we don't have a
contractor that mght bid to have an idea of what
those costs are, right, that's why it's confidential.
So that's the issue there. So that actual cost of
the transm ssi on upgrade nunbers is still
confidenti al .

JUDGE CLARK: GCkay. And you went kind of
where | wanted to go with the transm ssi on upgrades.
When you' re tal king about the transm ssion upgrades,
| guess, as you said, there's an assuned anount and
then there's a potential overrun of that anount,
correct?

MR, LOAERY: | wouldn't characterize it as
an overrun. But we actually -- when we analyze it we
had a range. But | wouldn't --

JUDGE CLARK: It m ght exceed the range,

correct?

MR. LOAERY: It exceeds that base pl anning
assunption that was -- | agree.

JUDCGE CLARK: And there were a variety of
reasons offered for that, | think. | think one of

the reasons was conflating or confusing the
dismantling of the plant with the transm ssion

upgrades that are occurring at the sane spot where
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there may be materials, | believe toilets were

di scussed.

MR. LOAERY: That's on the materials and
supplies issue what you' re thinking of.

JUDCGE CLARK: All right. Then let's get
nme off of that and go back to this. How-- | don't
understand how it's an advisory opinion if you're
saying this anmount of costs we believe is going to be
known but we could overrun it here. Howis it an
advi sory opinion for the Conm ssion to say that
anounts that aren't at this tinme knowable wll be
addressed in the next rate case?

MR. LONERY: Onh, that's not, that's
certainly not. That's not what Staff is asking you
to do. Staff is asking you to | guess inpose sone
kind of condition on your financing order which |
don't think the securitization statute even gives you
the authority to do that unlike the CCN statute for
exanpl e that specifically gives you authority to
condition your CCN order. Staff is asking you to
condition the financing order on an order that says
t he Conpany assuned the upgrades were going to cost
X, if they cost a dollar over X when a rate case
happens | ater you cannot give thema dollar over X

You're -- you will not, in a rate case, give them
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what they actually cost even if it was prudent, even

if there's a good reason, et cetera. That's what
Staff's asking you to do. They're asking you to
prejudge a rate case issue on costs that aren't even
in rates yet and that aren't at issue in this case.
Maybe prejudgnent is a better word than an advi sory
opi ni on.

JUDGE CLARK: Ckay. | wunderstand what you
said there and | thank you for delineating that
difference for ne. | do see in the statute where it
says that no later than 215 days after the date the
petition's filed Comm ssion shall issue a financing
order approving the petition on order approving the
petition subject to conditions or rejecting the
petition. And it doesn't seemto |lay out any
limtation on the conditions.

MR LONERY: Well, | would suggest that
when you' re deciding what rate base should or shoul d
not be included putting aside that statute. You have
to consider all relevant factors, you have to cone to
just and reasonable rates. And if you're prejudging
a particul ar expense before you even get to the rate
case | don't see -- and when you get to the rate case
you don't consider it, right, because you're not

considering that factor 'cause you already prejudged
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it then you're not considering all relevant factors.

So | don't think you can inpose that kind of
condition even if the statute may all ow you to inpose
certain conditions that are gernmane to the
securitization itself.

JUDGE CLARK: But you didn't -- just to
clarify. You didn't see any issue with what |

proposed, correct? |In terns of you believe the

Comm ssion could say, well, this part's known, we'l]l
do this and we'll address this in a rate case.
MR, LOAERY: Absolutely not. | think

that's actually what you should say on the issue.

JUDGE CLARK: Ckay.

MR. LOAERY: It's not an issue with this
case, we'll deal with that in a rate case, that is
what you shoul d say.

JUDGE CLARK: Those are all the questions
| have at this tine.

MR. LOAERY: Thank you. O did you have
anot her one?

JUDCGE CLARK: | do not. Thank you.

MR. LOWNERY: Thank you.

JUDGE CLARK: Next opening is from Staff
of the Comm ssi on.

OPENI NG STATEMENT
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MR KEEVIL: Judge, if | could beg your

I ndul gence, given ny wal king condition, | would

prefer to just sit here and deliver this. | don't

plan to take nearly as long as M. Lowery did unl ess

we're -- in response to questions fromthe Bench.

JUDGE CLARK: You're wel cone to conduct

your opening fromwhere you're seated. | do know
that you're -- that the m crophone has a hard tine
pi cking you -- | can hear you, everybody el se can

hear you but | know that you're not picking up as
well into the stream when you don't speak directly
into the m crophone.

MR KEEVIL: Al right. Let nme try to get
alittle closer.

Good norning, may it please the Comm ssion
and RLJ. As you know, ny nane is Jeff Keevil and |
am one of the attorneys representing Conm ssion Staff
in this proceeding along with Nicole Mers and Travis
Pringl e.

When | | ast appeared before this
Comm ssion in a securitization utility tariff bond
case it was only the second tinme the Comm ssion had
conducted such a hearing and the previous hearing had
actually been a consolidation of two cases | believe.

And | al so believe the other case was on appeal or
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was just on the verge of appeal. In other words, the

Comm ssion had very little in the way of experience
W th cases such as this securitization case and no
real court sanctioned roadmap to follow. Now even
though this is only the third, to ny know edge,
securitized utility tariff bond hearing in M ssouri
the Comm ssion has worked its way through both of
those prior cases and hearings and both of which were
uphel d on appeal and both of which have worked their
way through the post financing order, slash, issuance
advice letter process. In other words, the

Comm ssi on has experience with these cases.

You will recall that the financing
statute, Section 393.1700 RsMO requires that the
financing order contain certain matters. You wll
al so see fromthe list of issues and position
statenents that many of the issues in this case,
al t hough have a securitized financing inpact, are
very simlar to the types of standard rate case
I ssues which the Comm ssion has |ots of experience.
Now that's not to say those issues are not inportant
just that they should not be viewed as super uni que
In sone way since they are being raised in a
securitization case.

The |ist of issues set forth 21 issues,
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many of which contain subparts. In the interest of
time, I'"'mnot going to |aboriously go through each of
these 21 issues. Opening statenents by attorneys do
not constitute evidence anyway. However, | wll just
point out a few issues which | believe nmay warrant
your particular attention.

You al ready heard one witness in this case
| ast Friday on the prudence issue, |ssue Nunber 3.
Closely related to that issue are |Issues 4 and 5.
And these nunbers that |"'mreferring to are as they
are listed on the list of issues. | believe these
I ssues warrant particular attention. M. Lowery
spent his -- virtually his entire openi ng statenent
addressi ng those issues and -- even though quite a
bit of tinme was spent on Friday addressing them

Also Issues 1 and 2 involving net present
val ue benefits and the post financing order process
and procedure. Those are issues that | believe you
shoul d pay particular attention to. And | should
probably nmention that many of the other issues that
-- I"'mnot specifically pointing out here this
nor ni ng may touch upon prudence or touch upon net
present value. And as | nentioned earlier, | did not
mean to inply that those other issues are not

I nportant. However, in many ways they are nore
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simlar to standard rate case | ssues.

Anot her group of issues to which | would
draw your attention are Issues 16, 17, and 20 which
you could think of as -- if inrelation to a nore
standard rate case, you could think of those as your
rate design and tariff issues.

Now, you heard M. Lowery tal k al nost
excl usi vely about the present -- the prudence and
related Issues 4 and 5. And suffice it to say that
Staff has significant disagreement with what you
heard himsay. However | have to apol ogi ze not being
as versed in those issues as | wuld Iike to be and
woul d -- whatever | say please take with a grain of
salt and be prepared to ask Staff's prudence --

W t nesses questions on those issues.

Now, you will hear testinony from several
W t nesses representing several parties in this case,
sone of whomtestify on nultiple issues. | would
refer you to Staff's filed statenent of positions and
encourage you to ask questions of the Staff w tnesses
when they take the stand of various issues. And |
could attenpt to make a bad -- a poor attenpt at
responding to questions if you have any, be glad to
address them As | said, | don't plan to go on

forever so I'mgoing to leave it at that for now and
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nmore wll be addressed, |'msure, during the specific

I ssue m ni openings. Thank you.

JUDGE CLARK: Thank you, M. Keevil. Are
there any questions fromthe Comm ssion? | have one
for you, M. Keevil.

As M. Lowery had pointed out, there's
about $17 mllion difference between Staff's position
currently and the Conpany's. And while to ne that's
a phenonenal anpunt of noney in the world of utility
regul ation, as | believe M. Lowery pointed out,
that's just enough to see daylight through. One of
the, you know -- and you pointed out, M. Lowery
spent a lot of his tinme for Anmeren on the NSR -- or
t he New Source Revi ew prudence issue as has been put
out that a lot of parties are interested in. | guess
my question at this tinme is it appears that there's
still at least renedy proceedi ngs going on in the
district court. So wth that in mnd, if there is
harm|' mwondering how it is quantified at this point
such that the Comm ssion should be considering it in
this case. So can you kind of give ne your overview
on that as to why we should be, if it hasn't been
gquantified?

MR, KEEVIL: Well, | think that oftentines

that harm el enent of the prudence standard or

888-893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required Nevada Registration #116F. LEXITAS
www.lexitaslegal.com California Firm Registration #179



© 00 N oo o b~ w N Pk

N N NN NN R R R R R R R R R
g A W N P O © W N O O M W N B O

Evidentiary Hearing April 15, 2024

. ) ) Page 64
prudence eval uation gets lunped -- if you noticed on
that slide M. -- not slide. But overhead M. Lowery

had up there that tal ked about prudence, the
associ ated case -- or whatever case that was he was
projecting for us tal ked about the prudence and then
the harm Said you can have prudence -- or excuse
me, i nprudence but then you have to al so have harm
And so -- and in fact, if you look at the statute
here that we're dealing with, 393.1700, the
definition of energy transition cost itself requires
that it -- let ne just read the first part of it
her e.
It says, pre -- A-- 7A pretax costs,
Wi th respect to a retired or abandoned or to be
retired or an abandoned el ectric generating facility
that is the subject of a petition for a financing
order filed under this section, or such early
retirement or abandoned is deened reasonabl e and
prudent by the Comm ssion through a final order
I ssued by the Conm ssion include but are not limted
to and then it goes on with several exanples of cost.
| think the problemthat you have in this
situation is that in order to securitize themthe
costs need to have been reasonable in the first

place. And | agree with you that we do not know the
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full extent of the harmto which rate payers will be

exposed due to Aneren's decision nmaking in regard to
the decisions it's made here. So |I think you need to
address -- you can find that they acted inprudently
Wi t hout deciding the harm-- the anmount of the harm
And that's basically what Staff's -- |'m probably
doi ng a poor job of paraphrasing it but | would
encourage you to ask Ms. Eubanks when she takes the
stand. But that's basically a part of -- a big part
of her recommendation to | don't want to say push
themoff to the rate case but to defer themto the
follow ng rate cases because the harmelenent wll be
hopeful ly better known at that tine.

Does any of that nmake any sense at all?

JUDGE CLARK: It did. And it is
essentially what I"mgetting at too is -- -you
actually cited the section of the statute and I'm
| ooking at that and I'mtrying to figure out how
narrow or how expansive that is. And it appears
that, at |east given the reading you just gave of it,
t hat where such early retirenent or abandonnent as
deened reasonabl e and prudent by the Comm ssion it
appears that Staff is deem ng as part of that
retirenment decision the decision to seek the -- or

the choice to not seek the New Source Revi ew
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permtting; is that correct.

MR KEEVIL: Yes. In fact, Judge, if you
go back and | ook -- there were nunerous, numerous
deci sions that Aneren nade, going all the way back to
the early 2000s basically up until just recently,
that have -- well, actually they're still going on,
as you pointed out, the renedy phase is still going
on. Any one of which of those decisions they could
have been prudent or inprudent on.

Personally -- I'mnot speaking for Staff
right now Personally speaking just for nme, | think
they got several of them wong, they got several of
themright. | nean, it was a series of decisions and
actions that they took on the basis of those
deci sions. The full extent to which the harm we

don't know yet, as you just pointed out, because the

Court could inpose -- I'mnot sure what the proper
termnology is, I'"'mgoing to call themfines or
penal ti es beyond the rate making -- or beyond the

costs of retiring or putting scrubbers up. The Court
could just fine them basically, probably the wong
t erm agai n.

And | think that's one of the reasons that

the Court -- you know, | nentioned earlier during the
pre -- prelimnary matter portion of this hearing,
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we' ve asked that the Comm ssion take official notice

and it doesn't -- again, doesn't matter to ne whet her
you take official notice or just receive it as an
exhibit in the record. But sonehow or another you
need to get that transcript fromthe Court's renedy
hearing into the record because, | nean, | think it

I ndi cates the extent to which the Court believes that
what Aneren is telling the Court and what Aneren is
telling this Comm ssion do not sync. |It's an ongoing
pattern or problemthat we've experienced since 2000
-- early 2000s.

JUDGE CLARK: And I'mtrying -- |I'm
wanting to listen to all of the argunents of the
parties, I'mjust trying to figure out how we get
there because I'mlooking at this and | can certainly
-- | agree with you on any given day any utility
plant is -- any utility and deci sions regardi ng any
utility plant are going to be along a scale with a
perfect decision at the top and a terribly inprudent
deci sion at the bottom and at any given day that
t hese decisions are going to run up and down t hat
scale to a degree with very -- you know, with a very
| ow |I'i kel i hood of extrenely inprudent decisions and a
very low likelihood of absolutely perfect decisions.

But are those all retirenment deci sions.
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And that's kind of where |I'mthinking
because where it says where such early retirenent or
abandoned i s deened reasonabl e and prudent and it
doesn't really talk about other decisions and so |I'm
having a hard tine getting at -- and by way of
exanple, and I'mnot neaning to pick on Aneren for
this but it's just the one that cones to mnd. |If
you' re tal king about sonething |ike Taum Sauk where
all of a sudden everything washes down the
nmount ai nsi de, you know, there may have been a | ot of
deci sions that took you down the road to get there
but then you have the decision as to whether to
rebuild or to retire. And that seens to be -- at
| east the way I'm |l ooking at the statute, that seens
to be what's being | ooked on. Now | certainly think
obviously there's reasonabl e argunents to be nmade for
why it should be nore expansive than that and | want
to hear those argunents.

MR, KEEVIL: Part of -- on that point,
Judge, | think. Again, | would refer you to M.
Eubanks and Ms. Mers. But part of Staff's concern |
believe is that if you w nd up maki ng what ever
deci sion you nake we don't want to -- in the next
rate case or whenever we don't want it to cone back

and say, yeah, you heard M. Lowery this norning say,
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well, they didn't conplain about this in 2014, well,

they didn't conplain about this in 2007.

W don't want themto cone back in the
rate case, or whenever, and say, well, you deci ded
It, Comm ssion, in the securitization case that we
weren't -- we were not subject to any disall owance
and that we was prudent enough to securitize so
therefore you decided this and Staff can't bring this
up now. That's part of are -- we hear -- and not
just from Ameren, we hear that fromall utilities.
Well, you didn't bring this up, you know, 18 years
ago when you had an opportunity to do so even though
you didn't know as much about it and we're in a part
of the litigation in federal court and on and on and
on, you had an opportunity to raise it, you didn't,
you lost it. W don't want to run into that again.

JUDGE CLARK: So -- go ahead, Chairnman.

CHAIR HAHN:. Thank you. | think, you
know, fromthe prior opening statenent and the
di scussion on Friday and Staff's pre-filed position
statenents, Staff didn't have a position on the
prudency or reasonabl eness of the NSR permtting
other than to preserve it for a future rate case.
The statute only requires us to | ook at the

retirenment or abandonnent of the plant and its
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prudency and reasonabl eness in 2021. If it was
prudent and reasonable to retire it to issue
securitized utility tariff bonds to retire -- if that

deci si on was reasonable then -- and prudent then we
could retire it. That's the decision | think we're
| argely focusing on today. | do think it is a
br oader scope to tal k about, you know, NSR
permtting, harmthat we're not totally sure about
still being assessed by the federal courts.

So at least Staff bringing it up m ght be
a great way to preserve it again like you're
preserving NSR permtting for that future rate case
so we have all of that information to | ook at at one
ti me because the decision before us, to ne it seens
fairly narrow.

MR, KEEVIL: |1'mgoing to have to defer
t hat because that's actually -- to -- like, as | said
earlier, either Ms. Eubanks or Ms. Mers because |
haven't been as closely involved in that issue as |
wi sh I would have been up to this point.

CHAI R HAHN:  Thank you.

JUDGE CLARK: Thank you. Are there any
further Comm ssion questions ? | hear none. Thank
you, M. Keevil.

M EC was next and ny understanding is that
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t hey have, and | have granted, that they want do a

m ni opening on |Issue 17 when that cones up, correct?

M5. PLESCI A:  Your Honor, | would like to
do that still but I would just |like to make a bri ef
statenent to put our issue into context, if | could,
W t hout getting into detail.

JUDCGE CLARK: That would be fine. Please
go ahead.

MS. PLESCI A:  Sure.

JUDGE CLARK: M EC.

OPENI NG STATEMENT

M5. PLESCIA: Sure. Thank you, Judge
Cl ark and Chair Hahn and Conm ssioners. The reason
the MEC has narrowed this to one issue is that MEC
supports Aneren's proposal to do the securitization,
we think that's a cost effective decision, it nakes
sense. There's really one issue that's outstandi ng
but it's of great material inportance to the |arge
enpl oyers that are included in the MEC and that is
that Staff has proposed that the securitized costs be
al located to custoner on kilowatt hour energy basis.
This is a very dramatic decision in terns of what
that would do to industrial rates not only in this
case but in future securitization cases which we

fully expect wll occur.
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The evi dence that we have will show t hat

this case is distinguishable fromthe two other cases
for Liberty and Evergy regarding this issue. It wll
show how this proposal by Staff really departs
conpletely fromthe way that rates have been set for
Ameren and rates should be set and that it would
cause di scrimnation against |arge custoners and
woul d not be a reasonable or fair nethod. And we
will present that evidence on Thursday or if the
I ssue conmes up sooner whenever it conmes up. Thank
you.

JUDGE CLARK: Thank you. And to clarify,
| m sspoke there, that's Issue 16 not 17.

M5. PLESCIA: My apol ogies, |ssue 16.

JUDCGE CLARK: Any Comm ssion questions for
M EC? | have no questions. Thank you.

Any opening statenent fromthe Sierra
Club? | excused them didn't 17

MR. LONERY: Yes.

JUDCGE CLARK: Any opening statenent from
Nat ural Resources defense counsel? Hearing none.
believe | also excused themactually. AARP?

MR COFFMAN:  Yes.

OPENI NG STATEMENT

MR. COFFMAN:.  Good norning, your Honor,
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Judge Hahn. May it please the Conm ssion, |'m John

Coffman. This is an opening -- just a brief

overvi ew, opening statenent on behalf of AARP and the
Consuners Council of Mssouri. And | would just |ike
to start by rem nding the Comm ssion that the Public
Service Conmi ssion's guiding star, a guiding star as
the court's say is the protection of the public. And
there are a few things about the framework of the
securitization statute that have been vexing.

And | think we're all struggling with how
you address prudence and reasonabl eness in this case
and part of it is because the securitization statute
sets up a system whereby the Comm ssion can approve
this surcharge and it's basically |ocked in, the
Comm ssion | oses control over what happens over the
next few years, it's |ocked in and consuners are
going to pay whatever the Conm ssion says they have
to pay if they do approve this. And we cannot trust,
as we normally do, the Conm ssion's ability to cone
in and protect the public if sonething is then
di scovered later, if circunstances change and for
instance if harmthen becones very apparent whereas
it's kind of unclear right now So that's why |
think this is a very inportant nonent and one that

t he Comm ssion should take very seriously.
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And whereas | take sort of the flip side

of the -- that Ameren M ssouri does in this case of
the particular statute. And our opinionis if rate
payers are not going to be better off than they would
be with traditional rate making we don't see the
purpose of the statute. The statute was sold as a
way to treat consuners better if they're in a
Situation such as this where a coal plant is going to
be shut down. And it's inportant to understand the
framework in Mssouri and for a utility plant, an
electric utility plant in Mssouri if it's not being
used and useful, if it's not serving custoners, if
it's not fully operational then the utility is not
entitled to return on that plant. And that woul d be
the -- you know, the traditional rate nmaki ng nethod.
So with -- you know, absent securitization
all that the utility would be allowed is to take the
remai ni ng bal ance, depreciation, and recover it
t hrough an anortization with no return on that
unanorti zed balance. So if in fact as Public Counsel
testinmony has proven that -- or shows that even if
the Comm ssion has allowed Areren to recover a debt
return of a little over four percent on the asset
securitization would be nore costly than established

rate making principals in Mssouri. And so in that
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case we think that the Conm ssion should be approving

securitization only if it can be shown that rate
payers are going to be better off with
securitization.

And in this particular case there are a
nunber -- nunerous issues as to the prudence and
reasonabl eness of the utility's actions that |ed up
to this particular case. And your Honor, to
anal ogi ze to the Taum Sauk situation, you know, there
you had sonmething | don't think anyone argued was
prudent at all. But the question about whether to
rebuild that Taum Sauk, and the Conm ssion westled
with this, would not have been in front of the
Comm ssion but for the inprudent actions that cane
before it. So | think you have to | ook at the
prudence and reasonabl eness of decisions that |led up
to that -- this decision to shut down the coal plant
as well as projecting forward what that nmay be.

The issue of whether harmis necessary for
prudence, | think you have to look at. And | am-- |
t hi nk gui dance can be found in the Capital Cty Water
cases, there were two of themin particular in the
1990s that | ooked at prudence and reasonabl eness
separately involving a contract wwth Public Water --

Public Water Supply District found that a contract
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was at one point prudent but then in another case

I nprudent and dependi ng on the facts of each
particular rate case that that water conpany had the
di sal | owance was allowed or not. |In one case an

I nprudent contract resulted in no all owance and in
anot her case a contract that had been prudent was not
reasonable. And this is the kind of ongoing
regul ati on, ongoi ng oversi ght that we expect the
Comm ssion to do. But in this particular case when
you're | ooking at securitization and locking in a
decision for a long period of tine where the

Comm ssion won't be able to go back in and reconsider
its decision | think you have to look at it in a

br oader context.

All 1'"msaying today is that |I hope that
you |l ook at this decision and realize that if the
public is going to be protected and the public is
going to be treated fairly that all those
consi derations have to be nmade in this case because
If the public is going to be protected it's only the
Comm ssion that's going to be able to do it. So we
are adopting the position of the Public Counsel in
this case and asking that you not approve
securitization in this particular case. Any

guestions?
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JUDCGE CLARK: Conmmi ssi oner.

CHAIR HAHN: Thank you, M. Coffman.

MR COFFMAN:  Yes.

CHAIR HAHN. For clarification, you said
t he Conm ssion needs to take the decisions, for
exanpl e, of, you know -- you didn't use these exact
wor ds but prudency of, you know, the past deci sions
to how we got here into account. Wat if -- what if
it's not known? You know, we've heard harm several
tinmes.

MR. COFFMAN:. Ri ght.

CHAI R HAHN:  Unknown.

MR. COFFMAN. Ri ght.

CHAIR HAHN: So are you -- if these things
are unknown that you're suggesting that we take into
account, would you disagree then with Staff's

position or how do you feel about Staff's position to

preserve those for future cases -- rate cases?
MR, COFFMAN.  Well, | would say there is
an initial prudence -- reasonabl eness and prudence

determ nati on the Comm ssion makes to whether the

utility even has access to the securitization renedy,
right. And the utility does bear the burden of proof
even though under the | aw other parties need to raise

the issue, there needs to be a serious question
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rai sed, and those issues have been rai sed. O at

| east the issues that have been raised in this case.
| think you have to put the burden on the utility to
prove those. And it is tricky because we don't know.
We don't even know what the bonds wll be yet when
you nake the determnation. But | would just say
that you have to | ook at the burden of proof and the
burden of proof is on the utility and if you don't

know | think you have to err on the side of

consuners.
CHAI R HAHN:  Thank you.
JUDGE CLARK: Any ot her Comm ssion
gquestions? | have no questions. Thank you very

much, M. Cof f man.

MR. COFFMAN: | don't envy your decision,
it's conplicated.

CHAIR HAHN: | guess |I'mjust westling
wi th what you said | ast, you know, have to err on the
side of consuners. And in this case | don't know
what that neans because | can see that analysis, you
know, of cost of scrubbers and retrofitting versus
cost of retirenment. And so I'mstruggling to
under stand your position of what's best for consuners
so |l'm--

MR. COFFMAN: Yeah. You're forced to be
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in a position where you have to estinate a

hypot hetical situation in the future.

CHAI R HAHN:  Thank you.

MR. COFFMAN: | don't think there's any
way around that. Thank you.

JUDGE CLARK: Thank you, AARP and Consuner
Council of Mssouri. Any opening from M dwest Energy
Consunmers G oup?

OPENI NG STATEMENT

MR OPITZ: Good norning and may it pl ease
the Conmssion. M nane is Tim Qpitz on behal f of
M dwest Energy Consuners G oup. And just very
briefly I want to touch on the allocation of revenue
requi rement which was nentioned by MEC s counsel and
briefly by the Staff. So our position is that the
al l ocation should be based on the nature of the costs
that are being securitized and here these costs are
related to a fixed plan. And so in ny view and in
the view of MECG this would be, in a normal rate
case, recovered differently than through a straight
kil owatt hour charge.

So | think drawi ng that distinction
between this securitization case and prior
securitization case recovery nechani sns that have

been approved is an inportant distinction to point
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out. And MECG supports the proposed nethod that is

contained within Mrris Brubaker's testinony, |
believe he's got rebuttal and surrebuttal. And ny
understanding is that the Conpany witness M. WIlls
in his surrebuttal testinony says this is an
acceptable alternative and | think the opponent,
who's taking the position, is the Comm ssion Staff
whi ch is advocating for the kilowatt hour charge
that's been approved related to primarily the Storm
Uri securitizations.

So with that | would ask the Comm ssion to
adopt the allocation proposal contained within the
testinony of Morris Brubaker. Happy to answer your
guesti ons.

JUDGE CLARK: Any questions fromthe
Comm ssion? And this -- aml wong, is this
primarily a demand al | ocati on?

MR, OPITZ: That's being proposed --

JUDGE CLARK: Yes.

MR OPITZ: -- by M. Brubaker? So M.
Brubaker's proposal is a specific percentage
adj ustnent that's based on | believe the conbi nation
of the custoner demand and energy charges. | think
it's Page 10 of his rebuttal testinony that talks
about those details. And what the Staff is proposing
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is that it would be a voltage adjusted kil owatt hour

charge. So that would be energy charge. It's MECG s
view that a production plant wouldn't be, in a normal
rate case, recovered through a kilowatt hour charge.

JUDCGE CLARK: Ckay. Thank you.

MR. OPITZ: Thank you.

JUDCGE CLARK: Renew M ssouri .

OPENI NG STATEMENT

MR. LI NHARES:. Thanks, Judge, and may it
pl ease the Comm ssion. M nane's Andrew Li nhares,

" mrepresenting Renew M ssouri Advocates in this
case and I'mhere to support the Conpany's
application to facilitate the retirenent of Rush

| sl and using securitization as enabl ed by 393.1700.
In addition I want to clarify -- | want to bring sone
clarity to our position in this case with respect to
what we discussed earlier, the energy infrastructure
rei nvest ment programthrough federal DCE.

Qur primary interest inthis case is to
ensure that M ssouri's securitization franmework
continues to be used in a way that all ows
rei mbursenent of antiquated and expensive fossil fuel
generation and to invest in new cheaper, cleaner
generation. In the com ng decades we are going to

need to confront the reality that our utilities have
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many coal and gas plants on their books that are

either in non-attainnent of em ssions requirenents or
they require upgrades that are too costly to justify
or they are too costly to continue to run when
conpared to new generation or perhaps all of these
together. The Comm ssion will need every tool inits
tool box in order to deal with this com ng energy
transm ssion and the securitization framework is an
essential tool.

This is the second nmaj or case before the
Comm ssi on considering a securitization application.
In the Asbury case the Comm ssion determ ned that
about 80 mllion in energy transm ssion costs coul d
be financed using securitized bonds and that recovery
of such costs was just and reasonable and that the
decision to retire the plant was reasonable and
prudent and in the public interest. The appellate
court later upheld this decision. This case
obvi ously involves nore stakes, it involves nore
noney, but at bottomit presents the Conm ssion with
the sane task which is to determ ne whether custoners
wll be better off if an antiquated expensive power
plant is allowed to retire and its remai ni ng debt
financed through securitized bonds.

So | also want to address this EIR i ssue.
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Renew M ssouri submitted one piece of testinony in

this case, the rebuttal testinony of M. Janes Owen.
M. Owen introduced the concept of using the federal
Energy Infrastructure Reinvestnent Program as an
alternative way to finance the retirenent of Rush

| sland. The EIR programis created as part of 2022

I nflation Reduction Act, or the EIRA it's
adm ni stered through federal DOE and it's been
allocated five billion to guarantee | oans for
projects to replace old energy infrastructure with
renewabl es, batteries, other new infrastructure.

The DOE's LPO, or Loan Prograns O fice,
has stated that the program can acconmopdate financi ng
structures including securitizations provided that
certain reinvestnent requirenents are net. M. Oaen
relied on an analysis fromthe Rocky Muntain
Institute that explained how ER -- EIR funds woul d
take the place of the bond market in a nornal
securitization proceedi ng and Rocky Muntain
Institute's anal ysis showed that using EIR funds to
retire Rush Island and reinvest in new generation
woul d save rate payers over $400 mllion at the end
of the day.

And Renew M ssouri shared this proposal

with the Conpany and with all the other parties in
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the case and to the Conpany's credit they gave full

consideration to this proposal however Aneren

M ssouri did return an answer to us after they
analyzed it thenselves. They cane to the concl usion
that application of EIR programfunds in this
particul ar case would not end up benefitting rate
payers. And the reason is, as the Conpany expl ai ned,
there's alimt functionally to the anount of EIR
funds that the Conpany can use between now and 2026
when the programruns out.

It appears Aneren has enough pl anned
renewabl e generation projects that it is better to
use those limted funds for that purpose rather than
for the securitization purpose for which there is
already this state funding nechanism As M. Darryl
Sagel stated in his surrebuttal, the DOE will not
incrementally fund both the securitized costs and the
cost of eligible renewable energy projects to which
the proceeds of the bonds are required to be
al l ocated. Funding securitization costs via a DCE
| oan program neans we effectively forgo the ability
to finance investnents we will be nmaking using all
avai | abl e sources of |ower cost debt.

| hope |I've explained that clearly enough.

There is a -- functionally there's a limt in funds.
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| f those funds are all put to new renewabl e

generation then the Conpany is free to use the state
securitization process to retire the project which
woul d not be -- you'd have to make a tough deci sion
there. And we have no reason to doubt the contention
of the Conpany there and we appreciate their
consi deration of the proposal. However, | do just
want to note that we stand behind the Rocky Mountain
Institute's general analysis and framework that they
cane up with about how to use EIR funds to enabl e
securitization. And in certain narrow circunstances
it definitely should be considered over the next
coupl e years, between now and 2026, for other
utilities that cone in with a securitization
application. So | do want to | eave the Conm ssion
with that inpression that we should be considering
this programin the future for future applications.

Renew M ssouri takes no position on nmany
of the other issues in this case with respect to
di sal | owances or the Conpany's previous decisions
around Rush Island with the exception that we do see
Ameren's decision not to retrofit the plant as a
reasonabl e and prudent one.

And we do -- | do -- | suppose | have

concerns that failing to approve this application in
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this case or over scrutinizing the utility's past

deci si ons or stacking up disallowances may have the
effect of dissuading utilities fromseeking tinely
applications for securitization in the future. W
believe utilities should have a cl ear expectation and
confidence around the securitization process to
encourage old plant closures and investnent in new
generation that will benefit rate payers and the
grid. So with that |'m happy to concl ude and t ake
any questions around that EIR i ssue or any other of
our positions in this case.

JUDGE CLARK: Any Conm ssion questions? |
don't really have a question, | just want to ask,
just to be sure |'ve got this right. Because when |
read your position statenent essentially and | was
going over it it seened |like the position of Renew
M ssouri was use this programfor this as long as it
doesn't displace dollars that woul d be used for

renewabl es el sewhere; is that correct?

MR, LINHARES: | think that's correct,
Judge. | think it is -- at the end of the day is a
function of how many -- how nmuch noney is avail able

t hrough the EIR program and what you could
potentially use it on. So | don't disagree with the

framework that we proposed generally in M. Onen's
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testinmony or the analysis that the Rocky Muntain

Institute perforned even with respect to Aneren

M ssouri but it's just sinply a question of how nuch
fundi ng through DOE could Ameren M ssouri qualify for
and theoretically get and how nmany projects do they
have planned to use that for. And obviously if
there's alimt there you want to put it all towards
new generati on because you still have the

securitization franework at the state | evel to use

for retirenment. So in this case, | do think the
Conpany's explanation there is correct. |Is that
clear? |'mhappy to restate that.

JUDGE CLARK: It does. I'mgoing to

restate your position again --

MR. LI NHARES: Yeah.

JUDGE CLARK: -- not in regard to that.
So Renew s position nowis this is an option we |ike
and we think this option would be good in certain
securitization cases but Aneren -- but maybe not this
case?

MR. LINHARES: That's correct, yeah. |
think you' ve stated it just fine, yes.

JUDGE CLARK: Gkay. Thank you very nuch

MR LI NHARES: Thank you.

JUDGE CLARK:  And | believe ny last party
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is the Ofice of the Public Counsel.

OPENI NG STATEMENT

MR WLLIAMS: Thank you, Judge. My it
pl ease - -

JUDCGE CLARK: |If you're participating via
t he WebEx you may want to nute yourself. W're
pi cking you up here in the courtroom

MR WLLIAMS: My it please the
Comm ssion, Nathan WIIlians appearing on behal f of
the O fice of the Public Counsel and the public in
gener al .

There's been quite a bit of focus on the
statutory requi renent of reasonabl eness and prudency
in the decision to retire the plant. It's Public
Counsel's position that that should not be construed
narrowy and the prudency is an ongoi ng activity,
It'"s not just a point in tinme decision. And what
occurred back in 2007 and 2010 bears on the prudency
because it affected the position that the utility put
itself in at the tine it made the decision to retire

Rush Island i n Decenber of 2021.

Basically there were -- it had different
options. It chose one apparently, either
intentionally unknowingly or -- what | nean is it

didn't seek an EPA determ nation that it did not need
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to conply with the Clean Air Act in terns of

em ssi ons whenever it nmade the nmgjor inprovenents
that it nade to Unit 1 in 2007 and the najor
I nprovenents that it nmade to Unit 2 in 2010.

There were, as | see it, at least three
different things that could have been done at that
point intinme and | don't know that all of them would
have been prudent. One was to do what Aneren
M ssouri did do which was to nmake the i nprovenents
and take their chances on EPA enforcenent action.

Anot her one was to have nade those inprovenents and
al so added scrubbers to the plant. And the third one
was to engage in what the EPA considered to be
routine mai ntenance, repairs, and replacenents, which
woul d not have triggered the prevention of
significant deterioration under the New Source Rule.

So that's our position about prudency for
getting access to the securitization statute. W're
not saying that Ameren M ssouri should not have any
opportunity to recover costs, it always has those
opportunities to seek themin a general rate case,
and it's our view that securitization should be at
| east, if not nore beneficial than -- in terns of
cost inpacts what would occur during a general rate

case. |If you're using weighted average cost of
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capital as your touchstone for -- versus the bond

rate as your touchstone we believe that's not --
that's going to give you phantom savings. W believe
t he Conm ssion has sufficient discretionin a rate
case that there m ght be a circunstance where it
woul d use sonething greater than the utility's

I mbhedded cost of long termdebt -- or cost of debt or
per haps even wei ghted average cost of capital, but
this is not that case.

And our basis for saying that it --
securitization has to be beneficial to custonmers as
opposed to traditional rate naking is
Section 391.1700.2, Sub 3, Sub C, B which requires
that a financing order find that inposition and
collection of a securitized utility tariff charge are
just and reasonable and in the public interest and
are expected to provide quantifiable net present
val ue benefits to custoners as conpared to recovery
of the conponents of securitized utility tariff costs
t hat woul d have been incurred absent the issuance of
securitized utility tariff bonds.

Now as to the amount that's securitized,
Publ i c Counsel is not suggesting that there need not
be a show ng of harmif a prudency disall owance is

bei ng made to those costs. W agree that woul d be
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the case just as you would do it in a rate case.

JUDGE CLARK: Can you say that again? |
didn't really understand that.

MR WLLIAMS: W're agreeing that there
must be a showing of harmin order to do a
di sal | owance, a financial disallowance to the anounts
that are allowed to be securitized.

JUDGE CLARK: Thank you.

MR WLLIAVS: W're not agreeing there
needs to be a showng of harmin order to -- it's on
the utility -- the utility has the burden of show ng
t he prudence and that does not include anything to do
with harmin ternms of access to the securitization
rout e.

Renmenber the incentive for the utility for
securitization in this case is about a half billion
dollars in cash up front. And it's |ocked in,
they're going to be charging us for 15 years if
Anmeren M ssouri gets what it's asking for here. 1In a
rate case there will be a series of rate cases and
the Comm ssion would consider all of the factors that
it's looking at whenever it's deciding securitization
in the context of rate cases would just be factors it
woul d consider for making its determ nati on of just

and reasonabl e rat es.
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Now, those are the -- | think the two
bi ggest issues. There's also of course the
accunul ated deferred incone tax. |It's our position

the courts have found that the statute, whenever it
tal ks about tax benefits, is tal king about that
accunul ated deferred i ncone tax bal ance and then what
the Comm ssion did in the Liberty securitization case
IS the appropriate way to handl e accunul ated deferred
I ncone taxes in this case as well. Wich of course
Is in contrast to what Staff and Aneren M ssouri is
advocating in this case. W don't believe their
clainmed distinction is significant enough to warrant
any kind of a different result.

We do have a nunber of proposed -- | guess
"Il use the word disall owances, reductions to the
anount that Ameren M ssouri has sought. Sone of
those are based on the uncertainty of themcurrently
and if they were addressed in a rate case they would
be nore certain and al so we woul d antici pate that the
Comm ssion would allow -- the anount that the
Comm ssion would all ow woul d be | ower than what it
would allow -- than it would be under securitization
because it's an up front cost. Basically the bond
rate woul d be higher than what we expect carrying

costs would be for an anorti zation of those costs in
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a future rate case.
Normal |y what the Conmm ssion does is if
there's sone anmobunt It want to -- It wants to flowto

the utility over tinme it's -- takes that anount,
spreads over a term of years, does an anortization to
conme out with an annual anmount and then sonetines it
will allow carrying cost, sonetines it will not. But
| ' ve never seen carrying costs that were at the
wei ght ed average cost of capital. David Miurray's our
W t ness who addresses that.

W al so take issue wth sonme other issue
-- matters that we don't viewto be just tied to the
retirenent of the plant, for exanple the water
nmonitoring and treatnent that's ongoing currently and
it wll -- it's necessary to go on past the
retirement of the plant but it's currently being
done. It's not sonething new that is triggered by
the retirenment of the plant.

Al so Public Counsel w tness John Robinett
has net book values at different points in tine
i ncl udi ng Decenber of 2021 when Aneren M ssouri says
it made the decision to retire Rush Island. And the
val ue -- net book value at that point in tinme, |
believe it was about $27 mllion |lower than the

proj ected net book value at the tine of the

888-893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required Nevada Registration #116F. LEXITAS
www.lexitaslegal.com California Firm Registration #179



© 00 N oo o b~ w N Pk

N N NN NN R R R R R R R R R
g A W N P O © W N O O M W N B O

Evidentiary Hearing April 15, 2024

. . . Page 94
retirenment if it occurs in Septenber, COctober of this

year, roughly 27 mllion. Kind of question why the
utility spent $27 million on a plant after it elected
toretire it.

You were asking sone things about the
federal court litigation. M understanding is that
the renedy is directed towards and it's equitabl e,
the fact that the plant exceeded the permssible
em ssions for a long period of tine. And the
original renmedy order was to require Labadie to treat
Its em ssions to conpensate conparable to the excess
em ssions that Rush Island did over the past decade
or so, 10 to 15 years. Court of Appeals said that
was not perm ssible so the parties are nowtrying to
cone up with another renedy. But | believe it's
directed at sonething to do with conpensating for
em ssions and at least at this stage it's inequitable
relief as opposed to financial relief. | don't know
if 1t'll come down to financial relief or not or how
that will actually play out. But that's ny
under st andi ng of where the federal court is at this
point. 1'd be happy to try to answer any questi ons.

JUDGE CLARK: Any Conm ssion questions?
Chai r Hahn.

CHAIR HAHN: Good norning. | was trying
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torecall fromFriday. So | do just want to be clear

fromthe position statenents. OPC doesn't have a
position on whether or not it is reasonabl e and
prudent to retire -- for Areren to retire or abandon
the plant as they decided in 2021; is that right?

MR WLLIAMS: Not at this point in tine
we do not. We think it depends on the evidence in
t he case.

CHAIR HAHN: Ckay. And then the one
position that you've certified on prudency and
reasonabl eness i s about NSR but you said you're not
-- and | wanted to recap this to nmake sure that |
have it in my mnd correct. Is that there's not --
potentially not enough evidence in the record or in
this case to nmake this determnation; is that
correct, fromwhat you said on Friday?

MR WLLIAMS:  Yes.

CHAIR HAHN: Ckay. Also regarding
prudency, |ssue 3B states that OPC would estinate the
harmto custoners of -- as 34 mllion. Howis that
anmpunt estimated or will you have a witness that can
tal k about that?

MR. WLLIAMS: Jordan Seaver is our
W tness on that matter.

CHAI R HAHN:  Thank you.
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JUDGE CLARK: Are there any other
Comm ssion questions? | hear none. | have one
guestion and just because as you said it it struck ne
and | kind of wanted to know what the difference was.
You said sonetines the Conmission in a rate case --
and I''massum ng you were tal ki ng about plant
retirement. That sonetines the Comm ssion all ows
carrying costs and sonetines it does not; is that
correct?

MR WLLIAMS: Yes. But | wasn't limting
it to plant retirenment. There are nmany tines where
there's sone | arge costs and because rates are
ongoi ng there's a spread over tine. |In fact, it's
been about ten years ago | think Staff started
tracking all of those regulatory anor -- liabilities
and regul atory assets and then each rate case w ||
reset them | know there's been one for OPEBS and
pensions for as long as |I've been doing this which is
over 20 years, so. For exanple.

JUDGE CLARK: Okay. Well, given that it
doesn't just include plant retirenent but as you said
| arger costs. |Is there a defining characteristic
that you have noticed where the Conmm ssion determ nes
that carrying costs should or should not attach?

MR WLLIAMS: Commi ssion discretion iIs
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the best | can give wwth it. | nmean, a lot of tines

-- | think sonetinmes when it's a | arger anount the
Comm ssion's nore inclined to allow sone kind of
carrying cost because of the amount of tinme it takes
-- for exanple in this case, if there was an
anortization for the net plant bal ance for Rush
| sland starting fromthe date it's retired -- let's
assune it's retired in October of this year,
Cctober 15th. It would start -- | would expect the
Staff would treat it as an anortization starting from
that point in time because it's no | onger used and
useful, it should not remain in rate base. And
typically since a plant life's 15 years, which is the
nunber we've been using in this case, you take that
pl ant bal ance, so if it's $500 mlIlion, spread it
over 15 years and then if you want to say because
iIt's going to take 15 years for the utility to
recover that anmount through the rates we're going to
al l ow sonme carrying costs for that.

JUDGE CLARK: Thank you.

MR WLLIAMS: Kind of |ike an accounti ng
authority order except it's done in the context of a
rate case and actually has rate inpacts.

JUDGE CLARK: Al right. Thank you.

MR, WLLIAMS: Anything el se?
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| could clear -- you asked sone questions of M.

Keevil that were a little different than the

this i ssue of what do we need to decide. And
sonet hing occurred to ne that | think mght help
crystalize it in your mnd. And | think | can in

just a mnute, if you'd like to hear it, try to

tal ki ng about a legal issue, a lot of these

questions, and | think -- | don't think anybody's

| can help you with that.
JUDGE CLARK: M. Keevil, | see you
shaki ng your head. Do you have an objection?

MR KEEVIL: Yeah, | think | do, Judge.

JUDGE CLARK: | have no further question?.ge98
Thank you.

MR WLLIAMS: Thank you.

JUDGE CLARK: All right. That is our |ast
opening and we ran a little further beyond when |
intended to take a break. Sorry. M. Lowery, you
| ook |ike you want to say sonet hi ng.

MR LONERY: | was just wondering if maybe

guestions, | think both you and the Chair did, about

crystalize that for you. | nean, really we've been

really hit the nail on the head yet and | think naybe

Because | -- just once again Aneren attenpting just
to get the final bite at the apple. 1|'ve never heard
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of respondl ng openi ng statenents i n Conm SSi on

proceedings. | nean, once again Anmeren is using the
process to benefit itself and taking advantage of
everything and then sone that's offered to them

nmean, | don't know what he's going to say. He m ght
say sonething | |ike, he mght not say sonething I

i ke. Chances are he will say sonething | don't I|ike
but, you know, he m ght get |ucky and get sonething
that | like. But it's just inproper and they
shouldn't be allowed to do things like this, Judge.

MR, LOAERY: Judge, if | may. |'m not
going to respond to what M. Keevil said or didn't
say, |'mresponding to questions that you asked them
that you didn't ask ne that were different questions.
And | think it would be hel pful to the Comm ssion and
my argunents are either -- you either find themto be
right or conpelling or you don't. They're not
evidence. So it's up to you but I think I could
probably cl ear sonethi ng up.

MR. KEEVIL: Judge, | would think if you
had wanted to ask M. Lowery those questions you were
fully capable and able to do so when he was up there
rather than letting M. Lowery choose which questions
he now gets to respond to.

JUDGE CLARK: |I'mgoing to agree. |I'm
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going to agree that each party had an opportunity to

make their opening and the questions they got from

t he Conm ssion and nyself are the questions they got.
There will be plenty of opportunities later for M.
Lowery to clarify these points with his witness and
through his witnesses. So | agree with you, M.
Keevil, and it's not appropriate in this instance.

MR. KEEVIL: Thank you, your Honor.

JUDGE CLARK: As long as |'ve got you
tal ki ng however, there was a question | did forget to
ask you and just a very brief one which is which
wi tness do | need to ask about Staff's proposed
finance order? Wo would be -- who would be the
W tness that | would ask questions about that?

MR. KEEVI L: Depends on what you nean by
about the proposed finance order because there's
different provisions in the finance order. Sone of
themtal k about the finance team process, sone of
themtal k about the -- you know, lots of things in
that finance order. So it depends.

JUDGE CLARK: Who drafted the finance
order?

MR. KEEVIL: An attorney.

JUDGE CLARK: Ckay. So if |I wanted to ask

guestions about provisions of the order, not subjects
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of the order but provisions of the order who woul d |

ask those to?

MR KEEVIL: Again, it depends. | nean,
because sone people woul d know certain things about
It and other people -- it would be the peopl e whose
Issue | guess is inplicated by whatever it is you're
aski ng.

JUDGE CLARK: Okay. The -- hold on just a
second. You said an attorney drafted it. Is it a
single attorney that drafted it?

MR, KEEVIL: No.

JUDGE CLARK: That answers ny question
sufficiently. Thank you, M. Keevil.

MR KEEVIL: Okay.

JUDGE CLARK: All right. | amsorry.

MR, KEEVIL: Judge, you may notice there's
sonme places in there where | put this particular
provision and there's a note to the Comm ssion
because of the way in which the order cane --
proposed order cane about there's a note in there
that in the event of a conflict between Staff's
testinmony or brief or whatever, other evidence and
that order then the -- what is stated in the Staff's
testinmony or evidence should control over whatever's

stated in that order.
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JUDGE CLARK: Ckay. Thank you for that

clarification. | intended to take a recess around
10: 30 but | wanted to get through openings. Openings
ran a little bit long. Wy don't we take about a 15
mnute recess now. And it's 11:07 and | would like
toget -- | wuld like to try and get at |east a

W tness out of the way before we break for lunch. |Is
t hat agreeable to everyone?

MR KEEVIL: Can | ask a question because
of sone of the footnotes in the issue list? How do
you plan to take the issues and the w tnesses, are
you taking like 1A, all the witnesses; 1B, all the
W tnesses or are you going to take like 1 and 2
toget her, you know, what --

JUDGE CLARK: | understand your question
exactly. |'ve been pondering that nyself. What
you're asking is do | want to have the sane w tness
up for 1A have that witness sit down, get up for 1B,
get up for 1C. Unless there's an objection it would
be ny preference to have a witness for an issue up
once whether it be 1A, B, C, D, E or so on and just
address themthat way and only change wi tnesses with
nunbers.

MR. KEEVIL: That nakes sense to ne. |

j ust was curi ous.
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JUDGE CLARK: Are there any objections to

the Comm ssion handling it that way? | believe that
woul d be nore expedient. And | believe we're fairly
cranped for tinme anyway. Al right. 1It's now 11:09.
"1l round it to 11:10. W don't we cone back at
11:25. W are off the record and we are in recess.

(At this point in the proceedings, a short
recess was taken.)

JUDGE CLARK: Ckay. Al right. Let's go
on the record. This is going to be a fairly packed
day. | would |ike to go ahead and proceed wth the
W tnesses for Issue 1. As |I've indicated, | believe
Lansford is going to be the first witness for Ameren.
As |'ve said before, when M. Keevil asked ne about
it, what | would like to do is do wi tnesses by nunber
and not letter. So | don't -- if | got a wtness up,
let's just assune that wtness is up there for the
question and all its various subparts.

M EC has requested to be excluded fromthe
remai nder of today's hearing. | wll grant that
request. So MEC is excused fromthe renai nder of
today's hearing. |1'd like to get through at |east
one W tness before we take a lunch break. Because
we've got so nuch |'m probably going to stick

primarily to about 10 m nute breaks noving forward

888-893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required Nevada Registration #116F. LEXITAS
www.lexitaslegal.com California Firm Registration #179



© 00 N oo o b~ w N Pk

N N NN NN R R R R R R R R R
g A W N P O © W N O O M W N B O

Evidentiary Hearing April 15, 2024

Page 104
and for lunch I'mthinking we'll probably only do

30 mnutes at least till | get a handle on how | ong
-- how tight the schedule is running. So with that
in mnd, Aneren, go ahead and call your w tness.

M5. TATRO Are we doi ng opening
st at enent s?

JUDGE CLARK: Are we doing mni openings?

M5. TATRO  Unh- huh.

JUDGE CLARK: If you'd like to. That
woul d be fi ne.

M5. TATRO | know it slows us down,
but . ..

JUDCGE CLARK: Ckay. We will do mni
openi ngs.

M5. TATRO kay.

MR KEEVIL: Wat?

M5. TATRO | just thought | heard --
was just asking if you were okay.

MR. KEEVIL: Onh. Yeah.

M5. TATRO  Ckay.

JUDGE CLARK: Well, let nme ask real quick.
Have the parties contenplated m ni openings for each?
"Cause it seened |like Friday that's what was
cont enpl at ed.

M5. TATRO That's what | thought too.
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JUDCGE CLARK: Well, I'm asking what the

ot her parties thought as well.

MB. TATRO  Ckay.

MR, WLLIAMS: That's ny under st andi ng
al though often there's not a mni right after the
main for the first issue but | don't object.

MR, OPI TZ: Your Honor, ny understanding
was the parties would have the opportunity for a m ni
opening if they so chose.

JUDGE CLARK: All right. Then that's what
we wll do.

M5. TATRO  Thank you.

OPENI NG STATEMENT

M5. TATRO I'Il try not to take |ong, |
know we need to keep noving. So good norning. M
nane i s Wendy Tatro, | amrepresenting Aneren
M ssouri. And we're starting our issues off here,
Issue 1 | think of it as kind of containing two
di fferent aspects although there's multiple
questions. You have the question of is
securitization in the public interest and expect to
provi de quantifiable net present val ue benefits to
custoners as conpared to traditional financing and
recovery of those costs. | see that is as A E, F,

and G And then the second area is questions around
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how t he bond process works with the designated Staff

representative and financial adviser and | see that
as 1B, C, and D. If that hel ps how we' re thinking
about it.

So starting with the first -- and | woul d
poi nt out that you've answered this question back in
the Liberty case who al so securitized renaining costs
of aretired plant. So theirs was already retired,
ours is to be retired. And in that order this
Comm ssion said for traditional nethod of rate nmaking
woul d occur through a general rate case and woul d
entail anortization of costs to be recovered over a
period of years with the Conpany being allowed to
recover its carrying costs during the period of
anortization. And that anount is the anount that's
appropriate to conpare to cost of the securitized
utility tariff bonds. And M. Lansford has done that
conparison. The final nunbers can be found in his
schedule MJIL-S, for surrebuttal, 4. The results of
that calculation is that the custoner pay
$125 million | ess over 15 years, the net present
value of which is $78 mllion |l ess by using the
securitization instead of using traditional financing
and recovery.

Now, the O fice of Public Counsel defines
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traditional financing differently, he defines it to

i ncl ude no carrying costs, no return, and that neans
no ot her nmethod of financing that includes a return
could conpete. And that's why, as M. Lowery talked
about in his opening, it neans that the
securitization statute could never be used because it
coul d never neet that burden. And as a forner

| egi sl ature, as conm ssioners, as attorneys in the
room we know that that violates the basic principal
of statutory construction and that is to avoid and
observe result. The statute should be read in a way
that allows the statute to nake sense and to be used.
O herwi se you'd have to conclude that the CGeneral
Assenbly wasted its tinme in passing this statute
because on its face it's absurd, illogical, and
unreasonable. So that |ays bear the fallacy of the
OPC ar gunent.

Now, in surrebuttal M. Miurray pivots a
little bit and includes an argunent that even if you
|l ook at it slightly differently in a rising interest
rate environnment, which is where we are today, you
still couldn't neet this standard. Probably not as
bad as his rebuttal position but again it renders the
statute useless. Now, | contend, it is still an

observed result and should not be accepted.
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The second topic that we'll be talking

about today is the bond process and interactions with
your -- with the Conm ssion's staff representative
and financial adviser and the role they play post
financing order. The statute sets out on that --
sets out very clearly what that is and that is
393.1700.2, parens 3, parens, little H It says you
appoint a Staff nenber as a representative, you hire
a financial adviser to advise the representative, the
representative is to provide input to Areren M ssouri
and to coll aborate with Areren M ssouri on all facets
of the process undertaken by Ameren M ssouri to place
the securitized utility tariff bonds to market so
that the representative can provide the Comm ssion
wi th an opinion on the reasonabl eness of pricing
terns and conditions on an expedited basis. The
other thing the statute says is that the
representative cannot direct Aneren M ssouri on how
to place the bonds.

Now, the issue for you to decide is the
| anguage that should be used in the financing order
that you're going to issue. It's Anmeren Mssouri's
position that your order needs to use the | anguage of
the statute and not use | anguage that inplies

authority that isn't granted by the statute. So
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specifically for 1B if you | ook at Areren M ssouri's

proposed financial order which was attached to our
application in this case engagenent with the
financial team begins when there's a final and
unappeal abl e order. Staff wants it to begin earlier.
| think Anmeren M ssouri is generally okay w th naking
that change as long as it's not a requirenent that
any particular neetings have to occur during the tine
of an appeal if there is one. But maybe sonethi ng
wi |l be needed, we don't mnd bringing the financing
team on, that nakes sense.

1Cis the issue of the phrase right to
review which M. Davis uses in his testinony and is
in Staff's proposed financing order multiple tines.
| don't know what review neans. Is it sonething nore
or less than the right to provide input and the right
to collaborate? |If it's nore then it goes beyond the
statutory authority, if it nmeans the sanme then why do
we need it because the statute says what it says. So
| think that's inportant to figure out and defi ne and
why it's always safest of course to stick with the
statutory | anguage.

Finally I wll note that M. Davis uses
the phrase | owest cost as the standard for what's

being securitized but -- and | wll take it that this
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was a passing reference but the | anguage of the

statute is actually a bit different. It says |owest
securitized tariff charges consistent with market
conditions at the tinme the bonds are priced and
consistent with the financing order. So it's | owest
price at the -- |lowest cost to custoners at the tine
that the bond -- the circunstances that exist when
the bond is issued. W're not trying to beat the
timng here.
The financial order submtted by Staff has
a few other concerns and we'll deal wth those in
cross-exam nation. But that is the end of ny opening
statenent. Thank you. Now we'll call Mtch Lansford
to the stand.
JUDGE CLARK: Thank you. M. Lansford,
pl ease cone up to take the stand. Wuld you raise
your right hand to be sworn.
* * * * *
M TCHELL J. LANSFORD,
The wi tness, having been first duly sworn
upon his oath, testified as foll ows:
* * * * *
JUDGE CLARK: Pl ease be seated. Aneren,
pl ease go ahead.

EXAM NATI ON CONDUCTED
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By: M5, TATRO
Q Good norning. Can you state your
name and enpl oyer for the Conm ssion?
A Mtch Lansford and Aneren Services

Conpany.

Q And are you the sane Mtch Lansford
who pre-filed direct, surrebuttal, and
sur-surrebuttal in this case?

A Yes, | am

M5. TATRO Judge, can | ask a question,
clarifying question. Do you want ne to offer all of
his testinony or wait to -- 'cause he -- let ne try
that again. He testifies on nultiple topics. Do we
want to wait and add it to the record after he's been
on the stand for all the nmultiple issues? | just
don't know whether to offer it now or offer it later.

MR, KEEVIL: Judge, to the extent that it
hel ps at all, | think that's a valid question on M.
Tatro's part. The -- several of the wi tnesses, M.
Lansford and M. Mchels, M. Mjors for Staff, have
| ots of issues and | would certainly -- | cannot not
object to -- | would object to the adm ssion of his
entire testinony at this tinme because the -- |'m not
versed in a lot of his issues. So we -- | think each

of the people who, you know, are famliar with that
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I ssue needs to be present when his entire testinony

iIs received into the record. So I think her
suggestion that you wait until he's testified on
everything that he testifies on to receive it into
t he record.

M5. TATRO So just to be clear, the |ast
time he testifies we would nove the entire -- all of
his testinony into the record?

JUDCGE CLARK: That nekes sense to ne. |
mean, usually we've done it at the tine the wtness
initially takes the stand but | think there's good
reasons to do it differently. So |I actually -- |
think that's probably the way to do it.

MR, WLLIAMS: Judge, |'d add for Public
Counsel an objection to admtting the sur-surrebuttal
because of the pending ruling on the Ameren M ssouri
not i on.

JUDGE CLARK: And anytine anybody offers
sonething and it's pointed out to ne |ike you just
did, if it's provisional subject to objections in
this case, subject to the filings that were nade
that's fine. So we wll address it that way. o
ahead.

M5. TATRO Al right. So | won't offer

it.
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BY: Ms. TATRO

Q But | would like to ask you, M.
Lansford, if you have any corrections or additions to
make to your testinony?

A. | do have a couple of corrections.

Q Ckay. Go ahead.

A In nmy surrebuttal testinony on Page 1
| used an ol der tenplate, ny position and title
changed recently. So on Lines 6 and 7 that should be
repl aced and -- del eted and replaced by |I'm enpl oyed
by Ameren Services Conpany as Director of Financial
Reporting and Regul atory Accounting. And then one
other spot in ny sur-surrebuttal, Page 6, M. Mirray
corrected sone of his schedul es which resulted in
necessary corrections to ny testinony here. And
they're just -- they're short.

|"'mon Line 8, reference to M. Mirray's
Schedul e DSM S-2 shoul d be changed to DS -- DM S-4.
And then on Line 10 the figure 70 mllion should be
changed to 59 mllion. And then on Line 12 the
figure 6 mllion should be changed to 17 mllion.
Those are the corrections | have.

M5. TATRO Ckay. | will tender the
W tness for cross.

JUDGE CLARK: Ckay. First
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cross-exam nation of an Aneren M ssouri is by Renew

M ssouri and they are not currently here.

MVECG?

MR. OPITZ: No cross, your Honor.

JUDCGE CLARK: MEC is excused for today.
| wll add themto ny... AARP is excused. Staff?

MR. KEEVIL: No questions on this issue,
Judge.

JUDGE CLARK: And is that on Issue 1 or
any of the 1 issues?

MR. KEEVIL: One.

JUDGE CLARK: Just 1, not the subs?

MR KEEVIL: Issue 1, | neant. I|'msorry.

JUDGE CLARK: Everything. Any
cross-exam nation fromthe Ofice of the Public
Counsel ?

MR WLLIAMS: Not at this tinme. Thank
you.

JUDCGE CLARK: Any questions fromthe
Comm ssi on?

CHAIR HAHN: Yes. Thank you, Judge.

EXAM NATI ON CONDUCTED

BY: CHAIR HAHN

Q Good nor ni ng.

A Good nor ni ng.
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Q |"mgoing to ask you a little bit

about interest rates and your experience. In M.
Murray's surrebuttal he suggested a 4.05 percent
interest rate for traditional rate making for the net
present val ue cal cul ation and he -- which he stated
was Ameren M ssouri's inbedded cost of debt as of
Decenber of last year. Do you know what is the
ol dest and nost recent debt issuance included -- that
i ncluded this inbedded cost of debt?

A What the rate would be?

Q Uh- huh.

A. | do not know off the top of ny head.
| pointed out and | do know, you know, that that
4. 05 percent, you know, inbedded cost of debt is the
accumnul ati on of issuance as that occurred over the
course of 30 years and approxi mately 20 different
I ssuances. But |I'mnot sure what that nost recent
I ssuance is. | can actually tell you, Chair Hahn,
that M. Sagel who wll be testifying |ater today
|l i kel y does know that answer.

Q Ckay. Thank you. Included in
Aneren's proposed financing order is for bonds to be
Issued in nultiple series and tranches. How -- | do
have sonme experience from bond issuances in multiple

series and tranches fromny last life. But -- how
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woul d nul ti ple series inpact the bond issuance

process?

A |'"msorry, Chair Hahn, that's a
little bit outside of the scope of what |I'm you
know, an expert on. And either Aneren M ssouri
W tness Katrina N ehaus or Darryl Sagel would be
better to address that question.

Q Thank you

CHAI R HAHN: No further questions, Judge.
Thank you.

JUDGE CLARK: Thank you, Chair. Just a
nonment, please. Thank you. Apologize for the del ay.
Are there any other Comm ssion questions at this
tinme? | hear none.

EXAM NATI ON CONDUCTED

BY: JUDGE CLARK

Q The filings of your work papers and
supporting schedul es and your direct and surrebuttal
testinony indicates that there were sone corrections
to the direct testinony schedules nmade in the
surrebuttal work papers. Wuld you identify those
changes, pl ease?

A Those changes are changes in anounts.
Apol ogi es, bear with ne here. So specifically as we

| ook at energy transition costs that's where | nade a
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coupl e changes here. And |I'l| describe them One

change was our estimation or our projection of the
capital costs that would need to be incurred froma
hi storical date through the retirenment of the plant,
we revised that estinmation as we were working through
di scovery with the parties, reduced that down and
that had an effect of reducing net plant and service
on Line 3 of Schedule D1 in ny testinony from

$475 mllion dowmn to $473 mllion on Line 3 of ny Sl
Schedul e in surrebutal. So that's one change,
reduction in the anount of additional capital costs
we were expecting to need to incur to keep the plant
safely operating.

That effect of change -- you know, of
reduci ng the net plant balance has a m nor effect on
accunul ated deferred i ncone taxes. So keeping with
t he sanme schedules, D1, Line 7, that -- the
49, 798,000 on Line 7 from Schedul e D1 reduced down
slightly to $49, 634,000 on Schedul e S1.

And then one final change. In ny direct
testinmony we had two separate line itens, one for
asset retirenent obligation Ash bonds on Line 10 and
one -- and a line itemon Line 11 water treatnent and
nmonitoring and those were separate anounts. Agai n,

t hrough the discovery process we |earned that we had
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better estimates of those anbunts. And really what

we were doing is tal king about the sanme thing. So in
my surrebuttal testinony we collapsed that into a
single line itemaccounted for as asset retirenent

obligations for the Ash bond and that revi sed anount,

reduced from2.6 mllion at 4.6 mllion on direct,
the summmation of that, to $4.7 mllion in surrebuttal
on. S1.

Q So should any -- shoul d any
references or any questions about your direct
testi nony work papers, should those instead be
directed to your surrebuttal schedul e work papers for
at least S5 through S8?

A. Yes, that woul d be appropriate.

Q Now, in your surrebuttal testinony
Schedul e MJIL-D8, Line 12, the wei ghted average cost
of capital of 6.88 percent is applied to both col ums
B and C. Now, applying the sane discount rate to
cal cul ate the net present value of the total paynents
under securitization and the anortization scenari os,
t hat doesn't change whether there's a benefit or not,
does it?

A That's correct.

Q It just changes the magnitude of that

benefit; is that correct?
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A Vell, let nme clarify if you woul d,

Judge G ark. You're tal king about Line 12 which is
t he wei ghted average cost of capital that's being
applied as the discount rate. And are you asking
that if you change that discount rate to a different
nunber would it change the benefits?

Q Essentially, yes.

A It woul d change the quantification of
those benefits. It wouldn't change whether there is
or is not a benefit.

Q VWhich is ultimately what | was
getting to. Do you know what the annual esti nated
I ncome tax anmount iS?

A. The annual estimated incone tax -- in
what context is that, Judge d ark?

Q | have m sread ny question. Hold on
Ckay. |I'msorry. So essentially the selection of
the discount rate is not as inportant to the net
present value in terns of there being one, correct?

A. | would agree with that.

Q Ckay. |In the sane schedul e can you
explain how Line 5, increnental taxes, were
cal cul ated for Colum C?

A | can. Wen you're | ooking at Row 4,

the carrying costs, the financing costs and focused
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on Colum C, like you nentioned, the traditional

financing and recovery scenario, that 6.88 percent

wei ght ed average cost of capital includes an equity
conponent and a return on equity. And that equity
conponent, that return on equity would result in, you
know, incone for the Conpany, taxable incone for the
Conmpany, and a tax burden which is what necessitates
I ncrenmental incone taxes, the authorization of a
return on equity as part of Line 4 there.

Q Wiy is the total from-- and I'm
| ooking at cells. And I'm assum ng that corresponds
to Cell Block 15 on your work paper, correct?

A Judge C ark, | do have a conputer
that | could bring up and | ook at the executable
version otherwse | don't have cell references in
front of ne. Wuld that be okay?

Q That woul d be absol utely acceptabl e
to ne.

M5. TATRO May | approach?

JUDCGE CLARK: Pl ease.

MR WLLIAMS: Judge.

JUDGE CLARK: Yes.

MR, WLLIAMS: | can see fromhere there's
sonething on the nonitor at the witness stand. |

don't know -- on the screen. | don't know what it
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VIDEO TECHNICIAN: It's the presentation
fromearlier

JUDCGE CLARK: Thank you, Brian.

THE WTNESS: | have that pulled up.

BY: JUDGE CLARK

Q Ckay. And what we just tal ked about
in regard to Line 5 and increnental taxes calcul ated
that corresponds to Cell 15, F15 on your work papers,
correct?

A That's correct.

Q Wiy is the total fromCell F12
multiplied by .01862?

A. That's to reverse out the debt
conponent of the weighted average cost of capital.
So isolate the increnental incone taxes to just the
equity conponent.

Q And are the increnental taxes the
result of the bond principal being recovered in
revenues?

A. The increnental taxes are a result of
recovery of the financing costs, the carrying costs,
and this traditional financing recovery scenario
that's represented by Columm C here.

Q Ckay. So nore than just the

888-893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required Nevada Registration #116F. LEXITAS
www.lexitaslegal.com California Firm Registration #179




© 00 N oo o b~ w N Pk

N N NN NN R R R R R R R R R
g A W N P O © W N O O M W N B O

Evidentiary Hearing April 15, 2024

. . Page 122
princi pal ?

A That's correct.

Q Wiy is it only appropriate to include
I ncrenental incone taxes in Columm C, anortization?

A. | f conparing to Column -- you know,
Colum Cto Colum B, Columm C includes financing
costs through neans of traditional financing and
recovery, that includes that equity conponent. It's
that equity conponent that contributes to taxable
I ncome and necessitates incone tax costs. A debt
only scenario, which is what we're eval uating, Columm
B, you know, has no contribution to taxable incone
and therefore no need for increnental incone taxes.
The i nterest expense, you know, com ng fromthe debt
Is a deduction on your tax return.

Q Now, do you have your Schedul e MIL- S8
in front of you?

A | do.

Ckay. Line 5 description is carrying
costs. And this is the interest rate to be applied
to the total on Line 3 and nonthly paynents over
50 years. Except Columm C al so includes the
I ncrenmental incone taxes; is that correct?

A. | think you said Line 5 includes the

carrying cost but it's Line 4. But otherw se, yes.
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Q Ch, thank you. Now, in that sane

schedule, say in Cells D17 and F17 show t he Excel
formula to calculate what's described as nonthly
paynents; is that correct?

A That is correct.

Q And a |l ot of these are just to kind
of clarify so that |I can --

A Sure, absol utely.

Q And D27 and F27 cal cul ates the net
present value of an investnent based on the di scount
rate in a series of future paynents. And here that's
15 years tinmes 12 or 180 paynents; is that correct?

A That is correct.

Q In Line 25 the inconme -- in this --
|"msorry, this is a different schedule. MIL-S7.

A Ckay. I'mpulling that up. |I'm
t here.

Q And what |'mtrying to do is trying
to clarify anmounts in your surrebuttal schedule. The
I ncome tax qualified here on Line 25 in Colum B is
only related to the capital sub account and not the
i ncone tax on the bond principal, right?

A That's correct. The capital sub
account only.

Q Now, on the Enpire -- are you
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famliar with the Enpire securitization case? To an

extent ?

A To an extent.

Q kay. If this is beyond you, let ne
know. Enpire included incone tax as an ongoi ng
financing cost in the final issuance advice letter
that was submtted to the Comm ssion. WII| Aneren or
t he special purpose entity be required to pay simlar
I ncone taxes?

A It depends on how t he Comm ssion
orders as it relates to another issue | think we have
reserved for Wdnesday around accunul ated deferred
I ncome taxes. But it could.

Q | f the Comm ssion were to decide --
and are you famliar with howthe -- and |I'l| just
call it ADIT. Are you famliar with how the ADI T was

resolved in Enpire?

A. I'mfairly famliar.
Q Ckay. If it was resolved the sane
way would Enpire -- or would Aneren be required to

pay those taxes?

A Yes. We woul d have increnent al
I ncone taxes to add to the ongoing financing costs
her e.

Q Ckay. Do you know the esti nated
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val ue of that anount?
A |"ve quantified that. It's
approximately $3.7 mllion on an annual basis over

the 15 year period.

Q Did you include those estinated --
|"msorry. Wre those incone taxes included in your
estimat ed and ongoi ng financing costs and ultimately
the net present value calculation for the
securitization scenario?

A The -- nmy Schedule SE reflects out
the Conpany and Staff's position as it relates to
ADI T whi ch does not require any sort of increnental
ongoi ng financing costs therefore, you know, it does
-- you know, therefore those increnental incone tax
costs as ongoing financing costs are not refl ected.

Q Ckay. So just to clarify. You
didn't ook at the scenario where the Conmm ssion
m ght determne ADIT the sane way as Enpire, correct?

A | don't have any testinony, you know,
on that. You'll get roughly the sane net present
value. You know, it's simlar to your question as it
relates to the discount rate. You could change the
di scount rate and you coul d change the NPV of
benefits, you know, slightly but you won't get a

di fferent decision or different concl usion whet her
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there are or are not net present value benefits. |If

you pivoted to the Enpire nethod, I'Il call it, for
ADI T and incone tax's ongoing financing cost, you'll
simlarly not change your conclusion, you won't get a
di fferent conclusion whether there are or are not net
present val ue benefits.

Q Ckay. So even if you did the tax
cal cul ation the way Enpire -- the way the Conm ssion
ordered Enpire to handle ADIT you would still have a
net present val ue?

A That's correct.

Q Thank you.

MR, KEEVIL: Judge, could | ask -- did
you -- when you stated that last follow up, did you
nmean the net present val ue benefit?

JUDGE CLARK: Yes.

MR KEEVIL: Okay.

JUDGE CLARK: Bear with nme just a nonent.

BY: JUDGE CLARK

Q What happens if Rush Island -- what
I f Rush Island doesn't retire on October 15th, what
changes t hen?

A Vell, alot of the costs that we have
here as energy transition costs and which ultimtely

I npact the net present value of benefits cal cul ation
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here, you know, could change, would change, you know,

slightly. But -- maybe |I'm not getting to the
right --

Q No. No, | think you are.

A -- answers to your question.

Q | think maybe |I haven't been as
clear. Let's say the Conm ssion grants
securitization and let's say that the plant doesn't
cl ose on Cctober 15th, for whatever reason M SO
petitions the Court, you know, whatever, it stays
open, has Aneren | ooked at that scenario?

A. That woul d be sort of outside of ny
scope unfortunately, Judge d ark.

Q No. Nothing unfortunate about it.
If |I'masking a question that doesn't apply to you,
that's the correct answer.

A |"mtrying to think if I could point
you to the right witness to answer that question.
And |I''m honestly not sure who m ght answer that
questi on.

Q And this -- you may not be able to
answer this question either but |I'malso going to ask
it also for the benefit of your attorney. No, |I'm
going to hold on that one. Those are all the

guestions | have.
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JUDGE CLARK: Any re-cross?
MR WLLIAMS: | do, if no one el se does.
JUDGE CLARK: Hold on. [I'mjust going to

kind of go through ny list. MECG?

MR. OPITZ: No, thank you, your Honor.

JUDCGE CLARK: Staff?

MR. KEEVIL: No thank you.

JUDGE CLARK: M. Wllians, it is your
turn.

MR, WLLIAMS: Thank you. It |ooks |ike
iIt's afternoon now.

EXAM NATI ON CONDUCTED

BY: MR WLLIAMS

Q Good afternoon, M. Lansford.

A Good afternoon.

Q You renenber the questions you got
fromJudge G ark about ADI T and you tal ked about the
-- you calculated a $3.7 mllion per year incone tax
I npact if the Comm ssion treated securitization --
the ADIT the sane as it did in the Liberty case, do
you recall that?

A | do.

Q When you did that $3.7 mllion per
year incone tax inpact, did you give any credit

beyond -- well, let's back up. How nuch is the
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bal ance anticipated to be for ADIT as of October 15th

of 20247

A Approxi mately $136 mllion. That
reflects the total balance of ADI T including excess
deferred i ncone taxes, which is often, you know --
whi ch is one conponent of ADIT.

Q Thank you. That's what | was | ooking
for. And if you follow the Liberty approach, what
woul d be the net present value of AD T for purposes
of the offset to the -- what would otherw se be the
securitization anmount?

A. The Liberty approach, as | understand
it, would result in approximately 87, $88 mllion
offset to energy transition cost. | think that's --
| think that's M. R ley's position in this case.

Q And what's the difference between 136
mllion and the 87 mllion in terns of dollars?

A lt's $49 million which is the of fset
t hat the Conpany recomends energy transition costs
in this case.

Q And that $49 million, is that dollars
that Ameren M ssouri anticipates would -- the benefit
of which would flow to custoners?

A. The benefit of the $49 mllion woul d

flow to custoners as a reduction of energy transition
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costs in this case.

Q Under the Liberty scenario of
cal cul ating ADI T?

A |"msorry, |I'mnot follow ng that
guestion. Can you pl ease restate?

Q Wll, if I -- I"mtrying to
understand if your answer was predicated on Aneren
M ssouri's approach or if it's predicated on the
Li berty approach. 'Cause the net present value is
the 87 mllion but the difference between the 136
mllion and the 87 mllionis 49 mllion which is
going to be an anobunt that Aneren M ssouri wll be
retaining currently, correct?

A. Coul d you restate that question,
pl ease?

Q Ckay. The total ADIT bal ance as of
Cctober 15th is 136 mllion, anticipated to be,
correct?

A That's correct.

Q Under the Liberty approach 87 mllion
of that would be used as an offset to the anount
that's securitized, correct?

A That's correct.

Q And the 49 mllion would still be on

Ameren M ssouri's books, would it not?
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A The entire -- the entirety of the

$136 mllion deferred tax liability will be on
Anmeren's books regardl ess of any offset to energy
transition costs as part of this case.

Q Well, if the plant's retired why
would it show up -- why would ADIT for Rush Island
show up on Aneren M ssouri's books post retirenent?

A Because we owe those tax liabilities
to the taxing authority in future periods. You nust
retain that bal ance on your books until you satisfy
t he obligati on.

Q Do you have any I RS authority for
your position?

A No. Yeah, | don't think | -- the IRS
woul d be the authority for that -- you know,
necessarily for that. W're talking about financi al
accounting, you know, financial accounting books and
records. So it is, you know, in conformty with GAP

| don't have a citation for you on that.

Q Whenever you're calculating the
i ncone tax inpact at $3.7 mllion per year, did you
take into account the 49 mllion at all?

A Absol ut el y.
Q And how did you do that?

A | f you were going to go with the
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Li berty approach, which is -- you know, 'l sinplify

it to that, you know, as | understand it reduce
energy transition costs by 87 or $88 mllion that's
instead of -- instead of reducing energy transition
costs by 49 mllion, the difference between the 87 or
$87 mllion and $49 million is 30 -- approxi mately
$38 million. And that's the exact streamof -- you
know, of costs, of future obligations that you' d have
to solve for if you were devel oping and distributing
the incone tax rel ated ongoi ng financing costs that
woul d be necessary to calculate. So you're trying to
produce -- so that calculation, the $3.7 mllion on
annual basis over 15 years produces a net present
value of the difference -- of 37 or $38 mllion, the
di fference between OPC s position and the Conpany and
Staff's position as it relates to offsets to ADIT in
thi s case.

Q Does it include any carrying costs?

A It does not.

Q But under the statute ADIT woul d not
be an offset against rate base, correct?

A | f you're asking whether in the next
general rate proceeding, sort of outside of the
securitization case, whether ADIT relating to Rush

| sland woul d offset in that proceeding it's ny
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under standi ng the statute calls for that to be

excluded for rate base offset going forward.

Q And then Judge O ark asked you sone
questions about what if Rush Island didn't close on
Cct ober 15th of 2024, what kind of inpact it would
have, you recall those?

A | do.

Q Didn't Areren M ssouri do a --
essentially a conparison between Septenber 1 and
October 15th in its direct case?

A Bot h our direct case and our
surrebuttal case. But |I'mnot aware of any anal ysis
t hat goes beyond COctober 5th |ike Judge O ark was
cont enpl ati ng.

Q But you can |ook at a nonth and a
hal f of inpact between Septenber 1st and Cctober 15th
to get a sense of the magnitude of the inpact?

A. | believe that woul d be appropri ate.

MR, WLLIAMS: No further questions at
this time. Thank you.

JUDGE CLARK: Any re-direct?

M5. TATRO Yes. Thank you.

EXAM NATI ON CONDUCTED

BY: Ms. TATRO

Q So M. Lansford, | want go back to
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this idea of Rush |Island not closing on October 15th

that you tal ked about both with the Judge and M.
WIllianms. Do you renenber those conversations?

A | do.

Q First of all, what is your
under st andi ng of whether there's any like -- real
i kel i hood of Rush |sland operating beyond
Cct ober 15t h?

A ' mnot aware of any |ikelihood of
that occurring. You know, | thought we were ordered
to close it no later than October 15th. But again,
you know, that's ny understandi ng.

Q And who woul d pl ace that order?

A. That order cane from Judge Sippel in
the NSR case as far as |'m aware.

Q So presuming for a nonent, let's say
Rush | sl and stayed open for another nonth, | think
the scenario that the Judge said was, you know,
per haps M SO says we need them and petitions the
Judge and he agrees. So let's assune that happened.
How does -- is there a process in the securitization
that would reconcile the difference?

A Absolutely. Any difference between
actual cost and estinmated costs are required per the

statute to be reconciled in those future general rate
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proceedi ngs to nmake sure the custonmers ultimtely

just pay the exact actual cost if that occurs.
Q And when you -- when | use the word
reconcil e do you understand that to nean giving back

to custonmers?

A Yes. Either recovering from or
gi vi ng back, you know, both ways. | think -- you
know, | think the statute contenpl ates getting the

nunbers correct.

Q | don't have any further questions.
Thank you.

JUDGE CLARK: Thank you. Thank you, M.
Lansford. You can step down.

THE W TNESS: Thank you.

M5. TATRO Judge, may | ask a question?
| know we were planning on going to lunch, | know
everybody wants to go to lunch. M. N ehaus has a
flight this evening so | was curious, if there
weren't very many questions, could we put her on so
t hat she can head back to St. Louis to catch her
flight?

JUDGE CLARK: Are there any objections to
goi ng ahead and putting on wtness N ehaus prior to
taking a lunch break or is everybody just wanting a

| unch break now?
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MR WLLIAMS: | don't anticipate
ext ensi ve exam nati on.

JUDGE CLARK: M. Keevil, do you have an
ext ensi ve exam nation for Ms. N ehaus?

MR. KEEVIL: No. Not extensive.

JUDGE CLARK: (Ckay. Let's go ahead and
take the next w tness.

M5. TATRO  Thank you. Anmeren M ssouri
calls Katrina N ehaus.

JUDGE CLARK:  Wuld you raise your right
hand to be sworn.

* * * * *
KATRI NA NI EHAUS,

The wi tness, having been first duly sworn

upon her oath, testified as foll ows:
* * * * *

JUDGE CLARK: Pl ease be seated. Aneren.

EXAM NATI ON CONDUCTED

BY: M. TATRO

Q Good afternoon. Can you please state
your nane and pl ace of enploynent for the Conm ssion?

A Katri na N ehaus and Gol dnman Sachs.

Q And are you the sane Katrina N ehaus
that filed direct testinony in this case?

A | am
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Q Do you have any corrections or
additions to nmake to your testinony?
A | do not.
Q And if | were to ask you the
gquestions that are contained in your witten
testinmony, would your answers be substantially
simlar?
A They woul d.
M5. TATRO | nove -- | don't know what

this exhibit nunber is, probably 2 -- 4. Sorry.
Exhibit 4 into the record and tender the wtness for
Cr oss-exam nati on.

JUDCGE CLARK: Any objections to admtting
Exhibit 4 onto the hearing record? | hear and see
none. Exhibit 4 is admtted onto the hearing record.
Pl ease proceed. Al right. Any cross-exam nation
from-- well, Renew M ssouri's not here. MECG?

MR. OPITZ: No, thank you, your Honor.

JUDCGE CLARK: Any cross-exam nation from
t he Conm ssion Staff?

MR KEEVIL: Very briefly, Judge.

EXAM NATI ON CONDUCTED

BY: MR KEEVIL

Q Good afternoon, Ms. Niehaus. Have

you had an opportunity or did you -- | know you had

888-893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required Nevada Registration #116F. LEXITAS
www.lexitaslegal.com California Firm Registration #179



© 00 N oo o b~ w N Pk

N N NN NN R R R R R R R R R
g A W N P O © W N O O M W N B O

Evidentiary Hearing April 15, 2024

Page 138
an opportunity. D d you review the --

MR KEEVIL: Well, let ne ask a stupid
guestion here, Judge. |s she up here on just Point 1
-- Issue 1 or is she also up here on Issue 2?

JUDGE CLARK: On Issue 2? Hold on.

MR, KEEVIL: | believe she was listed as

an Aneren witness on Issue 2. But | don't know what
you' ve --

JUDCGE CLARK: Are you going to be calling
Ms. Niehaus for |ssue 2?

MR KEEVIL: AmI1? |'mnot.

JUDGE CLARK: No, not -- no, not you. I'm
aski ng Amer en.

M5. TATRO She is listed on Issue 2,
so. ..

JUDGE CLARK: If we're -- if we're trying
to catch a flight.

M5. TATRO  Yeah.

MR KEEVIL: Right. That's why --

M5. TATRO Qur people -- yeah. That's
good. | apologize for not nentioning that when |
made ny request. So are people able to do their
cross-exam nation on |Issue 2 of her now or not?

MR WLLIAVS: | have no objection with
t hat .
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JUDCGE CLARK: Does MECG have any

obj ecti on?
MR OPITZ: No objection.
JUDCGE CLARK: And no other parties are

here right now So we will go ahead and take up both

| ssue 1 and 2 with Ms. N ehaus for expedi ency sake.

M5. TATRO  Thank you very nuch. And
t hank you for catching that, Jeff.

MR. KEEVIL: Yeah. No problem

EXAM NATI ON CONDUCTED

BY: MR KEEVIL

Q Ms. Ni ehaus, back to ny question |
was going to ask. Did you read the list of issues in
this case?

A Do you have a copy that | can review?

Q Actual ly what | have here is Public
Counsel's statenent of position.

M5. TATRO Do you have a copy for ne?

MR. KEEVIL: No. That was ny only copy.
Sorry.

THE WTNESS: Do you want to share it with
nme? Can you ask your questions without it?

MR KEEVIL: Wll, --

THE W TNESS: Ckay.

MR, KEEVIL: | actually -- | need it back
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before we ask --

MR LONERY: |Is this OPC s position
st at enent ?

MR. KEEVIL: Yeah.

THE WTNESS: |s there a particular
position you' d like me to focus on for the purpose of
t he question?

BY: MR KEEVIL

Q No. No. | was just wondering if
you' ve seen these before. Have you read these?

A | have not.

Q Ckay. Well, then if you haven't it's
a good thing I it gave to you because you're going to
have to be able to --

M5. TATRO Do you need your copy back?

MR. KEEVIL: Yeah. It would be nice.

M5. TATRO May | approach?

JUDGE CLARK: Pl ease.

MR KEEVIL: Oh, | can read it off this
conputer, Wendy. That's --

M5. TATRO Well, she's already got it.

THE WTNESS: All right.

MR, KEEVIL: Al right. Thanks.

BY: MR KEEVIL

Q Ms. Ni ehaus, one of the questions

888-893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required Nevada Registration #116F. LEXITAS
www.lexitaslegal.com California Firm Registration #179



© 00 N oo o b~ w N Pk

N N NN NN R R R R R R R R R
g A W N P O © W N O O M W N B O

Evidentiary Hearing April 15, 2024

. . Page 141
here under 2Al says, should the issuance advice

letter include a conparable securities pricing

anal ysis as recommended by OPC wi tness Miurray. Have
you read M. Miurray's testinony regarding the

I ssuance advice letter and whether it should include
a conparabl e securities pricing anal ysis?

A It would be relatively unusual to
I ncl ude such an anal ysis given there are not a
significant nunber of conparable securities for the
pur pose of conparing utility securitizations or rate
reduction bonds to other securities in the market and
so it is not sonething that woul d be done as part of
the i ssuance advice letter in general for these types
of transactions.

Q Ckay. 2B, issue states, should the
certification letters provided by the underwiters
and Staff's financial adviser be redacted rather than
classified as confidential in their entirety. Do you
have a -- first of all let ne ask you, the
underwiter certification letters should they be
classified as confidential in their entirety. Are
you famliar with that?

A. | am

Q And why is -- why are they classified

as confidential in their entirety?
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A. As far as I|'"'maware all underwiter

certifications have been classified as confidential.
They are provided to Ameren who is the underwiter's
client in this case and are nade available for their
use. The certifications contain things |like
confidential sort of trade secrets process as far as
how bonds are marketed and other information that an
underwiter would be unlikely to want to share with
the market nore broadly. |It's their secret sauce for
how t hey do deals and that is part of why you woul d
hire Gol dman Sachs as opposed to anot her bank for
exanpl e.

Additionally, froma liability
perspective, in general | believe nost underwiters
woul d require that the certification be held
confidential and, you know, w thout holding it
confidential you may even have certain underwiters
who are unable to participate in a transaction
because of the additional liability you' d be asking
themto take on.

Q So do you believe requiring Public
Counsel's -- or adopting, | should say, Public
Counsel 's recommendati on woul d reduce the nunber of
responses that a utility conpany would receive in

response to solicitation for underwiters in future
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securitizatli on pr oceedi ngs?

A It may. |t would be a deviation from
mar ket standard and | suspect would require careful
analysis by all of the underwiters and potentially
addi tional costs to conpensate themfor the
additional liability they would be taking.

Q Ckay. Let ne -- excuse ne. |'m
going to skip C and go to 2D which asks should --
excuse ne, should the Conmm ssion order Aneren
M ssouri to provide the issuance advice letter and
supporting work papers to other interested parties at
the same tine it provides information to Staff's
finance team Do you have an opinion on that?

A. What other parties are you
ref erenci ng?

Q Wll, I"massumng it would be --
first let's limt it to parties to this case.

A. You know, | think the way that the
process has run in Mssouri is the market standard
and deviating fromthat would require an anal ysis by
Aneren and underwiters and other participants. |I'm
not clear on what is trying to be achi eved through
this and so nmaybe if you can give ne sone gui dance on
what other parties and what direction you' re going

and | can be nore hel pful.
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Q These aren't ny positions or issues

so |'mnot exactly sure nyself.

A Ckay.

Q But did | hear you say that what has
been done in the Enpire and the Liberty -- excuse ne,
Enpire is Liberty. The Enpire and the Evergy cases
in Mssouri is consistent wwth industry practice?

A | was not involved in Evergy, | was
only involved in Enpire so | can only speak to that.

Q kay.

A And Enpire was in line wth other
transactions |I've worked on in the market.

Q Ckay. What ot her states have you

wor ked transacti ons?

A So quite a long list. Starting from
west to east, Hawaii, California, --

Q Let nme -- can | just ask how many
I nstead of --

A | have it sonmewhere in ny testinony.
It would be a -- | would have to go back in and | ook.

But we are one of the primary underwiters of these
transacti ons and have been involved in quite a nunber
of states, Hawaii, California, Florida, Texas, New
Hanpshire, M ssouri, M chigan, South Carolina,

Kentucky. Probably I'mm ssing a few
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Q Ckay. Did you read M. Murray's
surrebuttal testinony in the section specifically on
post financing order process and procedure?

A | would have to refresh on that, |
don't recall what it says.

Q Ckay. | think that's all | have,
Judge. Thank you.

JUDGE CLARK: Any cross-exam nation from
O fice of the Public Counsel?

MR WLLIAMS: Yes. Thank you.

EXAM NATI ON CONDUCTED

BY: MR WLLIAMS

Q Good afternoon, Ms. Ni ehaus.

A. Hi .

Q You were involved in the Liberty
securitization transaction in Mssouri, correct?

A | was, sir.

Q Do you know what bond yields were

achi eved for that transaction?

A. The shorter class priced at 90 basis
points over treasury. |'d have to | ook at the exact
bond yield, 1'd need to pull sone papers from ny

files. And the longer tranche wth an 11 year
wei ghted average life priced at 95 over.

Q And were you the person who certified
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that those yields were the | owest possible cost?

A At the tinme of issuance, yes.

Q How did you determ ne they were the
| owest possi ble cost?

A. So it's an extended process. First,
it's about confirmng that we've gone out to the
br oadest possible nmark so that's ABS investors,
corporate investors and mnunici pal bond investors.
It's a conbination of |ooking at subscription |evels
in the bonds, so how many orders do we get in, what
feedback are we getting as part of those orders or
t hat bi dding process fromthe market, understandi ng
how t hat book is kind of conposed and cone together.

Certain investors may have mnimumyield
targets or have indicated that they have m ni num
spread requirenents as part of their -- as part of
their order. Their order sizes may change and
fluctuate depending on what the ultimte pricing
level is. W then also conpare the pricing levels to
ot her types of securities. None are perfect but it
Is everything from nunici pal bonds to corporate bonds
to ABS securities. And we also then | ook at
secondary market trading |levels. And as you | ook at
all of that, so how the process was run as well as

how t he transacti on has cone together in the context
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of market, we're able to nake the certification.

Q And | think you may have done it but
| just want to confirm You nentioned that you get
mar ket feedback. D d you explain what narket
f eedback you were referring to in your answer?

A So mar ket feedback will conme in with
records frominvestors. That feedback may be
sonmething like ny order is good at 90 basis points
over the reference treasury rate. | drop out at 85.

Sonetines we get that kind of feedback, sonetines we

do not. Investors may share different anounts of
information. It's a little bit like you putting an
offer in to buy a house, right. It is a conpetitive

process and dependi ng on how conpetitive it is they
may share different information to try to be hel pful
or assure that they get allocations of the bonds.

Q Does Gol dnman Sachs intend to provide
Its certification letter in this case as confidenti al
inits entirety?

A. Yes. That woul d be the market
st andar d.

Q Wiy is everything in such a letter
confidential ?

A So as | explained before, the letter

is witten for the benefit of Aneren who is the
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client of the underwiters. The infornation that

provided -- is provided in there includes in certain
cases trade secrets around process, how we run our
process, what we | ook at as conp -- as sort of
conparative investnent opportunities. And, you know,
if I -- all of that information were to be nmade
publ i c ot her banks who are peers and conpetitors of
m ne would be able to say |'ve reviewed all of the
certifications and | understand how t hese deals work
and so therefore | should be a part of the next

t ransacti on.

Additionally, the information needs to be
reviewed in its entirety to really understand how t he
deal canme together and so redacting is challenging
because, you know, | think you have to get the full
pi cture of the conplexity of the transaction in the
market at the tinme of issuance. And then third, by
maki ng this public you' re exposing your underwiters
to additional potential liability and in general, you
know, there would need to be conpensation in sone way
t hrough additional indemifications or additional
paynment for that additional liability which would,
you know, theoretically drive up the price of the
transaction. And then additionally you' re deviating

from mar ket standard so certain banks, their |egal
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departnents nmay not even allow themto participate if

the certification were to be nade public.

Q Coul dn't portion -- those portions of
the certification letter that are considered to be
trade secret or otherw se disclosing process
information | guess be redacted and the remai nder of
the letter nmade public?

A | think reviewmng the letter w thout
understandi ng the entire process is not useful,
right. You'd need to understand the entirety of the
process that was undertaken and then again you are
asking the underwiters to be exposed to additional
liability which would deviate fromwhat | amaware to
be market standard. And usually there are costs with
devi ati ons for market standard.

Q So a letter that just showed that
ol dman Sachs had done a certification letter on the
Rush | sl and transaction bond i ssuances woul d be such
a deviation it would cause problens even if the
confidential -- or trade secret |I'll call it
i nformati on was redact ed?

A As you think about providing the
letter in general one of the facets of -- or one of
the pillars that we rely on is you' ve adhered to

mar ket standards and you're attenpting to achi eve the
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| owest cost by running a process in the nost
efficient way, right. Adding additional -- or
changing from25 plus years of market standard for
provi ding these certifications would |ikely incur
additional |egal costs as you have to have additi onal
review. It may, as | nentioned, put certain
underwiters in a position where they are unable to
participate and, you know, in general it would be a
devi ation fromthe market standard.

Q Who sets the market standard?

A Twenty-five years of history.

Q And how | ong has Gol dman Sachs been
i nvolved in creating net market standard?

A. | have been involved in all of the
transacti ons Gol dnan has been a part of for the | ast
19 years, | joined the firmin Septenber of 2005.
Prior to that | believe -- | would have to go back
and check but | believe Goldman's first participation
was in the late "90s with the California transactions
in the market.

Q So pretty nmuch back to the begi nning
of the market?

A Yes. | am not aware of any deal that
has deviated fromthis standard.

Q No further questions at this tine.
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Thank you.

JUDGE CLARK: Are there any Comm ssion
gquestions?

CHAI R HAHN:  Judge.

EXAM NATI ON CONDUCTED

BY: CHAI R HAHN

Q Thank you, Ms. Niehaus. Earlier 1'd
asked a question of M. Lansford and | think you
m ght be the nore appropriate person to ask. Can you
tal k about the benefits of offering either multiple
series or multiple tranches? It |ooks |ike you had
per haps suggested a single series with two tranches.
Can you tal k about why the rational e behind that?

A. Sure. So for these transactions, the
idea is that you want to create classes or tranches
of debt that are nost attractive to the market and
are going to result into -- to the | owest cost for
rate payers dependi ng upon the shape of the yield
curve, investor sentinent and different investor
types, so banks versus insurance conpani es versus
asset nmanagers. You want to cut up the cash fl ows
that you -- so that you're able to produce bonds that
are nost relevant based on the market conditions at
the tinme of issuance.

So we do know that as part of the
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financing order you will set what the | ast paynent

date is and we wi ||l know what the shape of the bond
cash flows need to be, where we cut the bonds and,
you know, whether we do a shorter class and a | onger
cl ass, one longer class, three, you know, sort of
medi um -- you know, three nedium sized classes. That
woul d all be dependent on nmarket denmand at the tine
and where we think we're going to be able to get the
nost traction wth investors and reach the broadest
type of investors.

So for exanple at the nonent corporate
style bond investors prefer |onger duration or |onger
maturity bonds and so we have suggested a | onger
cl ass that woul d appeal to those corporate style
investors. |If sonmething were to change in the market
and corporate investors were not to be as interested
In these types of securities we may choose to do a
single class or we nmay choose sone other structure
that is sort of -- and I'm saying we may but you know
sort of the underwiters may. And, you know, that is
sort of the regular process for how these bonds are
I ssued. Wiether it's a single class or nmultiple
classes it would not change the tineline for the
bonds to be issued.

Q That's really -- that's really
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hel pful. Thank you. Does that nmultiple series or

mul tiple tranches, does that inpact the cost to the
Conpany for issuance or is it a flat fee, how does
t hat general structure work?

A. So in general underwiters are paid
-- it is generally 40 basis points on the total size
of the transaction. So whether it is one class or
three classes or four classes underwiters are not
paid any different or conpensated any differently.

Q That's very hel pful. Thank you.

JUDGE CLARK: Are there any ot her
Comm ssi on questions? | hear none. |'ve got a few
questions and |I'mgoing to bounce around a bit.

THE WTNESS: |['Il do ny best to follow
you.

EXAM NATI ON CONDUCTED

BY: JUDGE CLARK

Q Thank you. 1'mgoing to start with
what's nost forefront in nmy head in regard to M.
WIllianms' cross-examnation. Wuld it be fair to say
t hat based upon your answers that changi ng from what
is market to standard for the certification letter
wi Il either or both narrow the pool of avail able
underwiters and increase the costs of underwiting?

A | think that is a fair statenent. At
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the very least it would require, in ny experience,

significant legal review which requires significant
| awyer costs, sorry to the |lawers in the room as
they bill by the hour and you're doi ng sonething that
devi ates fromthe market standard. And you are al so
asking underwiters to take additional liability that
will require a reevaluation by underwiters as to
whether that is liability they are willing to take
and that may result in underwiters falling out of
conpetitive process.

Q Now, as you indicated, you' ve been
i nvolved in both so far the Asbury securitization as
wel | as now the Rush Island securitization case.
What do you see as the major differences in
securitization between these two retirenments?

A So | think size of transaction is
probably the nost notable. This wll be a slightly
| arger transaction which will -- which nay all ow us
to have nore flexibility on a single class versus
mul tiple classes for the issuance as we |l ook to
create bonds with liquidity in each class that make
the nost sense for investors. And, you know, | think
that is really the big difference. The nice thing
about this transaction is the investor universe wll

be used to seeing M ssouri transactions, they wll
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understand the M ssouri Conmm ssion and their process,

and they wll understand the strength of the

| egi sl ative process in Mssouri. And so to sone
extent that makes the narketing of the second or
third transaction a little bit easier because you're
not breaki ng new ground.

Q VWhat are the inpacts of nmultiple
series on the up front costs outside of the
underwiter's fees?

A There should be no inpact. Aside
from achi eving the | owest cost by creating bonds that
are nost favorable froman investor's perspecti ve.

Q Now, you had an opportunity to listen
to Aneren's mni opening, correct?

A. Uh- huh. Yes, sir.

Q And in that there was sone tal k about
the right to review and Staff finance team
participation. And | know that you have nothing to
do with any of that. However, certainly it is of
concern given the -- you've done a few of these now
and the cases have varied. And certainly it's a
concern that if Staff and their finance team cannot
be involved until an order is final and unappeal abl e
alot of that is in the control of a lot -- that puts

a lot of control of how nuch invol venent the finance
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team has in the hands of the utility dependi ng on how

proactively the utility engages with the SEC

So in other words, one difference that |
not ed between the Evergy and the Enpire
securitizations is when the SF-1 was filed and
whereas it appears that Liberty waited a while to
file the SF-1 until the they had a better idea what
was going to happen in the order it |ooks |Iike Evergy
went out and al nost i mmedi ately when the order was
issued filed the SFL-1. Do you have an inkling of if
the Comm ssion were to approve securitization when
Ameren woul d start engaging the SEC in this?

A | haven't discussed that with Anmeren.

Q How are current market conditions
different fromwhen Liberty securitized Asbury?

A Up until |ast week | would say the
mar ket felt very strong. For the |ast few weeks
mar ket has felt better than at the point in tinme when
Li berty brought their deal. W have obviously had
sone relatively significant geopolitical noise over
the weekend and we are heading into an el ection cycle
so whether the strength of the market that we saw
| ast week and the week before continues on, that wl]l
be alittle bit dependent upon how t hings resolve

t hensel ves on a gl obal |evel and, you know, sort of
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noi se around the U S. election and nmany ot her factors

that are outside of all of our control.

Q So would it be correct to say you
don't know?

A. If | knew | wouldn't be sitting here,
|'"d be on the beach in Hawaii sonewhere.

Q Now, you heard nme ask -- |'m assum ng
you heard ne ask about what -- asked M. Lansford
what if it closes after October 15th, correct?

A (Wtness nods head.)

Q s it unusual for securitized utility
tariff bonds -- and you may not know t he answer or
may just not cone up. Is it unusual for a plant to

not close prior to the issuance of securitized bonds
or isit arequirenment that it does?

A The use of proceeds from
securitization is vast and really covers a w de range
of needs for a utility and the rate payers in their
service territory. There are deals where financings
are done before the noney is spent and there are
deal s where only after the noney is sent -- spent or
anounts are final is the securitization done, it
really varies depending upon the will of the
particul ar Conmm ssion and the situation at hand.

Q Have you been involved in a
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securitization where bonds were issued prior to the

closure of a facility?

A Not that | can recall wth regards to
closing a plant. But | have been involved in
securitization where the securitization is issued
before the noney -- before the project that has been
identified is fully conplete or noney may be used for
expenses in the future around storm hardening or in
Hawai i there was a green bank effectively that was
set up for renewabl e energy projects that had not
been undertaken yet. So it really can vary dependi ng
upon the specifics and the jurisdiction.

Q Thank you, Ms. Ni ehaus. | have no
further questions.

JUDGE CLARK: M. WIllians, you
were wei ghing in?

MR, WLLIAMS: | do have one.

MR. KEEVIL: 1|'ve got a couple, Judge.

And | think M. WIIlianms probably should go | ast.

MR. WLLIAMS: You're right.

MR. KEEVIL: Does that matter?

MR WLLIAMS: [I'mfine with that.

MR. KEEVIL: You okay?

JUDCGE CLARK: Go ahead, Staff.

MR, WLLIAMS: M ght ask m ne.
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EXAM NATI ON CONDUCTED
BY: MR KEEVIL
Q Ms. Ni ehaus, Chair Hahn was aski ng
you about multiple series of tranches. First of all,
can you tell ne what -- what's the difference between

a series and a tranch?

A They are often used interchangeably.
Q Ckay.

A. We al so sonetines call them cl asses.
Q Wth a series you can call it class?
A A class, a series, a tranch.

Q A tranch.

A There's various nanes for a

particul ar groupi ng of cash flows.

Q Ckay. |Is Aneren, in this particular
I nstance, requesting authority for a specific nunber
of issues -- excuse ne, a specific nunber of series
and/ or a specific nunber of tranches or is Anmeren
requesting authority for say one or nore -- multiple
series or nmultiple tranches for one or nore series --
what exactly is the request?

A | amnot in a position to speak to
what Aneren is requesting. But in general the way
this works is there is an approval to issue under one

or nore class or tranch. And the nunber of cl asses
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or tranches wll be determ ned at the time of

I ssuance based on market demand to achieve the | owest
charge possi bl e for custoners.

Q Ckay. So whet her they wi nd up going
wWith one or nore is generally part of the structuring
- - deci sion nmaki ng process?

A That is correct.

Q Ckay. Judge d ark was asking you
sone questions about the finance team And | believe
you said you had nothing to do with the finance -- or
he t hought you had nothing to do with the finance
team | renenber sitting in sonme finance team
nmeetings in which you were attendant. So | nean, you
do have sone participation in the finance team
process, do you not?

A To the extent you're hired as
underwiter you are generally a part of the process
with your utility client and so you would -- a bank
would work with their client to converse with the
nmenbers of the finance team around transaction
structure, process, narket dynamcs, et cetera.

Q And when you say a nenber of the bank
or a bank, when you say bank you nean underwiter?

A. Underwriter, yes.

Q Al right. Nothing further.
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MR, KEEVI L: Thanks, Judge.

JUDGE CLARK: | have one quick question
and then you may -- and then M. Wllianms, 'l et
you.

MR, WLLIAMS: M ght spur another one from
hi m

JUDCGE CLARK: It m ght.

EXAM NATI ON CONDUCTED

BY: JUDGE CLARK

Q Wuld nultiple tranches, series,
cl asses cause -- require nmultiple issuance advice
letters?

A No. It's a single issuance advice

| etter that enconpasses the transaction as a whol e.

JUDGE CLARK: Thank you. M. Keevil, does
t hat ?

MR KEEVIL: No, that sprung no questions
from ne.

JUDGE CLARK: Go ahead, M. WIIians.

MR. WLLIAMS: Thank you.

EXAM NATI ON CONDUCTED

BY: MR WLLIAMS

Q When you were testifying in response
to questions fromJudge Cark you reiterated the

certification letter disclosure would add liability
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for underwiters. 1'd like to explore that just a

little bit. |If protected information such as trade
secrets were not disclosed in the certification
letter that was made publicly available, would it
still add underwiter liability?

A. Wll, I"'mnot a |lawer so we probably
shoul d be speaking to a | awer about the specifics of
underwiter liability. But in general, ny point of
view is that by redacting information the issuance
advice -- or the certification may be m sl eadi ng
W thout reviewng it inits totality. And so it
doesn't really add nuch or give, you know, sort of --
it would be highly unusual and it is potentially even
m sleading if you're providing it in part and not in
whol e.

Q No further questions. Thank you.

JUDGE CLARK: And MECG | didn't ask if
you have any re-cross?

MR. OPITZ: No thank you, your Honor.

JUDCGE CLARK: Any re-direct from Aneren?

M5. TATRO Yes. Thank you.

EXAM NATI ON CONDUCTED

BY: Ms. TATRO

Q Ms. Ni ehaus, you were asked a couple

guestions, sone fromthe Judge, about if you were

888-893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required Nevada Registration #116F. LEXITAS
www.lexitaslegal.com California Firm Registration #179



© 00 N oo o b~ w N Pk

N N NN NN R R R R R R R R R
g A W N P O © W N O O M W N B O

Evidentiary Hearing April 15, 2024

) ) ) ) Page 163
i nvol ved in any cases where bonds were being issued

for a plant that hadn't yet closed. Do you renenber
t hose conversations, --

A | do.

Q -- those questions? Do you know if
M ssouri statute allows for bonds if the plant is not
yet retired?

A | believe it does but | would have to
go back and revi ew.

Q Ckay. Fair enough. In your opinion,
the fact that Rush Island hadn't actually cl osed,
does that conplicate or cause problens wth your
mar keting with the bonds and if so what woul d that
be?

A | don't expect it would cause any
problens. W have the legislation which is final and
the financing order that is irrevocabl e and
non- bypassabl e, non-appeal abl e, and those two
conponents together being finalized are really what
I nvestors rely on. And so, you know, whether the
pl ant has closed or is about to close, as long as the
I ssuance anount cannot change and there's no ability
to revoke or adjust the charge it should be okay.

Q And are you famliar with the utility

bond process that happened in M chi gan?

888-893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required Nevada Registration #116F. LEXITAS
www.lexitaslegal.com California Firm Registration #179



© 00 N oo o b~ w N Pk

N N NN NN R R R R R R R R R
g A W N P O © W N O O M W N B O

Evidentiary Hearing April 15, 2024

) Page 164
A | am | guess which one? | have

been i nvolved in one of them and not involved in the
nmore recent one.
Q Are you -- have you been involved in

the one where the plant was not yet closed?

A. | think that was the nore recent CMS
deal; is that correct? | was not.

Q Are you famliar with it?

A Generally, yes. But | was not a part

of the process so | wouldn't have details on
mar ket i ng.

Q Ckay. Thank you. | have no further
guesti ons.

JUDCGE CLARK: Thank you, Ms. Ni ehaus. You
may step down.

MR, WLLIAMS: You want her excused?

M5. TATRO Well, | assunme she is excused
since she's done testifying.

JUDCGE CLARK: Are there any objections to
excusing Ms. N ehaus? Hearing no objection, M.
Ni ehaus, you're excused. Thank you for your tine
t oday.

THE W TNESS: Thank you.

M5. TATRO And thank you to ny coll eagues

for letting her go and I know we extended | unch.
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JUDGE CLARK: Well, it is now about 12:47.

| would Iike to take about a 30 m nute |lunch break so
if we can all be back here right around 1:17 that
woul d be great.

MR. OPI TZ: Your Honor, on behalf of MECG
-- this is TimQpitz back here -- I'd ask to be
excused for the remai nder of today's hearing, if
that's okay with your Honor.

JUDGE CLARK: | will grant that request.

MR. OPITZ: Thank you.

JUDGE CLARK: Thank you, M. Opitz. W
will go off the record.

(At this point in the proceedings, an off
the record discussion was held.)

JUDGE CLARK: It is 1:21 and we are back
on the record. And we had left off, we had just
finished with Anmeren w tness Niehaus. At that tine
M. Keevil indicated off the record that he was going
to be making a notion on the record.

MR. KEEVIL: Yes, Judge. It's nothing
controversial but nmy consultants are in fromout of
state and have a seven o'clock flight out of St.
Louis. So | didn't knowif we need to take them out
of order or if, you know, the cross on M. Sagel's

going to be so short that's not a problem or
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whatever. But |1'd like to make sure that ny
consultants are able to nmake a seven o' clock St.
Louis flight.

JUDCGE CLARK: Ckay. Are there any
obj ections to deviating -- right now the way | have

it | have Sagel up next followed by Murray, Mjors,
and Davis. And we're tal king about Davis, correct?

MR KEEVIL: Correct.

JUDCGE CLARK: No other w tnesses other
t han Davi s?

MR KEEVIL: Correct.

JUDGE CLARK: Ckay. And Davis is only
necessary for Issues 1 and 2, correct?

MR. KEEVIL: Correct.

JUDGE CLARK: So it would be very simlar
to Niehaus, it would just be taking Staff's financial
advi ser out of order for those issues?

MR. KEEVIL: Yes.

JUDCGE CLARK: |s there any opposition to
goi ng ahead and doing that?

M5. TATRO  None, your Honor.

MR. WLLIAMS: No.

JUDGE CLARK: Ckay. |I've heard -- | hear
no objections so we'll do that. At this tinme Staff,

woul d you like to call --
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MR. KEEVIL: Yes, your Honor. M. Davis.

We call Mark Davis to the witness stand. |f he's
her e.

THE W TNESS: Yeah.

MR. KEEVIL: Those 30 m nutes |unches
don't give those out of town consultants nmuch tinme to
find a place to eat |unch.

JUDGE CLARK: | apol ogize and | wish we
didn't have to do that. But we are on a very, very
packed schedule so | already anticipate that we're
probably going to be here past 5:30 tonight.

So M. Davis, would you raise your right
hand and be sworn.

* * * * *
MARK S. A. DAVI S,

The wi tness, having been first duly sworn

upon his oath, testified as foll ows:
* * * * *

JUDCGE CLARK: Ckay. Staff, your wtness.

MR. KEEVIL: Thank you, your Honor.

EXAM NATI ON CONDUCTED

BY: MR KEEVIL

Q Wul d you pl ease state your nane and
spell it for the record, sir?

A Mark S. A Davis, MA-RK S., A,
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as Exhibit -- Exhibit 112, 112. And did you have
bot h public and confidential versions of your
testi nony?

A Yes.

you need to make to those pieces of testinony?

A. No.

Q If | were to ask you the questions
contained in Exhibits 112 through 112C, woul d your
answers be the sane today as they are contained in
that testinony?

A Yes.

Page 168
Davis, D-A-V-1-S.

Q Are you the sane Mark Davis who
caused to be filed in this case the surrebuttal
testi nony of Mark Davis?

A Yes.

Q By whom do -- where do you work, sir?

A Ducera Partners.

Q And what's your position at Ducera?

A " ma partner.

Q | don't know if you're aware -- you
probably -- | haven't told you so you probably don't

know this. Your pre-filed testinony has been marked

Q Ckay. And so they've been marked 112

and 112C. Do you have any additions or corrections
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Q And are those answers true and

correct to the best of your information, know edge,
and belief?

A Yes.

MR, KEEVIL: Judge, with that, | would --
since this is M. Davis's only day here, | would
of fer Exhibits 112 and 112C

JUDGE CLARK: Any objection to admtting
Exhibit 112 onto the hearing record? | hear and see
no objections. Exhibit 112, the surrebuttal
testinony of Mark Davis, public and confidential, is
admtted onto the hearing record.

MR. KEEVIL: Thank you, your Honor. Wth
that | would tender M. Davis for cross-exam nation
on Issues 1 and 2 on the Exhibit -- on the issues
l'ist.

JUDGE CLARK: Ckay. O the parties we
have remai ning here | guess by default it is Public
Counsel 's cross-exam nati on.

MR. WLLIAMS: Thank you, Judge.

EXAM NATI ON CONDUCTED

BY: MR WLLIAMS

Q Good afternoon, M. Davis.

A Good afternoon.

Are you responsible for filing a
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certification letter after the bonds were priced if

t he Comm ssion authorized Anmeren M ssouri to
securitize Rush Island energy transition cost and
Ameren M ssouri goes forward?

A No.

Q Are you required to file a
certification letter in conjunction with Aneren
M ssouri issuing securitized bonds for Rush Island if
it goes forward with doing that?

A. No.

Q Are you required to confirmthat the
structuring, marketing, and pricing of any
securitized utility tariff bond that issues as a
result of this case is consistent with market
condi ti ons?

A Maybe to cut through it. Qur -- the
contract that Ducera has with Staff has an option in
there for Staff to request a letter from Ducera
related to obtaining the | owest cost issuance based
on market conditions at that point in tinme, | believe
that's what you're trying to get at.

Q So it's optional, it's only if Staff

requests it?

A. | believe that's correct.
Q If you were to issue such a letter --
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to do such a letter in response to a Staff request to

do so, would that be your independent opinion?

A Yes.

Q And woul d that be a qualified or
unqual i fi ed opi ni on?

A. So the |etter would contain various
assunptions and information relied upon such as if
facts provided by the utility, the underwiters, and
other parties is part of it. So certain assunptions
would go into ultimately delivering the statenents
requi red under the contract. The conclusion of those
statenents would not be materially qualified.

Q So in rendering your opinion then you
are permtted to rely on third party information
Wi t hout verifying that information; is that not
correct?

A That's ny understanding and |I'mnot a
| awyer. But certain information that goes into
providing that letter or information provided by the
utility would need to be relied upon to practically
deliver any type of letter on the tinmefrane that's
contenplated within the contract.

Q What do you do -- let's say you go
forward and do the certification about the pricing of

the securitized utility tariff bond in the | owest --
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is the | owest charge consistent with market
conditions. What would you | ook at for purposes of
rendering that opinion?

A So it would be pretty involved. The
-- | would say to start the process is incredibly
I nportant, nmaking sure that the issuer has gone
t hrough a, you know, thorough and conpl ete process
prior to issuing the bond. So going through, you
know, fromthe start the underwiter selection
process and making sure that it receives views of all
of Wall Street on the best way to structure narket
and price the bonds. Making sure that the overall
mar keting process is sufficient in terns of obtaining
Triple Acredit ratings froman appropriate nunber of
rati ng agencies, making sure that the investor
presentations are conplete, that are put together for
I nvestors, making sure that the marketing process
i nvol ves adequate tinme for investors to do their work
and submt orders, nmaking sure that the pricing and
structure are analyzed in a way that obtains what's
anticipated to result in the lowest all in cost and
attract the broadest universe of | ow cost investors
and then making sure the pricing process itself is
the underwiter's market, the bonds, and titan

pricing -- tight pricing as nuch as possi bl e based on
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the circunstances at that point in tine.

Q You were involved in the Liberty
securitization and the Evergy West securitization in
M ssouri, correct?

A That's correct.

Q Was there information in conjunction
Wi th those securitizations that you did not
I ndependently verify but relied upon?

A. |"msure there was. | couldn't tell
you of fhand what the particular itens are but |I'm
sure that would be an inportant el enent of being able
to deliver the letter that is requested.

Q Can you identify the nature of the
I nformati on?

A | think it was information provided
by the Conpany and underwriters probably anobngst
others, I'"msure sone witten, sone verbal.

Q Did you review i nformati on that was
In the issuance of advice letters in those cases?

A. Yes.

Q Did you review anything in the
I ssuance advice letter other than the bond pricing?

A Yes. | reviewed the issuance advice
letter inits entirety.

Q Did you review the cal cul ati ons of
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the quantifiable net present val ue benefits of

securitization as identified in the issuance advice
letters?

A Yes. W received the issuance advice
letter, including the NPV cal cul ati ons and revi ewed
those with Staff.

Q Did you find any errors in those
cal cul ations?

A. | don't recall.

Q In those cases, did Ducera file its
certification letters as confidential in their
entirety?

MR, KEEVIL: 1'mgoing to object to that.
Ducera didn't file anything in that case as far as |

remenber. Staff filed things, Ducera didn't file

t hi ngs.
MR, WLLIAMS: Ducera's Staff's w tness.
JUDGE CLARK: All the sane, if they didn't
file anything it negates the question. |Is there a

way you can ask the question differently?

BY: MR WLLIAMS

Q Did Ducera request that its
certification letter in those case be treated as
confidential inits entirety?

A. Yes, | believe we did.
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Q Wy ?

A A lot of the information contained in
those letters as, you know, you | think recently
heard fromthe underwiter's counsel -- or
underwiters, very simlar to what you heard from
them a lot of the information contained in those
letters are proprietary trade secret information,
it's -- you know, | think it is effectively the
secret sauce of the process that we go through and
sonething that others could seek to replicate if they
were to work through that type of process. |In terns
of the degree of information that was included in
those letters and the confidential nature of all of
the information wthin those letters | do think it's
i nportant that information not be taken out of
context when reviewing the letter.

JUDGE CLARK: |I'mpicking up a little
feedback. If you're participating via WbEx, would
you pl ease nute yourself. It sounds |ike sone road
noi se.

BY: MR WLLIAMS

Q What ' s your understandi ng of the
pur pose of the Ducera certification letters?

A. My understandi ng of HB734 was it was

to provide specific information to Staff -- to the
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Staff designated rep or effectively to our clients to

provi de them work product that they could then use as
part of their review and the obligation that Staff
had to provide a direct letter fromStaff to the

Comm ssi on providing transparency through the

pr ocess.

Q And can you -- if you can, can you
tell the nature of the secret sauce that woul d be
revealed in that letter w thout disclosing what the
secret sauce iSs?

A | think that's a difficult question.
The process, everything that we go through is part of
the i ssuance review process with Staff, the itens
that we, you know, | ook at and review as part of that
process could forma roadmap, you know, effectively
for conpetitors to cone in and try to replicate the
process that we work through to provide that for
ot her parties to show up and replicate what -- you
know, our busi ness.

Q | think your answer is that you're
sayi ng that you cannot?

A | intended to provide what | could
get at if it was hel pful at all for you.

Q Do you know what the bond yields were

for the Evergy securitization bonds?
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A. Not the exact yield offhand.

Q Do you know approxi mately what they
wer e?

A Approximately five percent.

Q And did Ducera certify that those --
that approximtely five percent, whatever it actually
I's, was the | owest possible cost?

A | believe our certification -- you're
getting into confidential information related to
anot her proceeding. | don't knowif that's -- what's
public in that regard.

Q | "' mjust asking whether you certified
In that case that the yields that were in those bonds
wer e | owest possi ble cost or not?

A | believe the letter that we provided
was filed confidentially.

Q Can you tell nme why it would be
confidential as to whether or not Ducera certified
that the actual bond yields were the | owest possible
cost ?

A. O fhand |'m not certain what
information is confidential, what information is --
needs to be in-canmera and what information can be
di scl osed with another utility. And so given the

nature of that I'mreluctant to directly share that
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unl ess | hear otherw se from Counsel .

MR WLLIAMS: Judge, would you direct him
to respond? | don't believe he's going to be
di scl osi ng any confidential information, |'mjust
aski ng himwhether or not he did that certification
I n those cases or not.

JUDGE CLARK: | understand. Let ne
inquire of Staff a little bit because this is -- |
don't want to cross any bounds and Staff technically
is the client and ny understanding is you have a
fiduciary duty to the client; is that correct?

THE WTNESS: That's correct.

JUDGE CLARK: So it would be Staff's
determ nation in ny thought as to whether they could
rel ease that. Although | do believe that is a job of
-- you know, | do believe that's kind of the purpose
for which they're retained.

MR KEEVIL: | don't -- first of all,
Judge, | don't think what M. Davis' firmprovides to
Staff is a certification, | believe it's an opinion
letter of sonme sort, would be classified as an
opinion. | do know under the statute his firmis not
required to file anything wth the Commssion, it's
-- you in fact were the judge on both of those that

ordered Staff to turn around and order -- or not
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order, but to request M. Davis's firmallow Staff to

file that letter confidentially.

So yeah, | nean -- that's the whole -- |
don't -- personally, | don't see the point of Public
Counsel's entire issue too here where they want --
saying they don't like the way Staff and Ducera
interact or they want to be part of that interaction
Wi t hout being statutorily authorized to be part of
that action or directed to be part of that action --
or interaction, | should say. Yeah. Everything that
Ducera provides to us we consider -- | consider to be
i ke an attorney/client sort of conmmunication
bet ween, you know, Staff and us and Ducera. And so
when you got into the process of ordering us to then
turn that over to the Conm ssion that caused a little
bit of heartburn itself.

But since it was the Comm ssion by whom |
am enpl oyed | decided to go ahead -- better part of
val or would be to go ahead and file the thing. But
in order to do that | had to get per -- there are
contractual provisions running back and forth between
us and Ducera and frankly between the Conmm ssion and
Ducera because | think technically the contract was
wth the Comm ssion, with Ducera. And part of the

|etter even is -- | think is in the contract -- that
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the -- only the client of Ducera, which in this case
woul d be Staff, would be authorized to rely upon --
in any manner or form to rely upon that letter.

So yeah, | nean, | consider M. Davis's

letter to be |like an attorney/client conmmunication
between his firmand us as -- ne as to whatever you
want to call it. So yeah, | have a problemwth this
entire -- | don't think these are valid issues, |
don't think it should even be on the -- if you paid
attention to M. WIlIlians' cross-exam nation he's
been crossing on the Liberty case and the Evergy
case, hasn't asked a stinking question yet about the
Ameren case. That's what we're here for. W're not
here for themto air their angry |aundry about the
previ ous cases that are now done. So yeah, | nean,
this entire issue is problematic for us.

JUDGE CLARK:  And with that, what specific
I ssue are you referring to, Issue 2, --

MR KEEVIL: Yes.

JUDGE CLARK: -- inits entirety?

MR. KEEVIL: Yes.

JUDGE CLARK: Because | certainly think --
It appeared to ne when | was | ooking through this
that at |east part of it, if not the thrust of Public

Counsel's was to ascertain essentially since these
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are -- since costs, including the costs of M. Davis,

are costs that are going to be included in the
securitization that he was going to be asking
gquestions that were in relation to that cost. |Is
that what we're tal ki ng about?

MR KEEVIL: No.

JUDCGE CLARK: \What are you tal king about?

MR KEEVIL: W're tal king about the
advice that Staff receives fromtheir consultant
regardi ng their professional expert analysis of the
utilities and their under -- utilities underwiter's
actions in structuring, marketing, placing, selling
t he bonds and whet her those actions, in the expert
opinion of M. Davis and his firm was those actions
by the other parties neet certain industry standards
and whether, by virtue of all of that, then the bonds
meet the applicabl e standard.

JUDGE CLARK: Ckay. \Were are you going
with this?

MR WLLIAMS: Staff has used -- Staff has
used M. Davis in the past which establishes sone of
what he has done and/or anticipating he's going to do
sonething simlar in this case which is not -- we
haven't reached that stage in this proceeding. So

that's the purpose of asking sone of the background
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information. And we're not asserting anything s been

done inproperly but we're |ooking to see what has
been done for understanding what to anticipate wll
be done and the cost that's associated with that.

JUDGE CLARK:  Well, | think -- and that's
fine. And I'mgoing to |let you ask questions but at
| east in regard to where you are now and aski ng about
this letter | believe you've hit a wall. And I'm
going to -- there are -- M. Keevil, |'massum ng
you' re objecting to himanswering?

MR, KEEVIL: Yes. |I'mobjecting to this
entire line of questioning, in fact.

JUDCGE CLARK: Well, dealing with this
specific question in regard to the letter |I'm going
to sustain the objection.

MR WLLIAVMS: Thank you.

BY: MR WLLIAMS

Q How wi | | Ducera anal yze the
reasonabl eness of -- |let ne back up. Assumng Staff
requests Ducera to do it, how w ||l Ducera establish

that Ameren M ssouri's securitization transaction
wi Il achieve the | owest possi ble cost?

MR, KEEVIL: Judge, again |I'mgoing to
object. And this one's a little different. As M.

Davis nentioned, the entire process that these
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financial analysts fromWll Street and beyond go

t hrough involve certain information that they
consider proprietary. That's what he's just asking,
says what are you going to do proprietary to be able
to turn around and tell your client, Staff, what your
anal ysi s is.

So, you know, he can't -- he can, he just
did. But he should not be allowed to be delving into
proprietary, confidential procedures of Ducera's
period. | nean, it's irrelevant and it -- | nean,
what they're really asking about is the contract
process that was going -- initiated and gone through
back whenever Ducera was retained by Staff for this
case. | nean, they -- they don't |ike the process,
they don't |ike the contract apparently that cane out
of the process. You know, if they want their own
adviser they're free to get their own adviser. But
they can't now -- we're bound by the contract that
was arrived at between Staff and the Comm ssion and
Ducera and he should not be -- OPC shoul d not be
allowed to basically try to divulge -- or get into
the things of a proprietary nature |ike this.

JUDGE CLARK: M. WIllianms, would you |ike
to respond to the objection?

MR W LLI AVE: | think Public Counsel's
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entitled to explore what the financial analyst for

Staff is doing that Staff relies upon for neking
recommendations and providing information to the
Comm ssion and if it's proprietary and we need to go
I n-canera we can do that. | don't intend to delve
too nuch deeper into this topic.

JUDGE CLARK: Wiy is it relevant?

MR WLLIAVS: Basically to -- sone
assurance, quality assurance that the Staff and the
public are getting value for what they're paying for
for the financial analyst services.

MR, KEEVIL: Again, | don't think this is

the proper place for it.

JUDGE CLARK: Hold on, M. Keevil. Let ne
think for a mnute. |I'mgoing to sustain the
objection. | don't think -- | think Staff is

perfectly capable of protecting their own interests.
And whil e you've nentioned the general public, |
believe that the stuff you're asking about is part of
what the consultant has agreed to do for Staff. So
|''mgoing to sustain that objection.

MR WLLIAVG: |If | may --

JUDGE CLARK:  Yes.

MR WLLIAVMS: -- offer sonething? O
course ultimately the public will be paying -- well,
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the public who's served by Areren M ssouri will be

payi ng for Ducera's services --

JUDGE CLARK: Ckay.

MR WLLIAMS: -- one way or another.

JUDCGE CLARK: Thank you. Do you have
further questions for this w tness?

MR WLLIAMS:  Sure.

BY: MR WLLIAMS

Q At what rate are you conpensated for
your services?

MR, KEEVIL: | don't knowif that's
confidential -- | mean, that can be answered, |
believe. But |'mnot sure.

JUDGE CLARK: | think that's -- I'msorry?

MR KEEVIL: I'mnot sure if it's public,
that's nmy only question.

JUDGE CLARK: If we need to go in-canera
for that, I'mfine going in-canera for that. But |
do believe that that's a question that he shoul d be
abl e answer.

MR WLLIAVG: And | believe it is public
if you go out on the State's website about contracts.

JUDGE CLARK: Staff, is that correct?

MR, KEEVIL: | don't know.

JUDGE CLARK: Is this information that's
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publicly avail abl e?

VR. KEEVI L: | don't know that

i nformati on.

MR WLLIAMS: | believe it's already
pre-filed as an attachnent to M. -- one of M.
Murray's testinonies. It's his surrebuttal

testi nony, DM S-8.

JUDGE CLARK: And that's a
non-confidential schedul e?

MR WLLIAMS: Correct.

JUDGE CLARK: Is that correct, M. Davis?

THE WTNESS: 1'Il take their word for it.

JUDCGE CLARK: Do you want to take a | ook
at i1t?

THE WTNESS: No. | can -- | know the
rate.

JUDGE CLARK: Ckay. Then you nmay go ahead
and answer the question.

THE WTNESS: It's a nonthly rate of
225, 000 per nont h.

BY: MR WLLIAMS

Q And when did that -- when was the
contract executed for that rate?

A. | believe the contract was executed

the early part of this year, beginning of the year.

888-893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required Nevada Registration #116F. LEXITAS
www.lexitaslegal.com California Firm Registration #179



© 00 N oo o b~ w N Pk

N N NN NN R R R R R R R R R
g A W N P O © W N O O M W N B O

Evidentiary Hearing April 15, 2024

Page 187
Q Wul d | ate January sound correct?

>

| accept that subject to check.

You don't know. But that timefrane

at | east?
A That timefrane.
And when did paynent start becom ng
due or when did anpbunts due accrue under the -- start

accrui ng under the contract?

A | need to confirm | don't know
of f hand.

Q Wll, is it a-- what triggers
anounts due accruing under the contract, is it
execution, is it sonething el se?

A. | don't know the trigger. | would
need to confirm

Q What | really want to knowis is it a
mont hly anount that initiates on execution of the
contract or does Ducera have to do sonething in each
month in which it accrues the $225, 000?

A. | would need to check. | don't know.

MR, KEEVIL: Judge, according to M.
WIllians the contract is a schedule attached to an
exhibit. So all of those things that M. WIIlians
just asked are already there if he'd only read the

contract. And if he wants to put it in the record
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when the proper tine cones, if such a tine cones,

then, you know, it's in the record. Oherwise w're
spi nni ng our wheel s here.

JUDGE CLARK: |s that an objection?

MR KEEVIL: Yes.

JUDCGE CLARK: Wbuld you care to rephrase
it as an objection?

MR KEEVIL: Well, irrelevancy.

JUDCGE CLARK: Wbuld you like to respond,
M. WIIlians?

MR WLLIAMS: | think it's highly
rel evant what custoners are paying for the services
t hey receive.

JUDCGE CLARK: | don't disagree with you
there. But at |least the way you were starting to
head down it it seened to be asking himabout what it
was he does for the contract, which again seens to be
getting into exactly the objection | sustained
earlier. So if the contract is publicly --

MR WLLIAMS: Well, when | read the
contract | wasn't able to discern whether or not it
started on execution or if sone service had to be
provided in each nonth for which an anount accrued.
It wasn't clear to ne exactly how the parties to the

contract are operating under it. So that was the
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pur pose of ny questioning. And in fact, I'm--
didn't intend to go any farther with it.

MR, KEEVIL: Well, he's answered -- he's
answered the question.

JUDCGE CLARK: M. Keevil, give ne a
second. Sorry.

MR KEEVIL: Sorry.

JUDGE CLARK:  You keep doing that but I
just need -- the hanster can only run so fast.

MR KEEVIL: Wll, he's already answered.

JUDGE CLARK: Yeah. He's answered that he
doesn't know.

MR. WLLIAMS: So |I'm done.

JUDCGE CLARK: Well, by your own adm ssi on.
Do you have any further questions for this wtness?

MR WLLIAMS: Not at this tine, thank
you.

JUDGE CLARK: Ckay. M. Coffman, you have
j oined us again. Do you have any cross-exam nation
that you would like to add -- or that you would Iike
to do for this witness? You would have been first on
the list, | believe.

MR, COFFMAN:  No, your Honor.

JUDGE CLARK: Thank you. This is AARP and

Consuner Council of M ssouri. Aneren M ssouri ?
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M5. TATRO Yes. Thank you.

EXAM NATI ON CONDUCTED

BY: Ms. TATRO

Q |"'mgoing to be asking you questions

about the statute and also the Staff's proposed
financing order. Do you have those with you?

A | do.

Q Ckay. Geat. So | want to start by
tal king about -- well, first in your surrebuttal, I
presune you have a copy with you. On Page 8, Line
12. Let ne know when you're there.

A. Ckay. |'mthere.

Q And do you see at that point it uses
the phrase | owest cost standard? | think it's in the
header right there.

A Yes.

Q And then again on Page 12, Line 11
you testify about the goal of obtaining the | owest

possi bl e cost for custoners, do you see that

| anguage?

A. Yes.

Q And then I'Il only go one nore. On
Page -- hang on, sorry. Still Page 12, Line 14, you

have the phrase mandate to achi eve the | owest

possi ble cost. Do you see that?
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A. Yes.

Q And you use that phrase | owest cost,
or |l owest cost standard in other areas of your
testinony but I won't go through that. But you woul d

concede that is true, right?

A. Yes.

Q | s | owest cost | anguage fromthe
statute?

A. | think it's shorthand for the

| anguage fromthe statute.

Q kay. Let's talk about the statute.
Do you have that with you?

A Yes.

Q 393.1700, dot 2, 3C, C1| think is
where you find that |anguage. Tell ne when you're
t here.

A Do you have a page nunber, by chance?

Q | do not. Just a statutory
reference, sorry.

MR. KEEVIL: Could you give that reference
again, Ms. Tatro?

MR, LOAERY: 393.

MR. KEEVIL: Yeah. | got the 393. Wiat's
the --
M5. TATRO Point 2, 3C C
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MR KEEVIL: 2, 3C, c.

M5. TATRO The Cis in parens and then
the next Cis not.

THE WTNESS: Yes, |I'mwth you.

BY: Ms. TATRO

Q Ckay. And that -- the |anguage
that's actually used in the statute is that |owest
securitized utility tariff charges consistent with
mar ket conditions at the tine. And when it says at
the tine it's tal king about when the bonds are
pl aced, right?

A. Yes, that's ny understandi ng.

Q So when you use the phrase | owest
cost that's actually what you nean?

A Yes.

Q "Cause technically it's a slightly
di fferent nmeaning, don't you think?

A Yeah. | believe the distinction
you' re making is | ooking at market conditions at that
point in time and agree that it should be neasured
based on the market conditions in effect at that
point in tine.

Q It's not the | owest possible cost at
anytinme, it's given the conditions that exist?

A. Right. It -- it's based on that
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point intine, that's right.

Q kay. Perfect. Thank you. So now
i f you go back to your testinony and turn to Page 15.
At Lines 2 to 4 you use the phrase finance team and
you define that. But that's not a phrase used in the
statute, is it?

A. No. The termfinance team | don't
bel i eve appears in the statute.

Q Ckay. So just to nmake sure I'm
clear. You're using that termto nean individuals
set forth in the statute that have a role in
provi ding advice to the Comm ssion, would you agree
with that?

A. | believe that's the -- what you've
described is the basis for formation of a finance
team And reference here to the finance team cones
fromthe draft financing orders that nore explicitly
call out what the finance team woul d be.

Q Ckay. The statute -- lets -- lets
the Comm ssion hire a financial adviser, which is
you, correct?

A. Conmmi ssion or Comm ssion Staff,
that's right.

Q And you're a nenber of the finance

t eanf?
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A. We're an adviser to the finance
staff.
Q You're an adviser to the Staff
representative that ultimately wll provide their

opinion to the Commssion; is that correct?

A. | may need to take a step back. |
don't believe that the finance team has been forned
at this point in tinme so | think that would be, you
know, determned ultimately through what goes into
the financing order.

Q Fai r enough. Wuld you expect there
to be a Staff representative on the financing teanf

A Yes.

Q Ckay. Let's turn back to Page 14,
Line 19. You were tal king about Ameren M ssouri's
proposed financing order. Let ne know when you're
t here.

A "' mthere.

Q So it says the Comm ssion has
authority to designate a representative or
representatives fromthe Staff to coll aborate with
Anreren M ssouri. That's in the statute, right?

A Sorry. | want to nmake sure. You're
on Page 14, Line 19?

MR WLLIAMS: Probably Line 9.
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BY: Ms. TATRO
Q Yes. Line 9.
A Line 9. Ckay.
M5. TATRO Thank you, Nat han.
THE WTNESS: Yeah. |I'mwth you now.
BY: MsS. TATRO
Q Al right. And that cones fromthe

statute? Yes?

A "' mreview ng the | anguage here.
Q Ckay.

A G ve ne one second.

Q Sur e.

A So this actually cones fromthe

Anmer en proposed financing order rather than fromthe
statute. | think the question is addressi ng what
Amer en proposed as part of the financial order.

Q kay. Exactly. Let's do that again.
|"'mnot -- so Aneren's proposed financing says the
Comm ssion has the authority to designate a
representative. And you agree that that is fromthe
statute? It's consistent with the statute?

A Consistent with the statute | think
better said.

Q Fair. Next Aneren proposed financing

order says that neither the designated representative

888-893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required Nevada Registration #116F. LEXITAS
www.lexitaslegal.com California Firm Registration #179



© 00 N oo o b~ w N Pk

N N NN NN R R R R R R R R R
g A W N P O © W N O O M W N B O

Evidentiary Hearing April 15, 2024

. . ) ) ) Page 196
fromStaff nor financial officer -- financial

advi sers, sorry, have the authority to direct how the
bonds are placed to market. And that is also
consistent wth the statute?

A Correct.

Q Ckay. Then it says that Ameren
M ssouri proposed financing order says that the Staff
representatives and the financial advisers can attend
all neetings convened by the utility to address
pl acenent of the bond to market. Wuld you agree
that's consistent with the statute?

A. Yes.

Q Ckay. And on Page 15 you list three
concerns wwth Ameren M ssouri's proposed financing
order process? So if you would turn to Page 15,
pl ease.

A "' mthere.

Q So in the paragraph starting on Line
2 you take issue with the word revi ew not being
included in the finance order. Now, you agree with
nme the statute says that the finance -- well, it
doesn't say finance team It says the Staff
representative has the right to provide input and the
right to collaborate with the utility -- provide

input to the utility and col |l aborate with the
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utility; is that accurate?

A Yes. | believe the statute outlines
certain itens and al so provides flexibility for the
Commi ssion to determine other itens that it deens
appropriate that aren't inconsistent with the
financing order as part of the pre-issuance review
process.

Q Ckay. Wiere do you find that
flexibility for nme? Can you give ne a statutory
citation?

A | believe it's 393.23(C) (0.

Q | ncl ude other conditions the
Comm ssi on consi ders appropriate?

A. Yes.

Q So how do you interpret the word
condi ti ons?

A |"'mnot a lawer. |'m not
appropriately qualified to interpret what the statute
says.

Q Ckay. Can you give ne your
under st andi ng? Because you just told ne that that
portion is what you rely upon in order to add
additional |anguage. So | just want to nake sure |
under stand what you think it neans.

A That the -- | believe what the
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statute is getting at is providing flexibility for

the Comm ssion to determ ne what it deens appropriate
as a part of the review process that's undertaken
prior to issuance of the bonds.

Q You have a statute in front of you?

A. Yes.

Q Can you | ook at the portion that you
just cited to ne, do you have that?

A. Yes.

Q So the condition right before it
says, an outside date which shall not be earlier than
a year after the date the financing order is no
| onger subject to appeal when authority to issue
securitized utility tariff bonds granted in such
financing order shall expire, right? That's a
condi tion, yes?

A. Yes.

Q And what -- and the paragraph before
that tal ks about treatnent of ADI T, correct?

A. Yes.

Q And t he paragraph before that talks
about the procedure that allows the electric
corporation to earn a return at the cost of capital
authorized fromtinme to tine. |It's tal king about how

t hi ngs work, correct?
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A. Yes.
Q Conditions that have to be net?
A | believe that particular itemcovers

conditions that have to be net, that's right.

Q So how does the | anguage in O nodify
C, C? In your opinion, as you understand it.

A Look, I"'mnot a lawer to interpret
that | anguage. C, Cindicates that there's findings
that need to be made, O provides the ability of the
Comm ssion to inpose other conditions that aren't
I nconsi stent wwth the section of the financing order
as they appear to be related. But again, comng from
a non-|l awer.

Q Okay. Fair enough. Let's talk about
your use of the word review in your testinony. |
t hi nk Page 15, Paragraph 2 you take issue with the
word review not being included in the finance order,
do you see that?

A Yes.

Q How is review di fferent than
providing input to Areren M ssouri and the right to
col | aborate wth Areren M ssouri ?

A The itens may be related. M
understanding is past financing orders issued by this

Comm ssion provided for the right to review as part
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of the process receiving information, having sone

obligation of the utility to provide information for
t he avoi dance of doubt of nmaking sure that the
finance teamhas the ability to fulfill its
responsibilities of providing input and col |l aborating
woul d, you know, in a lot of ways require information
to be provided directly to the finance team

believe that's sonething that the Conm ssion's
ordered in past instances.

So | think renoving that information could
be perceived as taking away a right that otherw se,
you know, may exist or at |east historically was
expected to exist. So including that |anguage in
this instance I think is helpful to not create any
type of expectation that there isn't a right to
review information that may be necessary in order to
provi de i nput and col |l aborate.

Q So you think the statute is unclear?

A | think the revision to what's
proposed in the financing order creates unnecessary
anbi gui ty.

Q But just to be clear, | just -- |
can't decide if this is formover substance or
whet her you're trying to get sonething in addition to

the right to have input and to collaborate. So you
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are just saying it's just clarification to make sure

that you -- that the Staff representative who's on
the financing teamhas the right to provide input and
the right to collaborate with the utility? It's not

I ntended as anyt hi ng additional ?

A. | would say it's also inportant to
make sure that information is provided and made
avail able to the Staff representative to be able to
interpret the information and do -- fulfill its
responsibilities. It would be very difficult in
order to provide input and col | aborate w t hout
receiving information. But the fact patten of
changi ng an approach of sonmething to sonething the
Comm ssion's ordered in the past could be perceived
as changing the responsibility of the utility. And
for the avoi dance of doubt | don't see value in
changi ng that past practice.

Q So if the Comm ssion order says we
t hi nk you al ready have the right to access these
docunents through the statutory |anguage and so we're
not changi ng the process we're just sticking to
statutory | anguage woul d that not solve the problenf

A | think it's better to stick with
what the Conmmi ssion's ordered in the past and not

create anbiguity.
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Q Ckay. The third condition that you

tal k about is you want the finance teanis
responsibilities to commence when the financing order
-- | don't know why |I'm1losing ny voice -- when the
financing order is issued regardless of when it
becones non-appeal able. Do you see that portion?

It's probably the next page over.

A Yes, | see it.

Q Ckay. What work is -- is there work
that's required to be done during the tinme -- let's
assune for a nonent that there's an appeal. |Is there

work that's required to be done while that appeal is
pendi ng and before you have a final and unappeal abl e
order?

MR. KEEVIL: Excuse ne, Judge. | would
obj ect just for vagueness. Wen she says required,
I's she tal king about required by the Comm ssi on,
required by the 393.1700, required by sone --
requi red by whonf?

JUDCGE CLARK: Ms. Tatro, would you

clarify?
MS. TATRO  Sure.
BY: Ms. TATRO
Q Requi red by the statute.
A | think it depends when Aneren is
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| ooking to comence its process. |f Ameren is

| ooking to commence the SEC revi ew process and draft
SF-1's and have those ready to go i medi ately upon
the financing order becom ng non-appeal able or if
they're | ooking to comence the rating agency process
or other lead tine -- long lead tine itens in advance
of the financing order becom ng non-appeal abl e t hose
types of itens are itens that are inportant for the
finance teamto be involved in. And in the event
that they develop without the finance team having the
authority to review those itens it could create
irrevocable activity that the finance teanm s not able
to participate in. So those types of itens, in the
event that Ameren is | ooking to conmence its post
financi ng order, pre-issuance process before the
order becones non-appeal abl e, having the flexibility
in order to do that could be val uabl e.

Q Ckay. If Ameren M ssouri doesn't
start that -- any of that SEC work until after
there's a final and unappeal able order are there any
such irrevocabl e deci sions that you woul d have a
concern about?

A | touched on the rating agency
process. The underwiter RFP is oftentines sonething

that takes place relatively early in the process. So
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various itens that, you know, they're |ooking to

comrence or if they're looking to enter into the
rati ng agency engagenent letters prior to engagi ng
with them those types of itens are inportant to make
sure are reviewed as part of that post financing
order, pre-issuance review process, you know, to nane
a few

Q Ckay. So you are not, with this
recomendati on, seeking to force any type of
regul arly schedul ed neeting, you are seeking if
Ameren starts work on any of those types of docunents
with the underwiters you want the finance teamto be
able to be involved; is that fair?

A. Yes. |If Ameren's seeking to commence
the process and commence itens that typically would
require the finance teams review, those itens shoul d
be reviewed in advance of creating irrevocable
action -- or taking irrevocabl e action.

Q Ckay. Were you involved in the
Evergy securitization?

A. Yes.

Q Do you know when the Evergy financing
order becane final and unappeal abl e?

A Not of f hand.

Q Does Novenber of '23 sound right?
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A "Il take that subject to check.

Q Ckay. Do you know when Evergy fil ed
its initial registration statenent?

A Not of f hand.

Q Do you know if it was before or after
t he order becane non-appeal abl e?

A Not of f hand.

Q Ckay. Did you reviewthe initial
regi stration statenent that Evergy filed before they
filed it?

A | believe -- | believe | did and
Counsel did but 1'd need to confirm

Q Okay. So do you believe that there
was opportunity to provide input and col |l aborate?

A. Yes. | believe there was the
opportunity to do it but it's unclear whether or not
there was an explicit obligation of the utility to
engage with the finance team and so creating that
explicit obligation could be beneficial.

Q kay. So you're not alleging that
Evergy kept the finance teamout of any of its
conversations you just want to make it explicit in
the order?

A Correct.

Q And nothing further? You're not
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atterrptl ng to create sone type of pr ocess?

JUDGE CLARK: Whuld you define what you
mean by create sone kind of process, create what?

BY: Ms. TATRO

Q Let nme just ask a different way. |
guess the concern that | have as | look at this is |
think the Conpany is willing -- and we said in our
openi ng statenent the Conpany was wlling to share
this information with you, we didn't have an issue
Wi th changing it so that we work with the finance
team for work that happens before the order is final
and unappeal able. Wat I'mtrying to get fromyou is
to ensure that there are -- we're al so not | ooking
for make work. So if Ameren hasn't started drafting
the SEC registration statenent we don't need to have
a neeting to say to you we're not doing anything yet;
Is that fair?

A. Right. The intent of this | anguage
was to ensure that the process -- the irrevocabl e
action does not take place is at |east, you know,
W th respect to ny testinony, what | was trying to
get at, not to create increnental standing neetings
when there's not a need for them

Q kay. Thank you. | want to talk to

you a little bit about the issuance advice letter.
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You' re famliar with those?

A Yes.

Q And you're famliar wth the ones
t hat have been issued here in Mssouri for Evergy and
Li berty?

A. Yes.

Q The O fice of the Public Counsel
suggests that the issuance advice letter should
i nclude a conparable securities pricing analysis. Do
you know what a conparabl e securities pricing
anal ysi s neans?

A. | think it could be interpreted a | ot
of different ways. But oftentines we'll | ook at
conparative pricing when going through the issuance
process. And | do think it's appropriate to | ook at
conparative pricing when going through an issuance
pr ocess.

Q Is it typically part of the issuance
advice letter?

A. No. | haven't seen that before.

Q Wul d you say that -- you have not
seen that before, is that what you just said?

A Qut si de of what was provided in
Public Counsel's testinony, that's correct.

Q Ckay. OPC s witness al so recommends
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that the certification letter be nmade public or at

| east partially public. Wre you here when Aneren
M ssouri witness Katrina N ehaus testified?

A Yes.

Q Do you have any reason to di sagree
with any of the reasons that she gave as to why that
| etter should not be nmade public or even partially
public?

A. No. | agree with the statenent that
she made that there is risk, although there -- you
know, it sounds appealing to provide this type of
information publicly there is risk that it could
defer participation of underwiters and the process
coul d, you know, be additive to the overall cost of
the process and viewed detrinental to the issue --
the ultimate i ssuance of price received through the
I ssuance process. | don't disagree with the
statenments that she nade.

Q Thank you. So now l'd like to talk
about Staff's proposed financing order which you said
you al so have a copy of. Wre you involved in the
drafting of this docunent?

A | reviewed and provided comments on
the materials -- or on the financing order.

Q Ckay. Could you turn to Page 8,
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pl ease?

A Ckay.

Q Let nme pull my copy. Sorry.
Par agr aph 16.

A. Ckay.

Q Wul d you agree with ne that there

wi Il be increnental incone taxes associated wth the
return?

MR, KEEVIL: Paragraph what, M. Tatro?

M5. TATRO  Si xt een.

MR, KEEVIL: Sixteen.

M5. TATRO It just tal ks about the WAC
t here.

MR. KEEVIL: Onh, the WAC, okay.

THE WTNESS: Sorry, | don't follow your
guesti on.

BY: MR LOWNERY

Q Do you agree with ne that there w |
be increnental incone taxes associated with the
return that Ameren M ssouri earns on the securitized
bond?

A So taxes are better addressed with a
different Staff w tness.

Q Ckay. Now, at the -- all right.
Let's go to Page 10. By the way, do you know what
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Staff witness would be the person to talk to about

t hat ?
A | believe it's Staff w tness Myjors.
Q Ckay. Page 10, Paragraph 23.
A Ckay.
Q It has a restriction about the
adm ni strative fees not exceedi ng $50, 000, you see
t hat ?
A Yes.
Q Do you know if that's per tranch or

If that's for the overall financing?

A | believe that's for the overall
fi nanci ng.
Q Okay. Page 27.
A Ckay.
Q Par agr aph 14.
A "' mthere.
Q Can you give ne an exanple of when a

non-standard true-up provision would be needed?

MR. KEEVIL: 1'mgoing to object, Judge.
M. Davis has already testified he did not draft
this. | have already explained that in the event
that there is a conflict between Staff's evidence and
testinony on this issue with the provisions in this

proposed order that the evidence that's been
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previously presented shall control.
| don't understand why she feels it's
necessary -- this is like if I was to inquire of M.

Sagel as to, you know, Ms. Tatro's notion to do
sonet hing or another. She's inquiring of a financial
W tness regarding a | egal docunent that was -- it's
not even a docunent. It's a proposed docunent, it's
not even a docunent. And there's a provision in
there, like | said, that to the extent there's
sonething in here conflicting because it's --
whatever it is, it's 72 pages long. There could be a
conflict in here between sonething that sonme ot her

W tness testifies to and what's in here. And now
she's --

JUDCGE CLARK: M. Keevil.

MR KEEVIL: Yes.

JUDGE CLARK: | believe that it's pretty
clear that this is not the Comm ssion's financing
order and | believe that it's fairly clear that this
Is Staff's proposed financing order. | believe the
caveats you' ve | aid down about differences between
any potential testinony are clear. On the other
hand, | al so renenber havi ng sone confusi ng about
what exactly a non-standard true-up provision was in

a previous proceeding. I'mgoing to continue to |et
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Ms. Tatro ask questions about general concepts in

t here and maybe how t hose concepts are represented
there but I amaware that is not the Comm ssion's
order and that this is just a proposed order
that's --

MR KEEVIL: Well, Judge, there's -- the
true-ups are -- wll be covered in a tariff, |
assune. So | believe that if a party were to have
tariff related questions such as true-up, such
guestions should be directed towards -- to Staff's
tariff wtness --

JUDGE CLARK: Well, why --

MR KEEVIL: -- which is M. Davis.

JUDCGE CLARK: Hold on. Ms. Tatro, what do
you want to know about non-standard true-up
provi si ons?

M5. TATRO | will let non-standard
true-up provisions go if that bothers M. Keevil.

But what | would say is | find the statenent that |
have a footnote that says if | got any of this wong
you have to go back to Staff testinony is, A | can't
believe we aren't trying to get the proposed order
correct; and B, | think that it only causes confusion
in the future. And confusion nakes the whol e bond

I ssuance problem-- process nore problematic. So in
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general I"'mtrying to gain sone clarity around what

was i ntended. Now he -- M. Davis may not have
drafted this but he said he read it and provi ded
comments, he's famliar with it. So | think I have a
right to seek as to what his understandi ng was when
he gave advice back to Staff. That's what |['mtrying
do.

JUDGE CLARK:  And | will let you probe
into that to a degree.

M5. TATRO  Fair enough. Thank you.

BY: Ms. TATRO

Q |''m going to nove on to Page --

Par agraph 60, | believe it's on Page 29.

A Ckay.

MR. KEEVIL: Now that's an issue that M.
Davis can address since it's dealing with finance
t eans.

M5. TATRO Geat. Thank you.

MR. KEEVIL: See the difference?

JUDGE CLARK: Okay. |I'mperfectly
agreeable if you all want to address ne but there's
no reason for you to be addressing each other as
attorneys in this roomnot involving ne.

M5. TATRO  Thank you, your Honor.

BY: Ms. TATRO
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Q M. Davis, in Paragraph 20, about
two-thirds of the way down it tal ks about -- so the
desi gnated representatives fromStaff and the
financial adviser are permtted to attend all
neetings, participate in all calls, emails, and other
comruni cations relating to the structuring,
mar keting, pricing, and issuing of the securitized

tariff bonds, do you see that?

A. Yes.
Q What about neetings -- so first of
all, the statute has a limtation, does it not? The

statute says it's neetings convened by the utility;
Is that right?

A. | believe the statute explicitly
calls out neetings convened by the utility but
doesn't, as we tal ked about earlier, constrain what
t he Comm ssion can order as part of its financing
or der.

Q What about conversations between
Aneren attorneys and Aneren individuals who are
dealing with this bond process that m ght be
privileged, do you think that the Conm ssion has the
ability to force Areren M ssouri to reveal privileged
conversations?

A Can you -- the hypothetical is
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difficult. Could you give ne an exanple of a type of
comruni cation you're referring to?
Q Legal advice about what the statute

requi res or what the financing order neans.

A | don't believe that would tie back
to the -- directly the structuring, marketing, and
pricing of the issuance, |'mnot sure that this would

directly inplicate that type of conmunicati on.

Q If there was a privil eged
conversation about structuring, marketing, or
pricing, would you agree that the privilege should be
pr ot ect ed?

A | could see value. And I'd want to
t hi nk about that nore and discuss it nore with
counsel. But | could see value in maintaining the
ability of Ameren to have privil eged communi cati ons.

Q M ght you have privil eged
comruni cations with the attorney advising the

Comm ssi on?

A Yes.

Q Wul d you want to maintain that
privilege?

A. Yes.

Q M ght the underwriter such as Ms.

Ni ehaus have a privileged conversation with a Gol dnman
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Sachs attorney?

A Conceptually I don't disagree with
t hat .

Q Okay. And when you say you don't
di sagree, | assune you nean you don't disagree it
shoul d remain privil eged?

A Ri ght .

Q Okay. Let's talk a little bit about
the marketing, which is one of the itens |isted there
at the end of the sentence. Are you famliar with
the marketing process that the underwiters use with
t hese bonds?

A Yes.

Q Does the underwiter group take calls
frompotential investors who ask questions about the
bond i ssuance?

A. Yes.

Q s it your understanding that the
finance team shoul d be | ooped into all of those
calls?

A. | think there's certain instances
where it may not be practical to involve the finance
teamin any of those types of inbound calls to the
broad sal es force against a syndicate of

underwiters. However, |'ve seen, in past instances,
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finance teans be able to work effectively and cone up

W th reasonabl e protocols on how to receive
information that's com ng out of those types of

di scussions to make sure that the finance team can
adequately and appropriately take on its
responsibilities wthout hanpering or slow ng down
the all-in process to the extent it's not feasible to
be on each of those individual calls.

Q Ckay. Geat. | like that practical
answer. So there was process | believe in the
Li berty and Evergy orders where if sonething |ike
t hat happened it was reported back to the finance
team there was a conversation that happened because
soneone called in and gave sone type of information.
Was that part of the process?

A | don't -- | don't know that I'm able
to coment on past processes. But recommending -- or
proposi ng sonething like that in that instance
doesn't sound i nappropriate.

Q Okay. | think the problemhere is
with the word all, right? You think there could be a
better descriptor that we could use to ensure that
things | have that are informational and woul d be
hel pful to the finance teans are provided to them but

i f Darryl Sagel sends an email does that nean every
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email has to copy everyone on the finance tean?

A | could see it being appropriate to
early on in the finance team process establish
protocols on the way that the utility and
underwiters engage wth various parties and foll ow
t hose protocols throughout the process. But | do
think that it's inportant that the Conm ssion
aut hori zes the finance team and gives the finance
teamthe ability to participate in a way that all ows
it to garner the information that it needs out of the
mar keti ng process and nake sure that information --
I nformati on nmakes its way back to the finance team
t hr oughout the process.

Q kay. Geat. Sane page,
Par agr aph 61.

A kay.

Q So this paragraph tal ks about -- it
says that Anmeren M ssouri and the | ead underwiter
provide a witten certificate to the Conm ssion and
It's supposed to certify four different things, do
you see those?

A. Yes.

Q The first is that the bonds conply
with the financing order, the second' s that the bonds

conply with other legal requirenents, the third is
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that issuance of the bonds provides quantifiabl e net

present val ue benefits, and the fourth is that the
bonds result in |lowest securitized utility tariff
charges consistent with market conditions at the
time. Do you see that?

A. Yes.

Q s it typical, in your experience,
that underwiters certify |egal questions?

A The under -- underwiter scope in ny
experience typically inforns the anount of
information that they certify to. So the scope of
their involvenent inforns what nmakes its way into the
certifications.

Q And if the underwiters have to
certify legal questions then inherently they're going
to involve their own attorneys to nake that decision,
correct?

A. Yes.

Q Do you think that inpacts the cost?
And | nean cost of the underwiter of course.

A In isolation, it would certainly
I npact the |egal cost.

Q In the Evergy or Liberty cases, did
the underwiter certify that there was conpliance

with all legal obligations?
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A | don't recall offhand.
Q Ckay. What about the net present
val ue cal cul ati on. Does the underwiter -- iIs the

underwiter the appropriate party, individual to be
certifying that the net present value calculation is
correct?

A | think the underwiter's work wl|l
I nform what the issuer puts in their certification
related to the NPV savings. So the information that
they're able to provide on the overall cost of the
financing and securitization elenments of the
financing itself.

Q But the | anguage in the statute
requires themto certify its -- to certify the NPV
calculation itself, doesn't it?

MR. KEEVIL: Again, M. Davis has said
he's not a |awer, the statute speaks for itself. W
can all look it up after we get out of here.

M5. TATRO This has nothing to do with
the statute. This is --

MR. KEEVIL: She just said the statute
says, does it not.

JUDGE CLARK: M. Keevil, |'ve asked you
engage with ne, not her.

VMR KEEVI L: | said she said.
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JUDGE CLARK: All right.
M5. TATRO Perhaps --
JUDGE CLARK: What's your -- hold on.
Everyone stop. M. Keevil, what's your objection?

MR, KEEVIL: |s that the statute speaks
for itself.

JUDGE CLARK: Ms. Tatro, would you --
woul d you reinformne what your question was?

M5. TATRO Yes. M question was is it
appropriate for the underwiter to certify that the
gquantifiable net present val ues benefit.

JUDGE CLARK: M. Davis, are you an
underwiter?

THE W TNESS: No.

JUDGE CLARK: Do you ever act as an
underwiter?

THE W TNESS: No.

JUDGE CLARK: [|Is that a question you can
answer ?

THE W TNESS: No.

M5. TATRO May | rephrase the question?

JUDGE CLARK: Yes, you nay.

BY: Ms. TATRO

Q I n your experience, have you seen an

underwiter certify the quantifiable net present
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val ue benefit?

A |'d have to go back and | ook at
certifications that we've received. | don't know
of f hand.

Q Ckay. | have no further questions.
Thank you.

JUDCGE CLARK: Are there any questions from
Comm ssion? |'ve just got just a few, few for you,
M. Davi s.

EXAM NATI ON CONDUCTED

BY: JUDGE CLARK

Q Now, you've been involved in two
M ssouri Conm ssion securitization cases, correct?

A That's right.

Q Were there any differences in the
timng of Staff's involvenent in those two cases? O
shall | say the finance teans involved?

A. | believe it was very simlar in both
I nstances. M recollection is at |east one of the
processes kicked off before the financing order
becane non- appeal able prior to appeals comng in.
But outside of that | think it was very simlar in
terns of the involvenent of Staff.

Q Did the, as you said, little

di fferences between those two inpact the finance
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teamis ability to contract and provide inpact --

I nput ?

A No. | think there was sufficient
engagenent fromthe utilities and at | east enough --
given the nature of the utilities in those instances
enough specification in the financing order and
wi I lingness to work coll aboratively together that the
finance teamwas able to fulfill its obligations
t hrough the process with those slight differences.

Q Bear ne with for just a nonent. \Wat
Is different between these two statenments as outlined
in Issue 1D, the size, selection process,
partici pants, allocation, and econom cs of the
underwiter and any ot her nenber of the syndicate
group conpared to the sel ection process for the
underwiters including with respect to allocation and
econom cs?

A. Bear with me one second, |'mjust
flipping to the issue list. Gkay. So the difference
between the two is the inclusion of the word size and
the word participants that | believe are mssing from
t he proposed financing order that was put out by
Anreren relative to the prior financing orders. Size
| would think of as the nunber of underwiters that

are participating in the process. So whether or not
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you have a single |lead underwiter or nmultiple | ead

underwiters, effectively the nunber of underwiters
that are involved in the process is inportant.
Otentines we'll go through and | ook at relative
conps and we'll ask underwiters, as part of the RFP
process as everybody's trying to win this business
how big of a team do you need in order to get the
best execution and achi eve the | owest cost on this.
So having information -- or having the ability to
informthe process based on the appropriate nunber of
underwiters to be involved in the i ssuance process
i's hel pful and not explicitly outlined in here and a
not abl e change fromthe prior two financing orders
this Comm ssion has approved.

The participants would be the individual
partici pants thensel ves, right. Wo participates in
the process, who the utility goes out to to receive
protocols. So are they going out to a narrow
uni verse of potential banks to get feedback, are they
goi ng out, you know, very broad to Wall Street? And
we found in nmany processes that we've been a part of
going out to a broad part -- broad portion of the
mar ket and asking for feedback around how do we best
achieve this structure marketing and pricing of this

I ssuance, what are the different things that you
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recommend. Wiile each of these banks are conpeting

to win the business getting that information froma
broad universe of underwiters is hel pful because we
can then take that back, as part of the finance team
revi ew process and recommendati ons that are nmade by
the selected underwiters, and conpare it, here's
what all of Wall Street thought we should do for this
particul ar issue, here's what's recommended by the

| ead underwriters for the particular issue.

And so having the benefit of making sure,
you know, we've got a broad group, we've got the
right group, and we've gone out to the right
institutions that are active in this market and not
just institutions where there's a relationship or
ot herwi se where the utility is engaged in the past
but going out broadly to the fol ks that are nost
active in this market is hel pful in garnering
i nformation that we can then use through the finance
t eam revi ew process.

So those two differences, the nunber of
underwiters and the particular underwiters that
participate is what we're trying to get out with that
| anguage.

Q So you believe that difference is

significant?
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A. Yes. | think it's very inportant to

make sure that the finance teamhas the ability to be
i nvol ved in those aspects of the process. It's
unclear if Anmeren was intending to renove those itens
but it's notably different than past financing orders
and | believe it's inportant that those simlar --
that those sane protections are in place in this
finance order.

Q Thank you. Now, you renenber right
before nme Aneren's attorney Ms. Tatro was asking you
questions, right?

A. Yes.

Q And during one of those questions
when she asked you, in answer you said |'mstill
review ng, correct?

A. Yes.

Q And what were you doi ng then?

A. Readi ng the | anguage that | believe
you were referring to. Wen | was referencing, |
believe ny testinony, |ooking for the | anguage that
she was | ooking for.

Q Do you believe that you coul d have
answered her question w thout review ng that
docunent ?

A | was | ooking for context of what she
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was asking before answering. So | typically like to

have the benefit of the context.

Q Do you believe that you coul d
col l aborate in the post financing order process if
you did not review all docunentation that was not
privil eged?

A Ch, sorry, Judge. | thought you were
referring to sonething totally different when she
asked nme to find the I anguage within ny testinony.

So the review process itself, in terns of nmaking sure
that the finance teamreceives information that it
can review as part of finance teamreviewis
incredibly inportant. | don't think that w thout
receiving information that can be reviewed, that the
finance teamcan be fully effective through the
process and provide the input and coll aboration that,
you know, is necessary in order to fulfill the role
of the finance team So receiving information that
can be reviewed is inportant to the overall process.

Q (kay. Do you believe you could
col l aborate as part of the finance teamif you didn't
revi ew docunent ati on?

A | think it would be difficult and
i neffective.

Q It's been inplied that reviewis

888-893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required Nevada Registration #116F. LEXITAS
www.lexitaslegal.com California Firm Registration #179



© 00 N oo o b~ w N Pk

N N NN NN R R R R R R R R R
g A W N P O © W N O O M W N B O

Evidentiary Hearing April 15, 2024

) ) ) Page 228
i nconsistent wwth the statutory | anguage of 393. 1700.

Do you believe that reviewing is inconsistent with
col | aborati ng?

A No. | think it's entirely consi stent
with it as a concept. In order to collaborate it's
I nportant to have all the information, right, receive
i nformati on, have all the information that all
parties are | ooking at, being able to review and
di gest that information, prepare questions and be
prepared to engage on any particular topic. So |
think the two concepts go very closely hand in hand.
| think it's helpful to have it spelled out in the
finance team-- finance team process and the finance
order that in the finding of facts that the finance
team has the ability to do that, to review
information, to make sure that it engages
appropriately with the utility and has the necessary
authority to engage with the utility and receive
i nformati on because | think it'll make the process
nore effective. But, you know, | think you could
provi de i nput and col |l aborate, you know, better with
nore i nformation.

Q Do you believe that using the term
review provides any additional rights such as the

right to approve or veto anything?
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A ' msorry, Judge, can you repeat that
guesti on?
Q Do you believe that the word revi ew

infers any right to do anything such as approve or
vet o sonet hi ng?

A. No, | don't -- | don't believe using
the -- having the right to review sonething inplies
that veto right.

JUDGE CLARK: Any re-cross based upon

Comm ssion questions? O in this case Bench

guesti ons.

MS. TATRO No, your Honor.

JUDCGE CLARK: Any re-direct?

MR. KEEVIL: Very quickly.

EXAM NATI ON CONDUCTED

BY: MR KEEVIL

Q Staying on this topic of finance team
and -- are you asking the Conm ssion in your

testinony to order anything in regard to the duration
or duties or operation of the finance team which the
Comm ssion did not order in the previous two M ssouri
financing cases wth which you' ve been invol ved?

A The only difference fromwhat the
Comm ssion authorized in the past to what's proposed

in the current draft of the financing order is
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providing clarity over the finance teams role being

able to commence prior to the order becom ng

non- appeal able. Qher than that the right to appeal
and the underwiter selection process are both

I dentical as proposed here to what was authorized by
the Comm ssion in the prior financing orders.

Q If | could briefly turn your
attention to the Ofice of the Public Counsel wtness
Murray's proposed post financing order process. M.
Murray, as | understand it, wants virtually
everything filed publicly. |Is that your
understanding? | did say virtually so I'mkind of --
let me ask you this way. What is your understanding
of M. Mirray's recommendati ons regardi ng the post
financi ng order process?

A My understanding is he's suggesting
I ncluding increnental information on pricing of
certain other issuances in the issuance advice letter
and he's seeking certifications and letters delivered
fromStaff's financial adviser to Staff and fromthe
underwiters to the issuer to be public or filed in
sone redacted formrather than confidential.

Q Do you have a contract that covers
itens such as those wth Staff or the Comm ssion?

A Yes.

888-893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required Nevada Registration #116F. LEXITAS
www.lexitaslegal.com California Firm Registration #179



© 00 N oo o b~ w N Pk

N N NN NN R R R R R R R R R
g A W N P O © W N O O M W N B O

Evidentiary Hearing April 15, 2024

) . Page 231
Q And did you have certain -- based on

previ ous experience with Mssouri finance cases, did
you have certain expectations regarding the
confidentiality and privil ege of comrunications
pursuant to the contract?

A. Yes.

Q Do you believe that in m dstream or
actually rather far down the streamat this point we
should be altering the confidentiality and privilege
nature of those negotiated for expectations?

A. No.

Q | f the Comm ssion was to agree
theoretically with some of what M. Mirray has
proposed, do you believe it should be done in a
current proceeding or done in future proceedings? In
ot her words, | nean, after we have a contract we have
expectations, we have a track record. If you want to
-- if M. Mirray, and the Conm ssion agrees with M.
Murray, wants to change the way things are done,
change the way the Comm ssion's regul ation on
confidentiality is interpreted and applied, nake
changes regarding the contract, the regulation, is
that sonething that you would be -- expect to see
done after the fact? | nean, during -- you've

al ready contracted to do this. |Is nowthe tine to do
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it or is -- doit in the future?
A Right. | believe it -- any type of
-- one, | don't recommend or propose any type of
change, | think it could be detrinmental to the

process and ultimtely the cost of the process. But
two, if the Conmm ssion were to -- and Conm ssion
Staff were to change the approach on this | think
it's sonething that should take place in advance

rat her than, you know, following -- entering into

contracts and being as far as along in the process as

we are.
Q Thank you.
MR. KEEVIL: No further questions.
JUDGE CLARK: Thank you. 1've got one
real quick. | don't think it will trigger any
re-cross or re-direct but | will still |eave those

options open for people.

EXAM NATI ON CONDUCTED

BY: JUDGE CLARK

Q Does your firmtypically track the
docunents it's reviewed during the structuring and
mar keti ng and pricing phase?

A " m digesting the word track. But we
certainly keep a close eye on the docunents that we

receive, we review those -- the docunents that we
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recei ve. Sone information's received in witten

form a lot of information is received in verbal form
as well. Those could be discussions with the
underwiters, discussions with the traders, investor
presentations, you know, small group presentations,
vari ous engagenent with the investor community that,
you know, we don't -- it wouldn't be practical,
right, during the pricing process to track the detail
of those discussions. But we typically nonitor the
various, you know, work strains that we work through
the process to ensure that we're conpleting an
adequat e revi ew.

JUDCGE CLARK: Thank you. Any re-cross
based upon that question?

MR WLLIAVS: | think a question or two.

JUDGE CLARK: o ahead, M. WIIians.

EXAM NATI ON CONDUCTED

BY: MR WLLIAMS

Q Judge O ark just asked you about
tracking, | believe information that you receive in
various forns. Do you create any kind of an audible
-- auditable trail?

A So | want to be careful in terns of
the confidential nature of letters that we would

provide in certain instances. But in the event that
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we were providing a letter, one of the things that we

woul d include in those letters would Iikely be, you
know, the type of work streans that we conpleted as
part of the process.

Q Well, | think the point of the
tracki ng woul d sonebody be able to cone back,
i ncl udi ng perhaps you, after the fact and | ook at
what had been reviewed, is that sonething that can or

cannot be done?

A |'d need to cone back to you on that.
Typically we'll receive various, you know, docunents,
we'll go through a process, nmake sure that the

various itens that are spelled out for us within the
financing order are conpleted as part of the review
process. But in terns of individual docunents,
different drafts of docunents, which versions of
drafts woul d have been appropriately received,

repl acenent drafts, that type of information, there's
not a tracker, if you wll, that goes through and
says for each individual docunent here is the review
that took place of those. You know, going through
the process we'll go through, you know, step by step
each el enment of the process and so itens will get
reviewed as part of our overall review process. But

in ternms of, you know, a specific tracker or docunent
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that tracks those that's not sonething that we could

provi de.

Q Let nme try again. Wen you say you
couldn't provide it, it's not sonething you can
create after the fact, is that what you're sayi ng?

A. Sorry. It's not sonething that
exists in the type of formthat | believe you're
referring to.

Q All I'"mgetting at is whether or not
sonebody could -- you have information that sonebody
could ook at what it was that you reviewed in order
to render your opinions, do your work after you'd
done the work, however that's acconplished? |
believe that's what the Judge was after.

A. Yeah. And maybe this is responsive
inre-direct, maybe it's not. But information that
we rely on as part of our work, information that we
receive that inforns our overall, you know, process
and letter that we would deliver to Staff is
sonet hing that we woul d enunerate in terns of --
there's probably subcategories to that, right, in
terns of, you know, different drafts a day. You
know, call it an indenture, right, if you received
five different drafts, did you just review the final

version, did you review, you know, iteration, you
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know, two and three, those types of itens | don't

have a particular tracker for, if you wll.

Q Thank you.

JUDGE CLARK: Thank you. Any further
re-cross? Any re-direct?

EXAM NATI ON CONDUCTED

BY: MR KEEVIL

Q M. Davis, if you were to be ordered
to do that which M. WIIlianms and Judge O ark just
gueri ed you about, going back, recreating |lists of
t hi ngs and tracki ng what you've previously reviewed,
woul d that have any inpact on your cost?

A | don't know that it would inpact the
overall -- overall cost outside of, you know, to the
extent we needed legal review or other third party
review of that type of work product. | don't know
otherwise that it would be additive to the overall
cost.

Q In this -- in the industry in which
you work, is there a lot of free tine between when
you review things and when deci sions on them nust be
made?

A No. The market -- and very good
question. The market noves extrenely quickly within

our space, especially as part of the npst dynamc

888-893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required Nevada Registration #116F. LEXITAS
www.lexitaslegal.com California Firm Registration #179



© 00 N oo o b~ w N Pk

N N NN NN R R R R R R R R R
g A W N P O © W N O O M W N B O

Evidentiary Hearing April 15, 2024

. . . Page 237
el ement of this process. Going through the pricing

process noves extrenely quickly, information and
deci sions are nade with very short periods of tine,
very short w ndow to digest information. So
preparation is inportant to it but also you receive a
|l ot of information, you know, fromthe underwiters,
fromthe traders, frominformation com ng out of
f eedback frominvestors that need to be reacted to in
a very short period of tine in order to nake sure
that reactions occur while investors are still
engaged and that there isn't, you know, sone
unnecessary delay during the pricing process that
coul d adversely inpact investor demand and coul d
cause people to lose interest or start to focus on
ot her transactions that nay be com ng to narket at
the sane tinme or maybe in market. So engagi ng
quickly is certainly an inportant elenment of our
process especially as parts of the pricing process.

Q So you wouldn't have tine to sit down
and make a list of everything you just discussed on
t he phone with sonebody so you could send that to M.
WIllianms later on to nake sure he got all the
I nformati on he needs?

A. That's right. It would be incredibly

inmpractical. | think it would create a ton of
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frustration for the underwiters going through the

I ssuance process as well and the investors. And |
think in doing that, if we slowed down the process to
transcri be each of these discussions that we had with
various traders, underwiters, parties involved in
the process it could be disruptive to the overall
pricing. And, you know, anything that does that,
that sl ows down the process and risks outcone versus
result for custoners, to log the information, | don't
-- | wouldn't recommend as part of a pre-issuance
post financing order process.

Q Thank you. No further questions.

JUDGE CLARK: My this witness be excused?
Have any objections? Hearing none. Thank you for
your testinony, M. Davis.

THE W TNESS: Thank you.

JUDGE CLARK: And you're excused. Ckay.
W have now, in the course of this case, taken three
W t nesses out of order so let's see if we can get
back on to our original plan and nove forward. So |
believe the next witness is Anmeren's w tness Sagel .

M5. TATRO  Yes.

JUDGE CLARK: |If you would like to call
your W tness.

M5. TATRO Call Darryl Sagel to the
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st and.

JUDGE CLARK: M. Sagel, when your hands
are enpty would you raise your right hand to be
SWor n,

* * * * *
DARRYL T. SAGEL,

The wi tness, having been first duly sworn

upon his oath, testified as foll ows:
* * * * *

JUDGE CLARK: Thank you. You may be
seated. Aneren.

M5. TATRO And M. Sagel had testinony on
the DOE | oan i ssue which we're now not taking up for
hearing so |I'd go ahead and nove that into the
record. |Is that appropriate?

JUDGE CLARK: Are there any objections? |
don't -- no. W've got M. Sagel up here and we have
done enough out of order, | don't see that this is
going to be a problemeither. So are there any
objections to taking M. Sagel's testinony onto the
record as an exhibit? And do you have an exhi bit
nunber for that?

M5. TATRO | believe it's 21.

MR KEEVIL: D d he have separate

testinony for that versus what he's on the w tness
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stand for?

M5. TATRO He does not. He does not have
testinmony on this finance process. W're nmaking him
avai |l abl e for Conm ssion questions or | guess --

MR. KEEVIL: So he does not have testinony
on the issue on which he's on the stand right now?

M5. TATRO Right. W did not have a
specific witness on that issue so we said we woul d
make hi m avail able so that there was a Conpany

W tness that could answer those questions.

JUDGE CLARK: I'ma little confused just
for the nonment. |'mgoing to back up just for a
second.

M5. TATRO Yeah.

JUDGE CLARK: When you said to answer
Comm ssion questions. | don't believe the Comm ssion

had any questions yet. These are w tnesses that
you're putting on for your issues. So this is an
I ssue. Are you saying there's no testinony on the
I ssue?

M5. TATRO He does not have pre-filed
testinmony on the issue on the question that we're
here today.

JUDGE CLARK: Ckay. |Is he going to

offering live direct testinony on that?
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M5. TATRO He is not. W are putting him

up to be able to answer questions because we -- M.
Ni ehaus - -

JUDGE CLARK: So he's up for cross?

M5. TATRO Yeah, absolutely.

JUDGE CLARK: That's all | wanted to
clarify. Thank you.

M5. TATRO Trying to be hel pful and maybe
it was not. | apol ogi ze.

JUDGE CLARK: No. No. You are being
fine, Ms. Tatro. So when | don't understand
sonething I will ask about it.

M5. TATRO  Perfect.

JUDCGE CLARK: So let's get back to ny
original question which is in regards to -- and it is

Exhibit 5, is that what we're | ooking at?

MR, LOAERY: | thought it was 21
VR. WLLI AVS: | see 5.
M5. TATRO Oh, it's 5. Yes. | don't

know. Five. [It's right. Sorry.

JUDGE CLARK: Ckay. Exhibit 5 1is the
surrebuttal testinony of Darryl Sagel. Are there any
obj ections to admtting Ameren's Exhibit 5 onto the
hearing record?

MR, KEEVIL: | just want to nmake sure
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Exhibit 5 has to do with the DOE | oan issue only?

M5. TATRO That's correct.

MR KEEVIL: Okay. No objection.

MR. WLLIAMS: No objection.

JUDGE CLARK: M. Coffman?

MR. COFFMAN:  No objection.

JUDGE CLARK: Hearing no objection,
Exhibit 5, Darryl Sagel's surrebuttal testinony, is
admtted onto the hearing record. And go ahead, M.
Tatr o.

M5. TATRO Well, M. Sagel's avail able
for cross on Issue 1.

MR. KEEVIL: You brought himin for the
Comm ssion. W have -- the parties apparently have
no questions for M. Sagel.

JUDGE CLARK:  Well, we're going to find
out. Al right. Any questions from AARP?

MR. COFFMAN: No questions?

JUDGE CLARK:  And | assune that's the sane
for Consuner Council, correct?

MR COFFMAN: Correct.

JUDGE CLARK: Any cross-exam nation
guestions fromthe Comm ssion Staff?

MR KEEVIL: No.

JUDGE CLARK: Any cross-exam nation from
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the Ofice of the Public Counsel?

MR, WLLIAMS: Not at this tine.

JUDGE CLARK: Any Conmi ssion questions?

CHAIR HAHN: Yes. Thank you, Judge.

EXAM NATI ON CONDUCTED

BY: CHAI R HAHN

Q Good afternoon

A Af t er noon.

Q Earlier today | incorrectly asked M.
Lansford a question but | think you m ght the nost
appropriate person given his response. In M.
Murray's surrebuttal testinony he suggested a
4.05 percent interest rate for traditional rate
maki ng for the net present val ue cal cul ati on which he
stated was Ameren M ssouri's inbedded cost of debt as
of Decenber 2023. Do you know what is the ol dest and
nost recent debt issuance included in this inbedded

cost of debt? You know when were they issued, for

exanple? I'mtrying to establish the range --
A. Sur e.
Q -- of interest rates.
A Yes. Unfortunately |I don't know the

ol dest issuance but that would go back decades.
Because typically we issue Ameren M ssouri debt, you

know, up to 30 years in tenor. | believe there's
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roughly 20 securities within that inbedded cost of

debt portfolio. The nost recent issuance was in
March of 2023. That was done at a coupon rate of
5. 045 percent.

| would nention -- this is just, you know,
additional information. But since the tinme that that
I mbhedded cost of debt cal cul ati on was perforned
Ameren M ssouri has priced two additional securities
in 2024, one in January of 2024, a $350 mllion 30
year first nortgage bonds at 5.25 percent coupon and
in March $500 mllion of 10 year first nortgage bonds
at 5.20 percent. Those are not included in the
I mhedded cost of debt cal culations that you
referenced but it gives you an indication of where
current markets are relative to our historical
| mbedded cost of debt.

Q That was very hel pful. Thank you.

A Sur e.

JUDCGE CLARK: Are there any other
Comm ssi on questions? | hear none. | have no
guestions for this witness. Are there -- is there
any re-cross based upon Comm ssion questions? Any
re-direct?

M5. TATRO No re-direct. Thank you.

JUDGE CLARK: Is there any reason to not
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excuse this wtness? M. Sagel, thank you for your

step down.

W TNESS: Thank you.

JUDGE CLARK: Next witness | see is Public

Counsel's. Public Counsel, you may call your

W LLI ANVE: Publ i ¢ Counsel calls David

* * * * *

DAVI D MJURRAY,
W t ness, having been first duly sworn

testified as foll ows:

* * * * *

JUDGE CLARK: Pl ease be seated. Go ahead,

EXAM NATI ON CONDUCTED

MR, WLLI AMS
Pl ease state your nane.

My nane is David Murray, |ast nane

spelled MU R RA-Y.

By whom are you enpl oyed and i n what

M ssouri Ofice of the Public Counsel

as a utility regulatory manager.

M. Miurray, did you prepare testinony
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that's rebuttal testinony that's been pre-filed in

this case and marked -- or will be Exhibit 201?

A Yes.

Q And is there a schedul e to that
testi nony DM R-17?

A. Yes.

Q Did you al so prepare and cause to be
pre-filed surrebuttal testinony?

A. Yes.

Q And that's been nmarked for
identification -- well, that wll be marked for
identification as Exhibit 202. Are there schedul es
to that surrebuttal testinony?

A. Yes.

Q Are those Schedules DM S-1 to DM S- 3,
corrected Schedules DM S-4 to corrected Schedul e
DM S-7 and Schedul es DM S-8 and 9?

A. Yes.

Q And as a result of those corrections
to your schedules to your surrebuttal testinony, have
you prepared an errata to your surrebuttal testinony?

A Yes, | have.

Q That's been circulated to the parties
in the Commssion and it will be Exhibit 203.

JUDGE CLARK: |'msorry, could you say
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t hat agai n, please?

MR, WLLIAMS: There's an errata sheet
that has been circulated to the parties in the
Comm ssion that would -- it should be Exhibit 203.
So there' Il be Exhibit 201 which is David Murray's
rebuttal testinony, 202 which is his surrebuttal that
I ncl udes sonme corrected schedules, and his errata to
his surrebuttal which will be Exhibit 203.

BY: MR WLLIAMS

Q M. Mirray, would you have any
further corrections to what are Exhibits 201, 202,
and 203 for themto be your testinony here today?

A No. The errata sheet covers
ever yt hi ng.

Q And you'll be up on other issues

later in this hearing, wll you not?

A Yes.
MR WLLIAMS: So I'Il forgo offering his
exhibits at this tine. And with that, 1'll tender

M. Mirray for exam nation.
JUDCGE CLARK: M. Coffman, is there any

cross-exam nati on from AARP or Consuner Council of

M ssouri ?
MR. COFFMAN:. No questions, your Honor.
JUDGE CLARK: Thank you. Any
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cross-exam nati on from Comm ssion Staff?

MR KEEVIL: Yes. Didn't realize | was up
al r eady.

JUDGE CLARK: Well, there were a | ot of
parties here but nost of them have very isol ated
interest and so the vast majority of them were
excused.

MR, KEEVIL: Since M. WIllians correctly
didn't offer M. WIllians -- excuse ne, | said that
backwards. As M. WIllians correctly didn't offer
M. Mirray's testinony into the record I didn't get a
chance to do this. But | would Iike to voice an
objection to M. Mirray's surrebuttal testinony.

When the tinme cones for you to rule on that | may not
be the one that's here so | wanted to put it on -- |

wanted to raise the objection now so it can be ruled
upon | ater.

| would object to -- from Pages 12 through
the end of the testinony -- the section on issuance
advice |letter and post financing order issues, |
bel i eve are, nunber one, irrelevant to this case as
they deal primarily with the Enpire case and the
Evergy case and they're also constitute inproper
surrebuttal because they all -- contained therein are

new recommendations of M. Miurray for this case which
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is -- it could -- it should have been raised earlier

in the case. And related to those pages of the
testinmony would be Exhibits -- or whatever he's
calling them-- DMS-9 -- 8 and DM S-9.

JUDCGE CLARK: Now, you had said the
I ssuance advice on Page 12 till the end of his
testinony concerning the issuance advice |letter and
what el se?

MR, KEEVIL: Well, he -- |I'mnot saying
they actually deal with that. He has that section of
testinony titled i ssuance advice letter and post
financing order issues. | just think that whole
entire section should be stricken.

JUDGE CLARK: And that is separate and
apart from Aneren's notion to strike portions?

MR. KEEVIL: Right. Right.

JUDGE CLARK: So this is -- you're
objecting to the adm ssion of it or you're noving to
stri ke those portions?

MR. KEEVIL: Either one. Gyve ne either
one, |I'Il take it.

JUDGE CLARK: GCkay. |I'mnot going to rule
on that now obviously since it's not tinme for it to
come in.

MR, WLLIAMS: Judge, |I'munclear as to

888-893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required Nevada Registration #116F. LEXITAS
www.lexitaslegal.com California Firm Registration #179




© 00 N oo o b~ w N Pk

N N NN NN R R R R R R R R R
g A W N P O © W N O O M W N B O

Evidentiary Hearing April 15, 2024

. . . Page 250
the basis of the objection.

JUDGE CLARK: Well, he's saying that the
objection is -- he's basically listed two reasons for
the objection. One is he says the information is
irrelevant and --

MR KEEVIL: To this case, yes.

JUDCGE CLARK: To this case. And it
appears that his other objection is that it
i ntroduces new analysis that is not responsive to
matters previously testified to. |Is that correct?

MR KEEVIL: | would add in rebuttal to
what you just said.

JUDGE CLARK: In rebuttal.

MR, KEEVIL: Yes.

JUDGE CLARK: [|'ve nade a note -- and |'||
see if | have a highlighter. 1|'ve made a note and
hi ghlighted it and hopefully that wll be enough to
remnd ne in the future when it conmes tinme for --
when sonebody offers it for adm ssion.

MR. WLLIAMS: Thank you.

JUDCGE CLARK: Al right. Go ahead, M.

WI1lians.
MR KEEVIL: [I'msorry, may |?
JUDCGE CLARK: Go ahead, M. Keevil.
EXAM NATI ON CONDUCTED
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BY: MR KEEVIL

Q M. Miurray, | have just a few
gquestions. |If traditional rate nmaking was intended
to be not providing recovery or financing at the
hi storic cost of Ameren debt -- Ameren M ssouri debt,
sorry, would securitization ever yield a net present
val ue benefit for custoners?

A Can you pl ease repeat the question,
pl ease?

Q Sure. |If traditional rate maki ng was
i ntended to not provide recovery or financing at the
hi storic cost of Anmeren debt, would securitization
ever yield a net present value benefit for custoners?

A. If | can sunmarize what you just said
and nmake sure we're on the sane page?

Q Ckay.

A Are you asking if traditional rate
maki ng recovery was based on the historical cost of
debt and it was conpared to securitization would it
ever result in net present value savings, was that
your question?

Q Well, let's go wth that one, yeah.

A Ckay. It depends on -- |I'mhaving --
M. Lansford brought this up in his testinony. |

think it depends on the interest rate environnment,
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the current interest rate environnent corrpared to

what's the historical cost of debt that's on the
books. | nean, | can -- just like in the Evergy

M ssouri West case | think in the traditional rate
maki ng scenario the Staff had recomended a

5.06 percent cost of debt and at the tine the
securitization rate was about five percent. So they
used a different point in tinme that caused that

I mhedded cost debt to be a bit higher. But that --
you know, that nmade it pretty close as to whether or
not there woul d have been net present val ue savings
based on what was decided in Evergy M ssouri West

or der.

So inthis situation wth Areren M ssouri,
you know, basically they're alnost at the trough. |
don't know if they've ever been at -- you know what,
| think 3.99 percent was their | owest inbedded cost
of debt based on experience of doing the rate cases.
So, yeah, obviously they just had an A rated bond
I ssue, M. Sagel discussed, of about 5.2 percent.
You know, hopefully the securitization cost would be
| ower than that if it's a Triple A rated bond. |
mean, that's one of the reasons why | think this
process is inportant to understand.

But yeah, as it is right now, no, | nean,
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based on the current market condition it would never

-- it would not be -- I"'mnot going to use the term
never but at this point it would not result in net
present val ue benefits.

Q You said -- you al nost used the term
never and then you changed your mnd, if | understood
you there, and said |'mnot going to use the term
never but it would not -- so you think it could
result --

MR WLLIAMS: Judge, |'mobjecting to M.
Keevi| commenting on the evidence.

MR, KEEVIL: Ckay.

JUDGE CLARK: No, no, no.

MR. KEEVIL: Go ahead. |[|'msorry, Judge.

JUDGE CLARK: Ckay. What is your
guesti on?

MR, KEEVIL: | was trying to understand
hi s answer.

JUDCGE CLARK: Ckay. What | heard was that
-- what | heard it going along was that you said you
al nost said never but then you indicated -- what was
obj ecti onabl e?

MR WLLIAMS: He's just repeating -- he's
testifying essentially. He's repeating what -- at

| east his interpretation of what M. Mirray said.
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|"mjust saying he needs to ask a question instead of

commenting on the evidence.

JUDGE CLARK: |Is there a question in

t here?

MR, KEEVIL: | didn't get to the question
because of M. WIllians but there will be.

JUDGE CLARK: (Ckay. |I'mgoing to let you

go on and ask it.

MR. KEEVIL: Okay.

JUDGE CLARK: So at |east for now the
obj ection's overrul ed.

BY: MR KEEVIL

Q M. Mirray, what caused you to change
your mnd there to say not -- you won't say never?

A. It wouldn't be never because |ike |
said as M. Lansford pointed out --

Q How | ong woul d it be?

A. | was going to finish. But if
interest rates start to decline and say we should
have interest rates below -- hopefully like a Triple
A cost that's bel ow four percent you woul d have net
present val ue savi ngs because that cost is |ower than
t he i nbedded cost of debt.

So if you could get a securitized bond

rate that is below four percent if for whatever
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reason we hit a severe recession and we have to go

back down to zero percent interest rates we nmay have
bond costs that were at extrene |low | evels that we
had in 2020 and 2021. So the answer cannot be never
because we don't know what the market's going to do.

Q Do you see any secondary inpacts
occurring if Areren was ordered to 100 percent debt
finance its material costs?

A | believe that's what they' re doing
Wi th securitization is they're going to be financing
it wth 100 percent debt.

Q That wasn't the question. Do you --

JUDGE CLARK: M. Keevil, can you | ean
into your mc a little nore. |I'mgetting a note that
you - -

BY: MR KEEVIL

Q That wasn't the question, M. Mirray.
The question was do you see any secondary inpacts --
|l et nme rephrase that. Does the -- in your opinion,
does the overall amount of debt at the utility inpact
its cost -- inpact nore than just its cost of
financing the itens that it is financing at the tine
or does that inpact its entire capital structure?

A. |"msorry. That was nultiple

guestions. You're going to have to break that down
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for nme, please.

Q Does the overall anount of debt at
the utility inpact only its cost of financing those
itens that it is financing or does that inpact its
entire capital structure?

A Each -- | mean, you're constantly
managi ng your capital structure. So if you issue --
as M. Sagel pointed out, you know, they issued 350
mllion, 500 mllion bond issuance, so there would be
a -- even though | don't agree that Aneren M ssouri's
capital structure is truly independent. But you know
let's just say that they felt |like they had to
mai ntain a 50 percent common equity ratio, they would
need to balance that. |If they wanted to maintain --
or if they maintained that they were, you know,
focusing on just Anmeren M ssouri, which | don't agree
wi th and have never truly agreed wth.

Q What potential inpacts would a
securitization such as we're here for today have on
Ameren's cost of equity?

A. | think it reduces their risk profile
of Ameren M ssouri .

Q So what inpact would that have on the
cost of equity in your opinion?

A It would reduce the cost of equity.
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Q How woul d a shift to 100 percent debt

financing i npact Aneren's operational capabilities?

A They would still be able to raise
capital and there may be a debate on how nuch the
cost is but they would be able to raise capital. So
to the extent they needed capital for their
operational facilities they could still go to narket
and we coul d have a debate as to whether or not
there's an inpact on cost.

Q So you m ght debate that?

A Ch, we're always debating it in rate
of return, aren't we?

Q If we shifted to 100 percent debt
financing there would be no equity?

A. Wel |, but you're tal king about on
Rush Island, that's only one part of the ten billion,
el even billion rate base of Ameren M ssouri. | nean,
it's smal |l percentage in the whole real mof things.
So 100 percent debt financing, | agree wth you for
t he special purpose entity that's going to be about
100 debt financing for securitization but it's not
100 percent debt financing for Areren M ssouri.

Q But what if you | ook at Anmeren
M ssouri not just limted to the special purpose

entity?
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A ' m not recommendi ng 100 percent debt

financing so | don't understand why that's rel evant.

Q Doesn't really matter what inpact you
-- woul d that have?

A. It would not have a | arge i npact
"cause it's only for 500 mllion.

Q We're not tal king about Rush I sl and,
we're tal king about Aneren M ssouri.

A. Anmeren M ssouri --

Q 100 percent --

A -- capitalizing 100 percent of its
rate base.

Q 100 percent debt.

A Ckay.

JUDGE CLARK: Al right. Don't talk over
each other. Take sone tine, answer the question and
| et himanswer the question.

THE WTNESS: First of all, | don't think
t hat woul d ever happen. But under that hypothetical
scenario -- of course the only way it would happen is
securitization. But under that hypothetical scenario
there, you know, they wouldn't be able to, you know,
rai se capital at any reasonabl e cost.

BY: MR KEEVIL

Q | f Ameren M ssouri were -- yeah,
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Ameren Mssouri's credit rating were to decline, what

woul d be the immediate and long termeffects on its
borrow ng costs and investnent capacity?

A |f the rating declined sonetines it's
-- as |'ve observed between Ameren M ssouri and
Anreren Il linois, even though they have different
credit ratings sonetines their cost of debt is quite
simlar. So the market, you know, considers the
credit ratings. |If the market agrees with the rating
agencies that that inplies a higher risk profile then
that shoul d cause for a higher cost of debt. Now, as
far as its ability to raise capital, you're still
going to be able to raise capital it's just whether
or not it's going to be at a different price.

Q Coul d you el aborate on the potenti al
long terminpacts of altering Anreren's debt to equity
rati o through increased debt financing?

A. Consi dering that Ameren Corp.
consol i dated has about a 40 percent to 45 percent
comon equity ratio | don't think that treating Rush
| sland as 100 percent debt is going to have a

significant inpairnment on Areren Mssouri's credit

quality.
Q And again, I'mnot limting this to
just Rush Island. |[If you increase -- excuse ne. |If
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you alter Ameren's debt to equity ratio through

I ncreased debt financing what's the |ong term i npact
of that going to be?

A | woul d appreciate nore specifics
‘cause you're just saying, you know, increase. An
I ncrease can be, you know, five percent nore debt to
capital in the capital structure, it could be ten
percent nore debt to debt to capital in the capital
structure. What |I'mindicating is Areren itself,
which is the parent conpany of Ameren M ssouri and
Ameren Il linois and Aneren Transm ssi on Conpany
al ready has a 40 to 45 percent common equity ratio.
So what |"'msaying is is what -- Aneren M ssouri
having a debt ratio of 48 percent if it went into the
sane range that Aneren's in it has a stronger
busi ness risk profile so its credit rating -- if it's
rated on a standal one basis, you know, it should not
be any | ower than what Aneren's is right now

Q O her than what has al ready been
shared publicly, what feedback, if any, have you
recei ved from consuner advocacy groups regardi ng the
securitization approach in this case?

A Well, | received -- actually | just
got back from SURFA which is Society of Uility

Regul atory Financial Analysts and | was there -- |

888-893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required Nevada Registration #116F. LEXITAS
www.lexitaslegal.com California Firm Registration #179



© 00 N oo o b~ w N Pk

N N NN NN R R R R R R R R R
g A W N P O © W N O O M W N B O

Evidentiary Hearing April 15, 2024

Page 261
was in R chnond, Virginia on Thursday and Friday and

| talked to a gentleman with I think Drexel Ham|ton.

He's not a consuner advocate but he does

securitizations. |'ve talked to, you know, sone
other folks that -- wth staffs and consuner
advocates that -- you know, that are involved in the
securitization. | have securitization rate cases in
Virginia, Florida, Texas. |'mnot sure if | talked
to anybody from Loui si ana or Okl ahoma, |'m not sure

that they were there. O her consuner advocates in
North Carolina. North Carolina recently had a
consuner advocate that hired a financial adviser

whi ch by the way they filed their certificate letters
redacted in that proceeding so |'mnot sure this can
be classified as an industry standard. They pushed
for that in North Carolina.

Q Who was that financial adviser?

A. In North Carolina, | think they had a
muni ci pal underwriting -- bond underwiter. Because
In sone of these states --

Q | didn't ask for the underwiter, |
asked for the financial adviser you said --

A That is the financial adviser. That
was the financial adviser.

Q Ckay. Who filed the issuance advice
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| etter on behalf, was it an underwiter?

A They didn't act as the underwiter in
that case, they acted as the financial adviser. A
|l ot of times these financial advisers have roles as
underwiters as well that's why you have investnent
banks that -- actually M. N ehaus, who was here
earlier, she's a financial adviser right now and then
she'll becone -- she hopes to becone the underwiter
if they get the business. So you can serve in
multiple roles. But in North Carolina -- that
consuner advocate in North Carolina pushed for those
certification letters and opinion letters to be filed
public and redact ed.

Q So you have been in contact with
peopl e other than those working within the M ssouri
O fice of the Public Counsel regarding your
recommendations in this case?

A. | don't know specifically about ny
recomendations in this case but, yeah, obviously
talking to them about the securitization process to
get nyself better infornmed about, you know, what's
going on in other states and what the best practice
Is. | nmean, obviously you saw it attached to
Kent ucky, you know, sonething fromthe proposed

Kentucky order that has a market pricing conparison
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sheet. So yeah.

Q So what have you told these people
about this case?

A What have | -- | told themthis is
the third securitization case in Mssouri and it has
to do with closing of a coal plant. And you know,
actually | tal ked about consuner discount rates not
just wwth -- you know not just -- with Steve Kine in
W sconsin, very, very, intelligent person that has a
-- you know, publishes a lot of works with vari ous
regul atory issues but specifically has addressed
consuner discount rates. Yeah, lots. | don't
remenber everybody.

Q Well, I"mnot really asking you about
the people you' ve talked wth, | was nore interested
in what you' ve disclosed to themregarding this case?

A | didn't disclose anything
confidential, if that's what you're trying -- | just
di scussed the issues of securitization.

Q Well, you' ve got a |lot of testinony
about what happened in the -- what was filed in the
previ ous two cases, do you not?

A Yes. That's experience we've
gathered in M ssouri.

Q Yes is the -- that's the answer?
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A Yes. Yes.

Q Then what did you tell these outside
consul tants about your experiences in those previous
cases?

A. | don't think | discussed anything

about those previous cases.

Q Didn't discuss anything?
A | nean, --

Q Ckay.

A.

They can | ook in EFIS.

Q Can you provide detailed insights
into the structuring of securitization utility tariff
bonds?

A. No, that's not ny area of expertise.

Q Ckay. So do you know -- and if you
don't just say you don't. How do the terns and
conditions conpare to those terns and condi ti ons of
traditional bonds issued by Aneren or Aneren
M ssouri ?

A Well, yeah, that's -- like | said,
that's -- definitely we just had recent Anmeren
M ssouri first nortgage bond i ssuances at, you know,
5.2 percent, you know, ten year bond, oh, | think the
wei ghted average of life is going to be right around

that in this securitization case. So, you know, if
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Triple A bonds are going to result in |ower costs as

to securitization processes, you know, hopes to
achi eve then hopefully that bond price should be a
little bit lower than the 5.2 percent of Aneren
M ssouri's current bonds.

Q What are these safeguards in place to
protect Aneren and its custoners in the event of

mar ket volatility or unexpected financial downturn?

A | have no idea what context you're
tal king about. | don't know.
Q That's all | think | have, Judge.

JUDGE CLARK: Aneren M ssouri?

M5. TATRO  Your Honor, | just want to
clarify, we are only on Issue -- we've bounced around
so nuch. We're only on Issue 1 here, correct?

JUDGE CLARK: That is correct.

M5. TATRO | have no questions, thank
you.

JUDCGE CLARK: Any questions fromthe
Comm ssion? Go ahead, Chair Hahn.

CHAIR HAHN: No questions from ne, Judge.

JUDGE CLARK: Thank you. |'ve got a few
questions -- well, let ne ask. Are there any other
Comm ssi on questions?

MR, HOLSMAN: No questi ons.
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JUDGE CLARK: And | apologize. | think

the Chair has sone questions on |Issue 2 which | just
indicated to Ms. Tatro we're not taking up at this
poi nt .

EXAM NATI ON CONDUCTED

BY: JUDGE CLARK

Q Now, in your surrebutal you suggested
a 4.05 percent interest rate for traditional rate
maki ng for the net present value calculation; is that
correct?

A. Yes.

Q And you al so nentioned that Aneren
M ssouri's inbedded cost of debt as of Decenber 2023
was al so 4.05 percent; is that correct?

A Yes. And let ne -- can | clarify?
That is the rate that | suggest or recomend t hat
woul d be used as the allowed return for the 15 years
of anortization. That is not the discount rate |I'm
recomrendi ng for purposes of discounting those cash
flows.

Q Al right. Do you know -- | nean, we
just heard a little bit of discussion of what's
involved in -- do you know what | oans are included in
t he i nbedded debt?

A There's quite a few bond i ssuances.
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| think, you know -- yes, M. Sagel probably
accurately sunmarized that it could -- usually the
| ongest bond maturities you have are 30 years. So it

coul d go back as, you know, the late '90s. Sorry.

Q No, no. | interrupted you. Pl ease,
go ahead.

A So it could be anywhere fromthe |ate
"90s to, you know, the past decade. | nean, excuse
me, I'Il recall -- | recall during the financial

crisis that Anmeren M ssouri issued a bond at
8.45 percent, that one has al ways been burned in ny
m nd because it was a very unfortunate situation to
have to issue a bond at that high of a cost at the
time. But anyway, so there are other bonds, yes,
t hat have various costs. So it's basically a
portfolio of bonds.

Q Soit's a fairly wide range?

A. Yes.

Q Ckay. Do you think it's appropriate
to conpare the long termdebt rate that includes
| oans that were issued during tines when there was a
much | ower interest rate with a proposed 5.6 bond
rate that is based on a higher interest rate period?

A. That wasn't ny intent. M intent was

to, you know, recognize the capital that is currently
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on Aneren M ssouri's bal ance sheet. So | wasn't

trying to conpare it to the securitized bond rate |
was just |ooking at the cost of capital conponents
that would go into traditional rate making.

Qovi ously, you know, there is an opinion that it
shoul d be the full common equity and | ong term debt
of wei ghted average cost of capital, | prefer to call
It weighted average rate of return because | believe
the cost of equity's |ower than what's authorized.
But anyway, bottomline is that's the debt that is on
t he books that finances assets that's on Ameren

M ssouri's bal ance sheet. You can't use a current
Iinterest rate, it would have no -- until -- if
securitization is approved then it has a relation to
t hose assets.

Q | f Ameren went up for |ong term debt
at the sane tine as the securitization bonds, do you
t hi nk Amreren would get a | ower or a higher interest
rate than a Triple A bond securitization?

A. The estimated rate that M. Davis put
in his -- he provided the nost updated information on
an estimate was 5.33 percent for a securitized bond
rate. Anmeren Mssouri, at the end of Mrch, just
I ssued bonds at 5.2 percent. So this -- you know,

this is again sonething that hasn't been discussed in
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| don't think anybody's testinony or in detail but
there are sone issues that |I'Il call, you know,
systemc within the securitized bond i ssuance space,
| guess is what the Wall Street folks like to call
It, space is -- Bloonberg had reclassified the
utility rate payer backed bonds to asset backed
security for purposes of indexing, they did that in
August of 2022. And ever since that -- ever since
that occurred the spreads over treasuries and spreads
over actually secondary Triple A bond yields at
M crosoft and Johnson and Johnson, the spreads over
t hose types of bonds have increased -- have w dened
since this occurred.

And so it's not a problemspecific to
M ssouri, it's a problemwth, you know, the
financial, you know, players. Bloonberg |I believe,
and ot her indexing services, are not necessarily
regul ated by the SEC as to howit has to be done. So
that -- before 2020 the spreads to treasuries and the
spreads to other Triple A's nuch tighter. And so
that's a problemthat seens to be -- | don't -- like
| said, that's not sonething that | consider to be an
I ssue that's specific to any problens in M ssouri,
it's a-- it's an industry issue.

Q Thank you. Wuld you expl ain why you
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believe that no carrying costs will be permtted by

the Comm ssion if Rush Island's retirenents were
I nstead securitized or anortized in a rate case?

A |"mjust -- I"mrelying on past
Comm ssion established law that says if it's not used
and useful then a return is not allowed. | nean,
that's -- | think | said | used the order from
Li berty where that was di scussed to sone extent. And
of ny awareness of other situations where when a
plant is reclassified or, you know, rebooked as a
regul atory asset a lot of tines those assets are just
anortized with no allowed return whether it's debt or
equity.

Q Were the ongoi ng annual financing
costs for Enpire or Liberty, however you want to say
it, higher in part due to both the fact that you had
two cases in one, both the plant retirenent and the

wi nter storm Wi being securitized?

A | don't know -- no, | don't know if
It was due to that. | nean, | do know that obviously
t he ongoi ng financing costs were about two mllion

hi gher because incone taxes were included in the
financing cost for Enpire and Liberty -- or excuse
me, for Liberty.

Q And | think you're getting to the
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core of ny question. |Is that why you think those

wer e hi gher?

A Ch, there's no doubt that's why the
effective cost -- when | say -- not the bond yield,
not the coupon, the effective cost. So what | did
was | did a determ nation of what the, you know,
paynments would be for -- based on the bond
anortization and the ongoi ng financing costs which
included the 2. -- I'mapproximating, 2.1 mllion of
I ncone taxes that were included in the ongoing
financing charge and that increased the effective
cost of that bond to seven percent. But that's not
-- you know, it was around five percent | believe for
the yield on the bonds, the straight yield.

Q Those are all the questions | have.

JUDGE CLARK: Any re-cross based upon
Comm ssi on Bench questions? Staff?

MR. KEEVIL: No Judge, thank you.

JUDCGE CLARK:  Aneren.

M5. TATRO | just have one question.

EXAM NATI ON CONDUCTED

BY: Ms. TATRO

Q You nentioned -- in reference to
Judge Cd ark's question you started tal ki ng about

Bl oonber g?

888-893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required Nevada Registration #116F. LEXITAS
www.lexitaslegal.com California Firm Registration #179



© 00 N oo o b~ w N Pk

N N NN NN R R R R R R R R R
g A W N P O © W N O O M W N B O

Evidentiary Hearing April 15, 2024

Page 272

A Yes.

Q And their kind of reclassification
t hey went through and you said spreads -- unit of
spreads were widening after. Do you renenber that
conversation?

A Yes.

Q Do you know what spreads were doi ng
prior to that Bl oonberg decision?

A. They were narrower, you know, during
the 2020 -- | think 2020 tineframe. | mean, | think
2022 there was a little bit of volatility obviously
with the markets. That's one thing about trying to
I solate things when it cones to financing there m ght
be sone market volatility as well. But 2020
bel i eve they were tighter.

Q For 2020 they were tighter but about
what about -- when what was this Bl oonberg decision?

A. | believe it was August 1st, 2022.

Q kay. What was it in '21, what was
happening with the spreads in '21?

A | don't have the information
specifically in front of ne right now.

Q You seemto inply that the w dening
of the spreads was because of the Bl oonberg deci sion.

What's your basis for that belief, if you don't know
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what it was doing i medi ately beforehand?

A Oh, | read an article froman asset
manager, periodical.

Q So it was that person's opinion?

A It was an asset -- yeah. It was a
financial period -- article.

Q Ckay. Thank you.

JUDGE CLARK: Any re-direct from Public
Counsel ?

MR, WLLIAMS: Yes. Just a little bit.

EXAM NATI ON CONDUCTED

BY: MR WLLIAMS

Q Do you recall, in response to a
gquestion about the inpact on cost of equity of
securitization and you said that it would decrease
the cost of equity?

A. Yes.

Q Do you know if there's any limtation
on what the Conm ssion can do with that decrease in
cost of equity in a general rate case?

A. No.

Q And who is it that owns Aneren
M ssouri stock?

A Amreren Incorp -- Ameren Corp.

Q 100 percent?
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A 100 percent, yes.
Q What does that all ow Aneren
Corporation to do wwth Aneren M ssouri stock -- or

capital structure?

A. They have affiliate -- you know,
whether it's dividends or capital contributions or
tax all ocation agreenents, et cetera. There are all
sorts of things that -- you know, that can be done
to -- you know, to adjust the -- the capital that
goes in and out of the conpany.

Q And then |'"'mgoing to go to sone
gquestions Presiding Oficer Cark asked you about
4.05 percent traditional inbedded costs.

A. Yes.

Q Does the Conmm ssion use that when
it's setting general rates, inbedded cost?

A Yes. That's included in the overall
rate of return.

Q And what does that nean for purposes
of securitization versus not securitizing?

A. It's -- you know, 4.05 percent was
the -- you know, was the -- what | thought was
consistent with the Conm ssion's anal ysis of
scenarios in Evergy Mssouri Wst and Liberty as to

if it was to allow a |ower return instead of naking

888-893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required Nevada Registration #116F. LEXITAS
www.lexitaslegal.com California Firm Registration #179



© 00 N oo o b~ w N Pk

N N NN NN R R R R R R R R R
g A W N P O © W N O O M W N B O

Evidentiary Hearing April 15, 2024

) ) Page 275
i nvestors conpletely whole for a plant that is no

| onger used and useful to use a -- the | ower inbedded
cost of debt that basically finances, you know, the
aggregate assets on Aneren M ssouri's books.

Q No further questions. Thank you.

JUDCGE CLARK: Thank you, M. Mirray. You
may step down.

THE WTNESS: On |Item 27

JUDGE CLARK: No.

THE WTNESS: GCkay. | didn't know if
there was still nore on Item2, I'msorry.

JUDGE CLARK: There are -- there are itens
on Item2 but we're not on Item 2 yet.

THE WTNESS: Oay. |'msorry.

JUDGE CLARK: W took a few w tnesses out
of sequence and that's the reason they were all owed

to go over both.

THE WTNESS: ['msorry, | was confused.
Apol ogi ze.

JUDCGE CLARK: | wouldn't venture too far,
| imagine you'll be up here quite quick.

THE WTNESS: Gkay. Good deal. Thank
you.
M5. TATRO  Your honor, can | inquire

about the possibility of a very short break?
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al nost forgot and | think everybody coul d use one.
So it is now 3:47. Wy don't we all cone back at

4: 00.

recess was taken.)

that that only |leaves Staff's w tness renaining; i
that correct?

MR. KEEVIL: | think so -- | think so
Judge.

JUDCGE CLARK: Ckay. |If you want to go
ahead and call your w tness.

MR. KEEVIL: Yeah. | would call Keith
Majors to the stand.

JUDGE CLARK: And | will revise ny
prediction that we will be done with Issue 2 by 5:

* * * * *

KEI TH MAJORS,

upon his oath, testified as foll ows:

* * * * *

JUDGE CLARK: Pl ease be seated. Staff,

Page 276

JUDGE CLARK: | amglad you did because |

(At this point in the proceedings, a short

JUDCGE CLARK: Ckay. Let's go back on the
record. Al right. W just concluded Public Counsel

Wi tness David Murray for |Issue Nunber 1. | believe

S

00.

The wi tness, having been first duly sworn

go
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ahead.

EXAM NATI ON CONDUCTED

BY: MR KEEVIL

Q Yes. Thank you. Could you state
your name for the record, please, sir?

A. Keith Mj ors.

Q By whom are you enpl oyed and i n what
capacity?

A. The Staff of the M ssouri Public
Service Conmission as a utility regulatory audit unit
supervi sor.

Q Are you the sane Keith Maj ors who has
caused to be prepared in this case rebuttal testinony
whi ch you may not know this but it has been
pre-marked Exhibit 110 and -- is there also an HC on
that? No. Yes, there was. There was a 110 and 110C
rebuttal ?

A. Yes.

Q And with that rebuttal was there al so
| believe four schedules which were filed along with
the rebuttal but were filed separately due to the
| ength of the schedul es?

A Yes, that's correct.

Q Ckay. Do you have any additions or

corrections you need to nake to any of the 110
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docunent s?

A. No, | do not.

Q Ckay. Did you also cause to be
prepared and filed surrebuttal testinony which has
been pre-nmarked as Exhibit 1117

A. Yes.

Q Do you have any additions or
corrections to that?

A. No, | do not.

Q If | were to ask you the sane
guestions contained in Exhibit 110 -- 110C and 110
and then 111 woul d your answers be the sane as
cont ai ned therein?

A. Yes.

Q And are those answers true and
correct to the best of your information, know edge,
and belief?

A. Yes.

MR, KEEVIL: Judge, M. Myjors has a
mul titude of issues that he's appearing on so | don't
know that it would be proper to answer -- or to offer
the testinony at this stage. So wth that, | would
just tender the witness for cross-exam nation and
make note of fact that the exhibits have been marked

but they haven't been received. |If that's okay with
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you.

JUDGE CLARK: Yes. So noted. Thank you.
| think that's what we all agreed to.

MR. KEEVIL: Yes. And with that, | tender
M. Mjor for cross-exam nation on this issue.

JUDCGE CLARK: Al right. Any
cross-exam nation from Public Counsel ?

MR, WLLIAMS: Briefly.

JUDCGE CLARK: Go right ahead.

EXAM NATI ON CONDUCTED

BY: MR WLLIAMS

Q Good afternoon, M. Mjors. How are
you doi ng?

A. Good afternoon, M. Wllians. |I'm
fine. Thank you.

Q That's good to hear. Let's assune
that Rush Island has a net plant bal ance of 475
mllion as of a date that is going to be included
either in securitization or in general rates. Ckay
with that?

A Ckay.

Q How woul d that net plant bal ance be

treated in traditional rate nmaking in your view?

A Well, | think the assunption is --
well, can | ask is the assunption that it's no | onger
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-- it's retired, it's offline?

Q Yes. Yes. Assuming it's permanently
shut down, retired, abandoned, whatever word you want
to use, it's no longer used and useful.

A. Ri ght ed.

Q So how would it be treated if the
Comm ssion were to allow recovery for that plant?

A | think recovery separately you woul d
-- you woul d assune sone sort of anortization over a
period of tinme in this year. In this case it's --
the assunption is 15 years and that correlates to the
original retirenment date of the unit of 2039 which
woul d be 15 years in the future. Wether or not the

Comm ssion would include that in rate base the

unanorti zed bal ance is unknown. | think you would
| ook -- you would probably | ook at past exanpl es on
-- just if you're doing an analysis -- on assuni ng

whet her or not the Conmm ssion would include that
anmount in rate base.

Q Have you ever -- are you aware of any
I nstance where the Conm ssion has included a net --
net book bal ance for a retired generating plant that
was retired ten or nore years in advance of its
depreciation life where it's done that anortization?

| mean rate base, |'msorry.
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MR, KEEVIL: I|I'msorry. |'mconfused now
as to what the question is.
MR WLLIAVS: Let ne try again.
BY: MR WLLI AVS
Q Are you aware of any instance where

the Comm ssion for a plant that's retired nore than
ten -- ten years or nore prematurely where the

Comm ssion has allowed it to be -- continue to give
it rate base treatnent?

A There are no exanples that | recall
of fhand. There are very few exanples of plants that
| can recall that have actually been retired. | can
come up with alist. But there are only two that |
can think of that received sone kind of treatnent,
special regulatory treatnent in the formof an
anortization, that would be Meranec, it was an Aneren
pl ant, and then Sibley 3 which was an Evergy West,
al so known as GMO plant. Those are the two exanpl es
of special treatnent that cone to m nd.

Q And how nuch -- well, what was the
retirenent date of Meranec versus its antici pated
life for depreciation purposes for rate naking?

A That's a good question. M -- ny
recoll ection was Meranec was an ol der unit and so

t hat woul d have been closer to the retirenent date.
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It would have been closer to its projected retirenent
date. |Its actual retirenment date woul d have been
closer to its projected. On Sibley 3, I"'mgoing to
say |l ess than a decade but | would really have to go
back. It was closer than 15. | think that's what
your question is.

Q | think you've anticipated sone
questions but I'"'mfine with the information you've
gi ven. \Wienever those anortizations were set up, how
was ADI T treated, accunul ated deferred incone taxes,
associated with the plant?

A. | would really have to go back and
research that. It hasn't really been that |ong ago
but | just don't recall.

Q And of course |'m asking about Sibley
and Meranec?

A Ri ght. Yeabh.

Q You just don't know right now?

A |"m sure | know sonewhere but | don't
recall sitting right here on how those were treated.

Q No further questions. Thank you.

JUDGE CLARK: Aneren M ssouri.

M5. TATRO  Thank you, your Honor.

EXAM NATI ON CONDUCTED

BY: Ms. TATRO
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Q Are you famliar with the retirerrer:?ge283
of the Montrose plant for Evergy -- who is now
Evergy?

A Yes. Yes, | am

Q And do you know how t hat was handl ed
at retire -- how rate base was handl ed at retirenment?
A. So that woul d be the other
non-securitization nethod of retiring a large rate
base unit -- or a large coal fired unit -- not
necessarily coal fired. A large piece of -- a large
anmount of plant. So you would have journal entries
taken and say a |li ke anmount out of plant reserve and
so that would have hit the reserve as a debit and
reduced overall reserve. And so there was no speci al
treatment for any of the Montrose units, not
anortization or sonething |ike that.

Q Was there any unrecovered bal ance?

A. Yes.

Q And did that receive rate base
treat ment ?

A. | think it would receive rate base
treatnment in the context that you're eating up the

depreciation reserve. But it did not get a separate

anortization and inclusion through -- inclusion in
rate base of the unanortized balance. It wasn't
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anyt hing special, it was nore of a retirenent |ike, |

don't know, pole, substation, other pieces of plant
that are subject to whatever retirenent entries are

appropri at e.

Q Was the debit to reserve included in
rate base?

A Yes.

Q | have no further questions. Thank

you.

JUDGE CLARK: Any Conm ssion questions?
|'ve got a few for you, M. Mjors.

EXAM NATI ON CONDUCTED

BY: JUDGE CLARK

Q "1l start with what's immediately in
front of me which is we were just talking about
Meranec and Sibley 3. You don't by chance renenber
t hose case nunbers, do you?

A Meranec, the actual retirenent woul d
have been in the context of ER-2021-0258, | believe.
| had testinony in ER-2022-0337, would be the | ast
Ameren rate case. So ny testinony that | don't have
in front of nme that dealt wth the anortization of
the regul atory asset, which | believe was five years
and we recomended no rate base of inclusion of the

unanorti zed bal ance. And | believe you asked about
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Q Correct.

A That woul d have been in the | ast
Evergy M ssouri West rate case which was a --
occurred at the sane tine as the last Evergy Metro
general rate case. Those case nunbers were
ER- 2022- 0129 for Evergy Metro and ER-2022-0130 for
Evergy West. And in those cases | would have had
direct testinony, rebuttal testinony, and surrebuttal
testinony addressing the Sibley deferral and the
anortization of the net book val ue.

Q Thank you. On Murray's rebuttal on
Page 3, he nmakes statenents based on your response to
DR- 0036 from Public Counsel which is attached to
Schedul e -- as Schedule DM S-1. Now, your response
says that the net book val ue woul d reduce the
accunul ated depreciation reserve. Now, is that

according to the uniformsystem of accounts, or USQOA?

A | can pull up the response if you'd
like. But | think, fromwhat |I recall, just a nornal
retirement would reduce -- the net book val ue woul d

reduce the reserve. So you would be inplicitly
earning a return on the net book value if you just do
a normal retirenment. And so for exanple your rank

and file wood poles or service trucks, when those are
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retired and they have a net book val ue those would --

t hat net book val ue woul d reduce the reserve. But
you al so have other itens of plant that don't have a
net book value in their own right that are -- |ast

| onger than other itens of plant in that category.
So it all sonmewhat evens out.

Q Ckay. Wuld the USQA require an
entry as a credit to renove the original cost of the
plant retiring?

A Wthout witing it down, | think you
woul d credit plant and debit reserve for the |ike
anmount .

Q And woul d you post the debit as -- to
t he accunul ated depreciation reserve account?

A. Yes.

Q |f the plant's actual useful life
corresponded to the anticipated depreciation useful
life at the end of the plant's useful life would the
accunul ated depreci ation reserve anount equal the

original cost of the plant?

A. CGeneral ly speaking that's correct,
yes.

Q According to the USQA if a plant were
retired before its estimated useful life would the

accunul ated depreciation reserve have a credit or a
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debit bal ance?

A | think it would have a net -- it
woul d have a net debit bal ance all other things being
equal because you woul d have ate up nore reserve that
had been accunul ated over the |ife of the plant
because the retirenent was prenature.

Q kay. So it would be a debit?

A Yes.

Q Now, that same Public Counsel DR-0036
that | just referred to, you indicated in your
response to that that your accounting treatnent
descri bed as not representative of the treatnent if
Rush Island were retired; is that correct? O |I'm
sorry. |If it's not retired with securitization or a

regul atory asset or anortization?

A Right. | think that's -- and I'd
have to go ook at the -- | don't think we've asked
Ameren for the, | guess, journal entries. But you
woul dn't have -- it wouldn't be appropriate to

reflect any kind of net book value or any kind of
resi dual anmount as a debit bal ance to the reserve
because then you woul d be double collecting over --
you woul d be doubl e collecting both securitized net
book val ue and the debit bal ance in accunul at ed

reserve. So it's one or the other. So for exanple,
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it would be inappropriate to go back and securitize

Mont r ose because you' ve al ready recogni zed the
journal entries to retire the unit. And so it would
be one or the other, you wouldn't want to do both.

Q And | hate to say this but |'m going
to admt it. | do not understand the question | just
asked and as nuch as you tried to explainit to ne
with an exanple it still kind of flew over ny head.
Can you --

A Ckay. If I could wite down a few
figures just for ny own edification.

Q Pl ease. Go ahead.

MR, KEEVIL: Joking, Judge, | suppose this
woul d not be a good tine for an asked and answered
obj ecti on?

JUDGE CLARK: Al right. You get a point.

THE WTNESS: Ckay. So let's assune --
and this is a bit onthe fly so bear with ne. So if
you assune you had a hundred dol | ar wood pol e and
iIt's halfway through its useful life so it would have
50 buried in the reserve -- or not buried but in an
accunul ated reserve and if you retired the wood pol e
you woul d debit the reserve for $100 and credit plant
for $100. So your original balance of plant was a

debit anount, that w pes out the hundred dollars so
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you're even there. But when you take a hundred
dollars out of the depreciation reserve that would be
50 over what was already accunulated. So that 50 of
reserve woul d eat up other anobunts of accunul ated
reserve.

So -- but when you securitize the --
what ever you're securitizing in this case, Rush
| sl and, you're getting an anount of noney, half a
billion dollars, for the -- that net -- plant net net
book value. So you wouldn't want to retire the unit
according to normal accounting procedures and take a
half a billion dollars out of reserve and get the
half billion dollars in cash. And so it's one or the
ot her, you would not want to do both.

BY: JUDGE CLARK

Q Ckay. Thank you. That nakes a | ot
nore sense to ne. Does the USOA provide instructions
for the accounting of extraordinary property |osses

and the anortization of those | osses?

A. It does. | would have to have ny
copy of the USOA in front of ne. | believe that's --
that is a-- | nean, it's a public docunent, it's a

codification of the Federal Energy Regul atory
Comm ssi on uni form system of accounts. So | could

certainly go back and get the exact section of the
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USQA that deals with extraordinary property | osses

for you at a later tine. | nean, not right now, I
don't have that docunent in front of ne.

Q Yes, | would like that. Those are
all the questions -- those are all the questions |
have.

JUDGE CLARK: Any re-cross based upon
Bench questions?

MR. WLLIAMS:  Yes.

JUDGE CLARK: Go ahead.

EXAM NATI ON CONDUCTED

BY: MR WLLIAMS

Q M. Mjors, you recall when Judge
G ark was aski ng you about net book val ue and
depreci ation reserve and you used the term nor nal

retirenent?

A Yes.
Q VWhat is a nornmal retirement?
A Probably -- there's a zone of

reasonabl eness when it cones to rank and file |ike
poles and transforners, things |ike that, where you
woul d have premature retirenents of those assets and
then retirenents that occurred after their -- the end
of their useful life. And so there's -- | would

assune there's sone kind of bandw dth there. But
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since, as a whole, Rush Island was retired 15 years

prior to its projected retirenment date | think you
woul d have to call it an extraordinary retirenment or
at | east an abnormal retirenent.

Q Wel |, you've anticipated one of ny --
one of the lines | want to ask you about. What about
Montrose and Sibley 3 and Meranec?

A So the Montrose units, really testing
nmy nmenory, were vintage, 1958, 1961, and naybe 1962.
Their retirenents took place in approximtely -- one
unit was first |I think in 2018, the renmaining two
wer e naybe one or two years after. So the -- | guess
the experience -- the total life would have been
approxi mately al nost 60 years. And so | guess -- |
guess -- oh, that was your question, what were the --

how old were they at retirenent?

Q Wll, let's just take themone at a
tine.

A Ckay.

Q Was Montrose a normal retirenment?

A. | would call that a nornal

retirenent. The boilers had a very high heat --
well, not -- a very high heat rate in conparison to
other coal fired units. They were relatively small

units at approximately 175 negawatts a piece. It was
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not econom c to make the kind of inprovenents that

woul d extend their useful |ives any |onger than
approxi mately the date they were retired.

Q Was Meranec a nornal retirenment?

A. My recollection was that generally
speaking the facts were simlar. It was an ol der
unit and substantially smaller than say Rush |sland
or the Sioux units or Labadie. And so | would say
those were sim/lar circunstances.

Q And was Sibley 3 a nornmal retirenent?

A That was a bit of a different --
different exanple there. So the Sibley 3 had been
scheduled to retire -- forgive ne, | can't renenber
the date. But sonetine in the -- in this decade.
There was a turbine event that caused the unit to be
non-operational, it was a substantial anmount of noney
to fix the turbine. G ven the economcs specifically
of that unit it was determned that it woul d not be
economc to fix the unit. And so that was probably
sonewhat of an abnormal retirenment. Not -- not to
the effect this is -- you're retiring Rush |Island
15 years prior to its projected retirenent, not to
that extent. But it certainly wasn't older -- |ike
the older coal fired units, Meranec and Montrose, it

wasn't quite that. It wasn't the sane exanple.
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Because Sibley 3 was slate to run at least for -- at

| east -- ny recollection would be several nore years
after the turbine event, to ny recollection.

Q Well, how often do utilities cone in
for rate cases?

A. That's a good question. It depends
on the utility. So Ameren seens to run, if you go
back to the | ast decade, about every 18 nonths. |
think Ms. Tatro could probably elucidate that better
than | could. Depending on -- just depends on what a
utility's earnings are and actual financial results
depends on -- would depend on how often they woul d
come in for a rate case. And it al so depends on the
timng with the requirenent to maintain the fuel
cl ause.

Q The fuel clause is every four years,
Is it not?

A. Yes. That's ny understanding from --
nmy recollection is approxi mately four years, yes.

Q You testified that Meranmec and
Montrose were both -- you considered those to be
normal retirenents but that the rate maki ng treatnent
was different. Do you have an explanation for why?

A | think ny recollection is Meranec

was a bit larger and nore substantial in the Aneren
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system than was Montrose. | think there were
probably various other reasons, | could go back and
review testinony. But | -- yeah, | don't recall
anyt hing nore substantial -- other substanti al
di fference than that.

Q Was the treatnent of Meranec in rates
after it was retired a contested matter?

A There was sone di spute on whet her or

not you woul d i nclude the unanorti zed balance in rate
base, yes.

Q For Sibley 3, was that a contested
matter before the Conm ssion --

A Yes.

Q -- recovered? And for Montrose, was
that a contested matter for the recovery?

A No. Not to -- not to ny recollection
was there any kind of dispute over the regulatory
treatment of Montrose.

Q Wasn't on an issues list in front of
Comm ssi on then?

A. No. No, it was not.

Q No further questions. Thank you.

JUDGE CLARK: Any cross-exam nation from
Amer en?

M5. TATRO  Thank you.
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EXAM NATI ON CONDUCTED

BY: Ms. TATRO

Q So the Judge at one point asked --
tested your nenory and asked you for sone case
nunbers. And do you renenber that conversation?

A. | do.

Q And | think the Aneren case nunber
that you neant to say was ER-2021-0242 -- 0240, does
that sound right?

MR, KEEVIL: | don't think so.

THE WTNESS: Well, | think -- and |'ve
got a |l ot of case nunbers.

BY: MS. TATRO

Q " minpressed you renenbered any of
t hem

A Thank you. | think 2011 was 0258,
ER-2011-0258. | think ER-2021-0240, you're correct,

that's the correct case nunber.

Q As part of that conversation he had
you go through Staff's positions in those cases and
tal k about the various rate making treatnents, do you

renenber that?

A. Yes.
Q Are you famliar with Lisa Ferguson's
testinony in the 20 -- in Ameren Mssouri's '21 rate
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case?

A |"'msure | read it. | don't have it
in front of nme but yes.

M5. TATRO May | approach?

JUDGE CLARK: Yes.

M5. TATRO | just have it on a conputer

screen because | didn't expect to --

MR, KEEVIL: \What are you -- 2040, what's
the issue that -- because your | ast case was 337.

M5. TATRO Yeah. This is '21 because
that's the case he referenced. And we're talKking
about Meranac.

BY: Ms. TATRO

Q Can you read -- I'll let you read
this to yourself first.

A Yes.

Q Read t hi s page.

A. Ckay.

Q Sorry.

MR. WLLIAMS: Wsat are you show ng hinf

M5. TATRO Lisa Ferguson's rebuttal
starting on Page 4.

BY: Ms. TATRO

Q So read this entire page and then the

end of that sentence right there just to yourself.
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A. Ckay. Yeah. Yeah. If you could

gi ve nme one nonent, please.

Q O course.

A Ch, okay. | renmenber this now If
you' Il give nme one nonent.

Q Yeah.

A And you want ne to end at regarding

carrying costs?

Q That woul d be fine.

A kay. | read it.

Q kay. So in Ms. Ferguson's rebuttal
testinony did she say that she did not oppose Aneren
M ssouri receiving carrying costs on the Meranec
remai ni ng costs?

A. Yes, that's correct.

Q Ckay. Is it fair to say in general
that the Comm ssion has to consider a nultitude of
facts when it's deciding any rate revi ew?

A Ch, absolutely. Yes.

Q And so is it fair to say there could
be reasons that are specific to each case as to why
the Conmm ssion rules the way that they do on any

particular topic?

A. Yes.
Q That's all. Thank you.
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JUDGE CLARK: Any re-direct from Staff?

MR KEEVIL: Not on this issue, Judge.
Thank you.

JUDGE CLARK: Ckay. M. Mjors, thank
you. You may step down.

THE W TNESS: Thank you.

JUDCGE CLARK: ['mgoing to nove on to
| ssue 2, what we have left of it. |Is there a mni
opening that any party wanted to nake in regard to
that? | hear none and see none. All right. The
next wtness | have in regard to that would be M.
Murray agai n.

And M. Miurray, I'mgoing to rem nd you
you're still under oath.

THE WTNESS: Thank you. Yes.
Under st and.

* * * * *
DAVI D MURRAY,

The wi tness, recalled upon his oath,

testified as foll ows:
* * * * *

JUDGE CLARK: Public Counsel.

MR, WLLIAMS: Tender the wtness for
exam nation. H's exhibits have already been nmarked.

JUDGE CLARK: Thank you. Any
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cross-exanm nation fromthe Comm ssion Staff?

MR, KEEVIL: Judge, | hate to admt it but
when M. Miurray was up here previously | thought he
was up on both 1 and 2 so | asked everything | had
last time. So no, not at this tine.

JUDGE CLARK: All right. Ameren M ssouri?

M5. TATRO | do have a few questions,

t hank you.

JUDCGE CLARK: Go right ahead.

EXAM NATI ON CONDUCTED

BY: Ms. TATRO

Q M. Mirray, do you have a copy of the

statute with you, the securitization statute?

A. Let ne see here. Yeah. That's a
t hi ck document in here. Yes, | do.
Q Geat. Is it safe for ne to assune

that you've read that statute?

A. | have read over, you know, nost of
the statute. | can't say that when it gets towards
the end, with sone of the other details that | don't
think are areas that | was directly involved in, you
know, | probably skimed over those parts.

Q Ckay. You consider yourself famliar
wth the statute and the portions that deal with the

Comm ssion appointing a Staff representative to be
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part of the teamthat advises the Conm ssion?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. So tell nme what the statute
says about the Ofice of Public Counsel's role in
providing input and collaborating with utility?

A. | think the statute excludes the
O fice of the Public Counsel fromhaving any role in
the securitization process.

Q What does the statute stay about and
t he bond i ssuance process, sane answer?

A | do not recall seeing anything that
says the Ofice of the Public Counsel will be
i nvolved in the post issuance process | guess. Only
chance we have to coment maybe is when the issuance
advice letter is filed.

Q Because the statute specifically
entrusts those portions of the process to the Staff,
t he Comm ssion appointed Staff representative and the
financial advisers, right?

A. | don't know about the term entrust.
But the statute definitely anticipates it will be the
Staff's designated representative through a financi al
adviser and a team | nmean, | don't think the term
teamis used but yes.

Q Al right. Wuld you accept the word
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del i neates or names, nanes those individuals --
A. Yes.
Q -- as the ones who are supposed to

| ook at this? And if the bond issuance terns are
I nappropriate who has the ability to prevent the
bonds from being i ssued?

A The Conmm ssi on.

Q Al right. And that's because the
process, under the statute, is that the
representative of the Staff provides an opinion to
t he Comm ssion on the reasonabl eness of the pricing
ternms and conditions, right?

A The Staff, the underwiters, the
Conpany, yes.

Q And the Staff representative is
advi sed by a financial adviser, yes?

A That is correct.

Q So the conplaint here is that OPC
doesn't get to play a role?

A The conpl aint here is that when |
reviewed the issuance of advice letter in the Liberty
case | found m stakes and yes, | would like to
entrust for that process to work properly but, you
know, | found that the Liberty order -- Liberty

i ssuance advice letter did not follow the
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Comm ssion's orders as far as the terns. So
anyway, --
Q Well, that was in your opinion,
correct?
A That was correct.
Q The Conm ssion --
A They were factually incorrect. They

revised the issuance advice letter.

So the final issuance advice letter?
WAs correct ed.

WAs corrected?

After Public Counsel filed it.

You were able to play that role?

> O » O > O

Wthin the day, yes.

Q Okay. Regardl ess of whether or not
you were part of -- I'mgoing to use the termfinance
team al though | recognize it's not the statutory
term

A Yes.

Q Even t hough you weren't a part of
that role, right?

A. Yes.

Q Have you participated -- other than
the two securitizations and whatever role -- that the

Comm ssi on has approved and whatever role you were
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type of bond offering?

desi gnation which goes into detail about capital
mar ket i ssues.

Q Do you --

A So | would say | have better
know edge of capital market specifics than general

staff, in-house staff.

t hat the Conmm ssion chooses?

A. Fi nanci al advi ser has specific
capi tal market experience.

Q Ckay. How many issuance advice
| etters have you revi ewed?

A Twenty.

Q Ckay. So in your surrebuttal

able to play in those, have you participated in any

A No.

Q Any type of security?

A No.

Q Do you have any special know edge
about bonds that Staff does not have?

A Staff's financial adviser is
obvi ously involved in capital markets, |I'm not
i nvolved in capital markets. | would say that the
other Staff nenbers -- | have, you know, a CFA

Q What about the Staff representative

Page 303
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begi nning on Page 17, | think it's about Line 15, you

tal k about including conparable pricing analysis that

you suggest be done for the issuance advice letter?

A |"'msorry, what page and |ine nunber?
Q | believe it was Page 17.

A kay. |'mthere.

Q You see where you reference

conparabl e pricing anal ysis?
A. That's Line 5 through 14. Yes.
Q (kay. How often do securitized
utility bond issuances include conparable bond
I ssuing anal ysis of the 20 you revi ewed?
A Can you repeat the question, please?
Q How many securitized utility bond
I ssuances, the advice letter, how many of them
i ncl ude conparabl e pricing anal ysis?
Ckay. The advice letter itself?
Yeah. Sorry, | mssed that.
That's very key.

Yes.

o > O »F

A Most of them-- all of them shoul d
i nclude a conparable price analysis. But 'l -- |
can think of two that | --

Q Two out of the 207

A Two out of the 20, yes.
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Q Ckay. Have you seen Katrina N ehaus
-- well, never mnd. O the two, are any of themin

the last five years?

A Yes. | attached the one -- well,
that's not conpleted yet. But in Kentucky.

Q Kent ucky?

A That's a procedure -- you know,
that's a currently pendi ng proceeding. And that was
the draft issuance advice letter that had a
conparabl e pricing analysis. | think there was one
in 2016 that m ght have been Duke Energy Flori da.
Yeah, | don't recall. | nean, | |ooked at quite a
few i ssuance advice letters.

Q It's not a common thing to be
i ncl uded as per your review denonstrated, right? You
said two out of 207

A Yeah. Common doesn't nean

i nappropriate though but vyes.

Q And | did not -- | asked if it was
commmon.

A Ckay.

Q And the answer's no; is that right?

A That is correct.

Q Thank you. You talk about Triple A
rate bonds -- rated bonds, right? Can you expl ain
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what that is to the Comm ssion?

A It's the highest quality of corporate
securities. There's only two conpanies in the United
St ates, Johnson and Johnson and M crosoft, that are
rated Triple A at this point in tine.

Q Do you think security -- utility
securitized bonds are conparable to Triple A?

A They are usually assigned Triple A |
don't know that the costs are always consistent with
other Triple A s.

Q Ckay. Let's talk about that a little
bit. Wuld you agree with ne that the underlying
credit requirenents and obligations are different
between Triple A bond and securitized utility tariff
bonds?

A Securitized bonds are structured
bonds, that nmeans a structured security. So it's
clained to very specific -- you know, in this case a
financial -- sone financial cash flows fromutility
custoners where a Triple A bond from M crosoft or
Johnson and Johnson, typically general corporate
bonds.

Q Okay. Wuld you agree that utility
securitization bonds are anortized?

A Yes.
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Q And by that it neans that you're
payi ng on principal interest at the sane tine?
A Cenerally refer to it as a sinking

fund, that's correct.

Q Okay. Would you agree that Triple A
rated bonds are not anortized?

A. I n general corporate -- in nost
cor porate bond i ssuances they're issued as what's
called a bullet bond, you know, maturity at the end
of the term Wich is what Ameren M ssouri does as
wel | for the nost part.

Q Right. So just to make sure we're
clear, a bullet bond -- because |I'm not the expert
here. A bullet bond you pay the interest every siXx
nont hs or whatever it is and then the principal's all

due at the end of the terny --

A That's correct.
Q -- is that right?
A. That's correct.

Q Let's talk about the liquidity
profile of utility securitization bonds and the
Triple A rate bonds. Can you explain how they
conpare? Well, first of all, do you know what | nean
when | say liquidity?

A | know what you nean by liquidity.
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Q Ckay.

A | don't -- to be honest with you,
yeah, as far as when it cones to securitized bonds |
don't know if they're actively traded, you know.
That may be a function of the investors that |like --
you know, that -- the target investors that want to
buy and hol d.

Q But these Triple A corporate bullet
style bonds, they retain the principal value, right,
because it's not paid until the end?

A. Wll, | think the Conpany hopes
they'll retain their principal value. [|f sonething
happens financially to the Conpany, their risk
profile increases then their principal value or the
val ue of the bond decreases.

Q Can bul | et bonds be resol d?

A Wel |, any bond can be resold and
over-the-counter if it's -- you know, if it's
registered with the Security Exchange Conm ssi on.

Q Wul d you agree that bullet bonds are

nmore attractive to investors to be resold because

they still have the principal value that is paid at
t he end?
A That woul d generally be the case,
yes.
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Q Ckay. Thank you. | have no further
guesti ons.

JUDGE CLARK: Are there any Comm ssion
guestions?

M5. HOLSMAN.  No.

JUDCGE CLARK: | hear none. | haven't got

many for you, M. Mirray, but | do have a few.

EXAM NATI ON CONDUCTED

BY: JUDGE CLARK

Q How do you respond to Staff's
position that including conparable securities,
pricing analysis and the issuance advice letter could
have an adverse inpact on the marketing and pricing
of the bonds?

A. | personally don't understand that
because the marketing and the pricing has already
occurred so if you put it in the issuance advice
|l etter that process is conpleted. So | don't
under stand how t hat woul d i npact any further
Interaction with the investors because they've
al ready went out and received the pricing.

Q Ckay. \What about -- never m nd.
Sorry, I"'mtrying to see if | can sinplify ny
guestion. GCkay. Issue 2D, which | guess invol ves

shoul d t he Conm ssion order Ameren M ssouri to
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provi de the issuance advice letter and supporting
wor k papers to other interested parties at the sane
time it provides the information to Staff's finance
team |Is OPCintending for this information to be
shared with just the parties to the case?

A. Just the parties to the case.

Q And are you intending for that to be
shared with the parties in the case when the draft
I ssuance advice letter is shared with Staff prior to
the official subm ssion or are you tal king about at
the end?

A When the draft -- | think it's two
weeks before the anticipated i ssuance of -- or, you
know, pricing of the bonds. And like | said, this is
just fromexperience. W had a -- you had asked the
Comm ssion -- excuse ne, Comm ssion had asked if --
for comments on the issuance advice letter in the
Li berty case and 1'Il tell you we had -- | had to
drop everything to try to see if | agreed with the
net present value cal culations and we did not. So
that was just -- | nean, it was -- we were just
attenpting to i nprove and nmake corrections and
changes.

And so, yeah, | really don't understand,

you know, the pushback on that and | think that
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that's just -- you know, that's just sonething to

give us nore tine to see if we agree or disagree and
then we can reach out to Staff and the Conpany and
ask them questions and make sure that, you know, we
don't have a disagreenent. | nean, obviously it's
ultimately their responsibility, if they want to nove
forward with sonmething that we don't think is correct
then that it is what it is. At l|least give us the
opportunity to coll aborate.

Q Ckay. And | understand obviously a
| onger period nakes for a better review and certainly
makes review ng easier. And so what you' re talking
about is a potential two week review period. | know
It was done differently between Liberty and Evergy.
| know that as you said in Liberty you got just a
very short anount of time and | don't know if you
received any in Evergy except for -- certainly not an
invitation to coment but just a tinme period. How
inportant to OPCis it -- howinportant to Public
Counsel is it that it be allowed to comment on the
I ssuance advice letter?

A. Well, we represent the rate payers
and there's supposed to be, you know, sone confidence
in this process that this is going to result in a net

present val ue savings to custoners and they're
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footing the bill. So | think it's very inportant to

the O fice of the Public Counsel as representation
for the retail -- you know, the retail rate payers.

Q Al right. Thank you.

A. Thank you.

JUDGE CLARK: Any re-cross based upon
Bench questions? Hold on just a second. Have to,
after each tinme, check ny order. Any re-cross from
t he Conm ssion Staff?

MR. KEEVIL: No. Thank you.

JUDGE CLARK:  Aneren M ssouri ?

M5. TATRO Yes. Thank you.

EXAM NATI ON CONDUCTED

BY: M. TATRO

Q So M. Murray, the Judge asked you --
| think the very first question the Judge asked you
was did you renenber the earlier conversations about
t he adverse inpact on the price of bonds that making
the advice letter public or partially public m ght
cause. And your answer was not sure how that -- why
t hat woul d happen because the work woul d al ready be
done. Do you renenber that conversation?

A. Yes.

Q You' re requesting that the Conm ssion

in this case put in the financing order that this --
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the financing -- the issuance advice letter wll be

made partially public, partially redacted, right?
You're asking that to be in the financing order; is
that correct?

A. | think those are just certification
letters that | was referring to.

Q You're right, certification letters,
okay. But you're requesting that be put in the
fi nanci ng order?

A | don't think I recommended the

certification letters to be part of the financing

or der.
Q Are you requesting that the
certification orders be -- or letters be nmade public?
MR WLLIAMS: Judge, |I'mgoing to object
at this point. | nean, certification letters were

not the subject of Conm ssion questions.
M5. TATRO Well, that's what |'mtrying
to clarify. Perhaps | m sunderstood his answer.
t hought his answer was tal ki ng about those l|etters.
BY: Ms. TATRO
Q Did it not?
A No. | was talking --
M5. TATRO Then |I'm done. Thank you.
JUDGE CLARK: Ckay. Thank you. Any
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re-direct? rage St
MR, WLLIAMS: Just a few hopefully.
EXAM NATI ON CONDUCTED
BY: MR WLLIAMS
Q You renenber being questioned about

conparable pricing and this being part of the -- ny
notes are not that great. Do you renenber the

exchanges about conparable pricing --

A Yes.

Q -- included -- should they be
I ncl uded?

A. Yes.

MR. KEEVIL: (bjection. Included in what?

JUDCGE CLARK: M. WIIlians?

MR, WLLIAMS: Well, let ne try again.

BY: MR WLLIAMS

Q Do you renenber the questions you got
about how often the conparable pricing was included
in-- 1 can't remenber if it was -- | think it was --
let's try, issuance advice letter?

A Yes. That's exactly what she asked
me about .

Q And you responded that it -- or two
out of 20 that is what you'd seen, correct?

A Bal | par k.
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Q And | think you acknow edged that it

wasn't common then, correct, based on what you've

seen?
A Yes.
Q Should it be conmmon?
A Yes.
Q Wy ?
A Because a yield -- you know, | ooking

at a yield by itself doesn't tell you anything about
the pricing of the bond as conpared to other -- you
know, other securities being issued at the sane tine
wi th maybe the sane, you know, anobunt of issuance,
sane ratings, sane wei ghted average of life. Avyield
on its own doesn't tell you anything, you need
benchmarks. And as they've -- they've acknow edged
that -- | say they. You know, the financial adviser
and the underwiters are -- you know, the Gol dman
Sachs and others that nay be involved that that's a
very inportant part of the process to nake sure --
you know, nore or less in certifying that they
achieve the | owest cost for the securitized utility
tariff bonds. But it's inpossible to be able to make
any conclusion or judgnent, specifically fromthe
public, by just looking at a yield. A yield of

5.1 percent doesn't nean anything unless you | ook and
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conpare it to benchnarks.

MR, WLLIAMS: Thank you. No further
guesti ons.

JUDCGE CLARK: Actually that brought one to
m nd for ne.

EXAM NATI ON CONDUCTED

BY: JUDGE CLARK

Q You said -- of those 20, you said one
was still in process; is that correct?

A That's the --

Q That's the draft? | believe you
referred to it as the draft issuance advice letter?

A That's a schedul e attached to ny
testinony. |It's the Kentucky issuance advice letter.

Q kay. And the other one would have
been one that was already issued; is that correct?

A. Yes.

Q Do you know what it was rated at?

A It should have been rated at Triple
A. | nean, alnost all of these securitized bonds are
rated at Triple AL Now the pricing, the spread
varies. You know, over treasuries and over Triple
A's the spread varies based on various factors.

JUDGE CLARK: Ckay. Any questions based

upon that question? Any re-direct based on that
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question?

MR WLLIAVMS: No, thank you.

JUDGE CLARK: All right. Thank you, M.
Murray, you nmay step down.

THE W TNESS: Thank you. Appreciate it.

JUDCGE CLARK: W have one | ast witness for
this, | believe it's M. Sagel. Now, if | renmenber
M. Sagel only had testinony as to the DCE i ssue. So
Is this another case where he -- M. Sagel is being
put on for Comm ssion questions?

M5. TATRO It is. If the Conm ssioners
doesn't have any questions he doesn't need to take
t he stand.

JUDCGE CLARK: Are there any -- well, et
me ask first. Are there any cross-exam nation
guestions for M. Sagel on Issue 2 fromthe parties?
kay. | see no affirmative yeses. |'ll ask for
Comm ssioners that are present, are there any
Comm ssi on questions for M. Sagel on this Issue
Nunmber 2 which is the post financing order process or
procedure? | hear none. | have no questions for M.
Sagel. So | --

M5. TATRO That's fine.

JUDGE CLARK: Ckay. So are we finished

with | ssue 2?
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M5. TATRO Two down.

JUDGE CLARK: Ckay. Wiy don't we take a
short break at this tinme so that M. Keevil can nmake
arrangenents for his vehicle. Can we go off the
record for a nmonment? And can we strike that | ast
line of mne. M. Keevil, how |l ong would you like to
nove your car for?

MR, KEEVIL: Honestly, |I'mnot handling
the next issue so l'mgoing to be in ny car the
entire time. How about until -- what tine is it now,
quarter till? Probably 15 mnutes. Do we know, is
-- okay.

JUDCGE CLARK: It's nmy intention, like I
said, | plan at this point, depending on the progress
we nake, on staying probably till about six 'cause |
do want to nake sone headway. | do think we have an
I ncredi ble anount to pack into this hearing and |
want to be sure that we don't need to find extra days
at the end or for us all to be here on weekends. So
with that in mnd, why don't we -- this will be a
slightly longer recess. Wy don't we take a recess
till about -- I'Il take that 15 m nutes and we'll do
-- let's go ahead and do 5:15. W'IIl go off the
record provided we ever went back on.

(At this point in the proceedings, a short
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recess was taken.)

JUDGE CLARK: Ckay. W're about to start
-- we are going to start Issue 3 which is the
prudence of the retirenent. Looks |like the first
Wi tness is Aneren M ssouri. Aneren, you nay go ahead
and call your witness. Let ne go ahead and ask this.
| know we did a m ni opening which enconpassed part
of Holnstead's testinony on the 12th. Wre you
wanting to do a mni opening at this tinme?

MR LONERY: | think we're only here on
| ssue 3A this evening and that m ni opening' s already
been done and 3B, it's really kind of a distinct
I ssue wth sonme distinct witnesses so we'll want to
do a mni opening on 3B when we get to it, but...

JUDGE CLARK: Ckay. Well, let's talk
about 3A. Wat witnesses are going to enconpass
t hat ?

MR. LONERY: Birk, Whitworth, Hol nstead,
Reed, Eubanks, Majors and Seaver.

JUDCGE CLARK: Ckay. So we're trying to
get through 3A today?

MR LONERY: Well, we're not going to get
through it today but that's what we're starting today
as | understand it, Judge.

JUDGE CLARK: Al right. Go ahead and --
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go ahead and call your w tness.
MR. LONG Aneren Mssouri calls Mrk
Bi rk.
THE REPORTER: Could | get your nane,
pl ease?
MR LONG Yes. |I'm Nash Long, nice to

see you, for Ameren M ssouri.
JUDGE CLARK: Al right. M. Birk, would
you raise your right hand to be sworn.
MARK C. BI RK,
The wi tness, having been first duly sworn
upon his oath, testified as foll ows:
* * * * *
JUDGE CLARK: Thank you. Go ahead,
Aner en.
EXAM NATI ON CONDUCTED
BY: MR LONG
Q Pl ease state your nane.
A Mar k Chri st opher Birk.
Q And are you the sane Mark Chri stopher
Birk who caused to be prepared for filing in this
docket direct and surrebuttal testinony marked for
I dentification as Exhibit 6 and 7?

A Yes, | am
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Q Do you have any corrections to either
Exhibit 6 or 77
A Just the correction on the tim ng of

the -- of sonme of the project.

MR LONG  Your Honor, we'd l|like to hand

up an exhibit -- hand out an exhibit that notes the
correction for the record which we'll mark as
Exhi bit 21.

JUDCGE CLARK: Ckay. Thank you.

MR, LOWNERY: Judge, you want copies for
the other Conm ssioners or just one? | have copies
if you d |ike then?

JUDCGE CLARK: Why don't you give ne three.
Thank you.

(WHEREI' N, Exhibit 21 was marked for
i dentification.)

JUDGE CLARK: And so you're calling this
Exhibit 21; is that correct?

MR. LONG Yes, your Honor.

JUDGE CLARK: And how woul d you I|ike that
titled? It's an errata?

MR LONG It's corrections to MCB-02.

JUDGE CLARK: Can you give ne that
schedul e nunber agai n?

MR. LONG  MCB- D2.
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JUDGE CLARK: Thank you.

BY: MR LONG

Q Al right. Just |ooking at Exhibit
whi ch we've nunbered 21, M. Birks, can you identify
for us the corrections that you would |ike to nake to
this exhibit MCB-D2?

A. Yes. The corrections I'd like to
make are the ones that are witten -- handwitten on
the docunent. And basically what they were is noves
in the years that those projects were actually
executed conpared to what was in the original
schedul e.

JUDCGE CLARK: Can you explain that to ne
again? So what are the corrections of ?

THE WTNESS: The corrections are
handwitten and with the circles. So when you | ook
at -- for instance, the first one to the left, Rush
Island 1, it says it was actually perfornmed in 1995
and 1997. So it's actually shown under the year
2001. It was actually perfornmed in 1995 and 1997.
They just denote when they were actually perforned,
Judge.

JUDGE CLARK: Ckay. That clarifies that
for me, thank you.

THE W TNESS: You're wel cone.
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BY: MR LONG

Q M. Birk, with these corrections
whi ch you have noted for the record on Exhibit 21, if
| posed the sane questions to you today reflected in
your Exhibit 6 and 7 woul d your answers be the sane?

A. Yes, they woul d.

Q Are those answers true and correct to
the best of your know edge and belief?

A Yes, they are.

MR. LONG  Your Honor, at this tinme Ameren
M ssouri wll nove Exhibit 6 and 7 into the record.

MR, WLLIAMS: Judge, | believe M. Birk
Is testifying to other issues |ater, so --

JUDGE CLARK: That was the question | was
getting ready to ask. | don't believe M. Long was
here before. But because a lot of the testinony that
-- the Commi ssion is taking sonme of the testinony
that there have been notions to strike on. And so
what we've done wth all the testinony is we're --
because sone of the wtnesses are going to be
testifying on nmultiple issues, we're not just
accepting it into the record on the first issue but
we'll be taking it into the record pendi ng objection
the last tine that wtness testifies.

MR, LOAERY: Judge, |I'm handling that | ast
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issue so I'll just nove it into the record at that
time,
JUDGE CLARK: That sounds great, M.
Lowery.

MR LONG At this time | would also then
just nove Exhibit 21 into the record.

JUDCGE CLARK: Ckay. Are there any
obj ections to Exhibit -- to admtting Exhibit 21, the
corrections to -- corrections to Schedul e MCV-D2?

MR, WLLIAMS: It appears that exhibit's
limted to the issue that's before the Conm ssion
currently so Public Counsel has no objection.

JUDCGE CLARK: Thank you. Staff, do you
have any objections?

M5. MERS: No.

JUDGE CLARK: |Is that a no?

THE REPORTER  And I'msorry, could | get
your nane?

JUDCGE CLARK: And you're going have to
speak into the m crophone, | apol ogi ze.

M5. MERS. Sorry. Yes, we don't have any
objections. And it's Nicole Mers, ME-R-S.

THE REPORTER: Thank you.

JUDGE CLARK: Ckay. Thank you, Ms. Mers.
Heari ng no objections, Exhibit -- Aneren Exhibit 21
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is admtted onto the hearing record.

MR. LONG  Your Honor, at this tinme we
woul d tender M. Birk for cross.

JUDCGE CLARK: Ckay. Are there any
guestions, cross-examnation, for M. Birk fromthe
Staff of Conmm ssion?

M5. MERS: No, your Honor.

JUDGE CLARK: Any cross-exam nation for
witness Birk fromthe Ofice of the Public Counsel?

MR WLLIAMS: Yes. Thank you.

EXAM NATI ON CONDUCTED

BY: MR WLLIAMS

Q Good afternoon, M. Birk

A. Good afternoon.

Q Has Aneren M ssouri included anything
in the pre-filed testinony in this case regarding the
New Source Review permtting and activities at Rush
Island Units 1 and 2 in 2007 and 2010 that it did not
present in evidence before the federal court?

A. | don't know all the evidence that
was presented before the federal court. But | do
bel i eve that the proceeding that we're here today for
iIs toreally ook at the prudence of the permtting
deci si on.

Q | understand that. My question is
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whet her you put evidence in this case that was not in

-- or pre-filed evidence in this case that was not
included in the record in front of the federal court?
And if you don't know, that's fine.

A | do not know. | do not know.

Q Al right. Thank you. No further
guesti ons.

JUDGE CLARK: Bear with ne just a nonent.
Ckay. Are there any Conm ssion questions?

COW SSI ON HOLSMAN:  No questi ons.

JUDGE CLARK: |'ve got a few questions for
you, M. Birk. Let ne see if | have any nore.

EXAM NATI ON CONDUCTED

BY: JUDGE CLARK

Q Al right. Nowin your testinony you
phrased the prudence question as why Ameren M ssouri
did not get those permts -- okay. In your -- in
your testinony you indicated that the appropriate
gquestion that you believed the Comm ssion is asking
here is why did Areren M ssouri not get the permts
and was that decision reasonable at the tine of the
projects; is that correct?

A That is correct.

Q And why do you believe that that's

the appropriate question?
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A | believe that's the appropriate

guestion because what this Conmm ssion should be
deciding is around the prudence of not getting those
permts and the reason that we did not get those
permts is because we were follow ng the Mssouri SIP
which was the law at the tine. And the SIP indicated
that had basically that we -- if potential em ssions
did not increase and if the work was routine that
permts were not required. And so after analysis of
these projects at Rush Island we determ ned that the
permts were not required. And in doing that
basically we -- we acted prudently. And I'm
absolutely certain of that. W did -- we did the
review | i ke we had done on all previous projects and
-- that we had done at the various generating plants
and that is the question.

Q Are em ssions cal culations required
in Mssouri?

A So according to the Mssouri SIP --

are you tal king about the SIP at the tine back in

20077

Q Yes, that's correct.

A Yes. So the Mssouri SIP at the tine
required -- really required three things. And in

that you only had to show that one of those things
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was basically correct and you didn't need the permt.

So you either had to show that there wasn't any
potential hourly em ssions increases, you had to be
able to show basically that the projects you do --
you were doing were routine. And then there was al so
a portion in that that |ooked at -- at the actual
em ssions. Again, the requirenment was you just had
to show that one of themwas net and you didn't need
the permt. And we believe that through our analysis
that there were no potential em ssions increases
associ ated with the projects we were doing, we
clearly believed that these were routine not only in
Aneren but in the rest of the industry, that these
type of boil er conponent replacenents were being done
across the industry at the tine. And when we -- you
know, when we | ooked at the reason there was no -- we
bel i eve no hourly potential increases led us to also
believe that there were no actual increases
associated with inplenentation of these projects.

Q Now, | believe that the district

court, according to your testinony, determ ned that

you're wong about the law -- what the | aw was but
reasonable -- well, | don't think they nade the
determ nation. | guess what you're saying is that

you're admtting that Ameren was w ong about the | aw
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but was reasonable in their interpretation?

A That's correct. W were wong about
the |l aw but we were reasonable in the way we
I npl emrented the Mssouri SIP at the tinme. What the
federal court found was -- and this was years after
the fact. They used a different interpretation of
the Mssouri SIP. So what they found was that we did
not interpret it correctly so we were wong in the
law. Now, we were interpreting it the way that other
utilities in Mssouri were also interpreting it, we
were interpreting it the way the DNR was interpreting
it. And we believe what we were doi nhg was consi st ent
with the industry the way that the EPA had even
di scussed this issue and as such we believe that what
we did was reasonable and it was prudent.

Q Do you believe there's a difference
bet ween reasonabl e and prudent?

A You know, | believe that what -- |
beli eve we show that it was reasonabl e then the
deci sions we nade were prudent. And I think at the
time, because we were following the Mssouri SIP, we
were followng the aw at the tine and because these
projects didn't increase em ssions, potential hourly
m ssions and basically they were routine that we

believe the permts were not needed. W believe we
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were reasonable in |ooking at that and as such we
wer e prudent.

Q |s the converse true, if Aneren were
unreasonable would it al so presunptively be
I nprudent ?

A. | don't know that | can -- | would
not say that in every case, no.

Q What woul d be the difference that
woul d cause it not to work the other direction?

A. For instance, if -- I'mtrying to
t hi nk of an exanple, Judge. | can't think of one
right off the top.

Q |"mjust -- | guess |I'mjust having a
hard tinme digesting part of this.

A Uh- huh.

Q And | understand the reliance on the

SIP. But | have a hard tinme reconciling the Court's
determ ning that Ameren was w ong about the |aw but
that it's -- and using your word understandi ng that
It was reasonable in its understandi ng about the |aw.
| don't understand how you can be w ong about
sonet hi ng yet reasonable in your understanding of it?
A Wll, -- well, we were interpreting
this for projects that we did seven to ten years

earlier. So our interpretation of the Mssouri SIP,
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which was the law at the tine, was the reasonabl e

interpretation that not only we were using but other
utilities and the DNR was using in Mssouri at the
time. What the Court ultimately found, years |ater,
was they basically said that we were wong in the
interpretation of the SIP and that we were wong in
the law. And we're not denying that we were wong in
the law, we were wong in the law, that is what the
Court has found. But we nade reasonabl e judgnents to
follow the Mssouri SIP and, you know, we were, in
our environnmental group -- and Steve Wiitworth can
talk nore to this. But we were very in tune to what
was going on in the industry and in Mssouri and we
were follow ng the Mssouri SIP and we believe that
t hat was reasonabl e.
Q And you asked nme if | was referring
to the SIP at the tinme. Has the SIP changed since?
A The SIP has been nodified over tine,
|"mnot as converse on it as M. Witworth woul d be,
that is his expertise. But it has changed over tine.
Q Bear with ne just a nmonent. Ckay. |
have no further questions for you at this point.
JUDGE CLARK: |s there any re-cross based
upon Comm ssi on questions?

MR WLLIAMS: There is fromPublic
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Counsel .

M5. MERS: Just very, very briefly.

EXAM NATI ON CONDUCTED

BY: Ms. MERS

Q You just had your conversation with

t he Judge about the judge of the district court
comng to at that different interpretation of the
M ssouri SIP, do you recall?

A Yes, | do.

Q So that judge's interpretation is
al so reasonabl e, woul dn't you agree?

A. That judge's interpretation is
reasonable at the tine, yes.

Q Not hi ng further. Thank you

JUDGE CLARK: Public Counsel.

MR WLLIAVMS: Thank you.

EXAM NATI ON CONDUCTED

BY: MR WLLIAMS

Q M. Birk, if | heard you correctly,
you said that you were followng the law at the tine
and | believe you were referring to the 2007, 2010
timefrane. D d you nean to say that you were
foll ow ng your understanding of the law at the tine
when you were follow ng the Mssouri SIP?

A What | said was we were follow ng the
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M ssouri SIP which was -- was our understandi ng, was

M ssouri's DNR s understanding and it was the way
that the SIP was being inpl enented.

Q But that's not what Judge Si ppel
found that the SIP said, your understanding didn't
conport with his decision, correct?

A. That is indeed what the Court found
is that we were wong in the law. But that --

Q And he was saying that was the | aw at
the tinme he made the decisions regarding latan 1 and
2, correct?

A | atan, we're not arguing.

Q |"'msorry. Rush Island. Wong
plant. Rush Island Units 1 and 2?

A What was the question again?

JUDGE CLARK: | was very excited to see
where that was goi ng.

THE WTNESS: Wat was the question again.

MR WLLIAMS: Maybe Aneren has a new
plant that | didn't know about. Sorry about that
slip up.

BY: MR WLLIAMS

Q What Judge Si ppel found was what the
| aw was at the tinme Anmeren M ssouri was nmaking the

deci sions regarding Rush Island Units 1 and 2 and
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that led to the major nodifications in 2007 and 2010,

correct?

A No. | think what Judge Sippel, what
the Court did was they used a different
interpretation of the SIP and a different test to
det er m ne whet her we needed the permts or not. And
again, what |'ve said is the Court -- the Court
ultimitely determned that we -- that we needed the
permts. Again, they interpreted the SIP different
t han we di d.

Q Wel |, the Judge was saying that was
-- his interpretation was what the |law was at the
time you were nmaking those decisions which differed
fromyours, correct?

A. Hs interpretation differed from
ours, correct.

Q But it was the inter -- his
interpretation is what he said applied at the tine
you were maki ng those deci sions, correct?

A. | don't know that he said it applied
at the tinme we were naking those deci sions.

Q Well, how could it apply at sone
ot her tine?

A Vell, | think he -- | think he did

the evaluation alnost ten years after the fact --
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after we made those decisions and things had changed

-- had changed through tinme. H s interpretation was
not our interpretation.

Q You keep focusing on your
interpretation of the Mssouri SIP as being
consistent with the Mssouri Departnent of Natural
Resources and other utilities in Mssouri. Ws it
consistent with the EPA's interpretation?

A The EPA basically accepted the
M ssouri SIP and that's how the EPA rules were
I npl emented. They were inplenented through the
M ssouri Sl P.

Q Wel |, EPA brought an enforcenent
action against the mgjor -- or based on the mgjor
nodi fi cations that Rush Island Unit 1 and Rush |sl and
Unit 2 in 2007 and 2010, did it not?

A It did.

Q Actually it brought sonme counts for
earlier nodifications, did it not?

A. Yeah. The EPA actually changed
course about five or six tinmes on things that they
brought counts against. And ultimately -- if you --
i f you |l ook at, you know, ny testinony, | think it
tal ks about how they went back and forth and then

ultimately decided on the projects they decided on
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for Rush Island 1 and 2.

Q Well, then the Court dism ssed a
coupl e of counts saying they were tine barred?

A |"'mnot -- they may have done that.

Q No further questions at this tine,
t hank you.

EXAM NATI ON CONDUCTED

BY: JUDGE CLARK

Q M. Birk, | can't renenber right off,
did your testinony include infornmation concerning
whet her or not Ameren's deci sions harmed custoners,
was that a you issue?

A That was not a ne issue.

Q Whose | ssue was that, was that
Whi tworth' s?

A Do you -- | think it's Matt M chel s,
Is it not?

MR LONG That's Matt M chels, your
Honor .

THE W TNESS:. Yes.

JUDCGE CLARK: Thank you very nmuch. Any
re-direct?

MR LONG Just briefly, your Honor.

EXAM NATI ON CONDUCTED

BY: MR LONG
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Q M. Birk, you were asked about the

district court decision. To your know edge, did the
district court ever find that Anmeren M ssouri's
understanding of the law at the tinme that it nade its
permtting decisions was an unreasonabl e
under st andi ng?

A. No, they never found it was
unr easonabl e.

Q Did the district court ever find that
Ameren M ssouri was unreasonable in having the sane
interpretation of the Mssouri state inplenentation
plan that the M ssouri Departnent of Natural
Resources hel d?

A No, they never found that was
unr easonabl e.

Q No further questions.

JUDGE CLARK: M. Birk, you may step down.
Ameren, you can call your next w tness.

MR LONG W're calling M. Steven
Whi t wor t h.

JUDGE CLARK: M. Wihitworth, if you'll

come down to the stand and rai se your right hand and

be sworn.
* * * * *
STEVEN C. VWH TWORTH,
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The wi tness, having been first duly sworn

upon his oath, testified as foll ows:
* * * * *

JUDGE CLARK: Pl ease be seated. Aneren,
go ahead.

MR. LONG Your Honor, if | may have one
nonment. We have another correction, | just need to
pull it out of my box.

JUDCGE CLARK: Pl ease, go ahead.

MR LONG It's going to be Exhibit 22.

(WHEREI' N, Exhibit 22 was marked for
i dentification.)

JUDCGE CLARK: And you said this was a
correction?

MR. LONG Yes, your Honor. This will be
a correction to M. Whitworth's Schedul e SCW D20.
The original, which was filed, we've noticed did not
have all the pages. This SCW it -- this version
which we'll call Exhibit 22, does have all of the
pages to the docunent.

JUDCGE CLARK: Ckay. Thank you. Go ahead.

EXAM NATI ON CONDUCTED

BY: MR LONG

Q Pl ease state your nane.

A St even VWi twort h.
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Q And are you the sane Steven Whitworth
who caused to be prepared for filing in this docket
direct and surrebuttal testinony marked for

identification as Exhibits 8 and 9?

A | am
Q And do you have any corrections?
A | have the one correction with this

Exhi bit D20 that you nenti oned.

Q And Exhibit 22, which you have before
you, is that the full and conpl ete version of your
Schedul e SCQW D207?

A Yes, it is.

Q Now, with those corrections, if I
posed the sane questions to you today wll your
answers be the sane as which you've provided in
Exhi bits 8 and 9?

A Yes, it will.

Q And are those answers true and
correct to the best of your know edge and belief?

A They are.

MR. LONG Your Honor, at this point we
woul d tender the witness for cross.

JUDGE CLARK: Thank you. Sorry. Bear
with me just a nonent. Any cross-exam nation from

Comm ssion Staff?
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M5. MERS. Briefly.
EXAM NATI ON CONDUCTED
BY: Ms. MERS

correct in saying the date at the bottomis

5-31-20117?
A It is.

were in 2007 and 20107

A Yes.

have started at |east in 20067

A O earlier, yes.

this guide that we've referred to those points in

time when the decisions were being nade?

no.

Q Okay. Thank you.

Cr oss-exam nati on?

further questions but | apologize.

M5. MERS: Sorry. | thought | said no

JUDGE CLARK: Ckay. |I'msorry, | didn

Page 340

Q So turning to your Exhibit 22, am|

Q And is it correct that the outages in

whi ch the Rush Island projects were installed, they

Q And presumabl e deci si on maki ng woul d

Q |s there a -- do you have any copy of

A. That was not a part of ny testinony,

JUDCGE CLARK: Does Staff have any further

t
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hear that. O fice of the Public Counsel.

MR WLLIAMS: Thank you.

EXAM NATI ON CONDUCTED

BY: MR WLLI AVS

Q Good afternoon M. Wiitworth.

A. Good afternoon.

Q Are any of the schedul es that you
have to your testinony docunents that were not also
put into evidence before the Judge Sippel in the
federal action?

A | am not sure if those docunents that
were in ny testinony were part of the case.

Q You didn't testify in that case?

A | did.

Q Did Aneren M ssouri consi der
inquiring of the EPA as to whether its understanding
of the Mssouri state inplenentation plan was correct
back in the 2005 to 2010 ti nmefrane?

A No. As was stated in ny testinony,
M ssouri is the permtting authority, the M ssouri
Depart ment of Natural Resources.

Q | understand that. But ny question
I's whether Ameren M ssouri even considered asking the
EPA about its understanding of the M ssouri SIP?

A The M ssouri SIP was approved by EPA.
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And M ssouri DNR adm ni stered that in accordance wth
the approval that they gained fromUS EPA.

Q So you didn't to make any ot her
I ndependent inquiry and you didn't consider doing so?

A. Wel |, when we went through our
process of evaluating projects we had a host of
information available to us. Primary was the
M ssouri SIP, potential to em ssions. W also | ooked
at actual em ssions and we al so | ooked at routi ne.
The projects were classified under the Mssouri SIP
as routine maintenance. Also with our know edge of
other units that we had in our Illinois fleet as well
as in the Mssouri fleet we knew that these types of
projects did not -- were not the type of projects
that woul d increase actual em ssions as well as they
weren't the type of projects that increased potenti al
toemt. So in the process as we go through we al so
had information fromthe industry, fromthe | awers
that we had interpreting it through our UR group as
well. So no, we did not see the need or by process
t he process was not to go over the head, if you wll,
of the Mssouri DNR who was our permtting authority.

Q Well, wouldn't it have forecl osed the
EPA from pursuing enforcenent actions agai nst Aneren

M ssouri for the nodifications of Rush Island in 2007
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and 2010 had it gotten an opinion fromthe EPA that

permtting was not required -- NSR permtting was not
required?

A | can't project the answer to that
hypot heti cal .

Q No further questions. Thank you

JUDCGE CLARK: Thank you. Any Comm ssion
guestions?

MR. HOLSMAN:  No.

JUDGE CLARK: | hear none. 1've got a few
guestions for you, M. Witworth.

EXAM NATI ON CONDUCTED

By: JUDGE CLARK

Q Now, in Lansford's direct testinony
he stated that Areren is contractually required to
operate through Septenber 1st, 2024; is that correct?

A |"'mreally not sure of that date.

Q | s the Septenber 1st, 2024 operation
date based on the terns of the SSR agreenent with

M SO or do you know?

A | do not know, Judge.

Q Are you aware of anything that woul d
cause the Rush Island's operation to extend -- do you
know what conditions would -- under what conditions

wi Il the operation of Rush |Island be extended through
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Cct ober 15th, 20247

A Judge, I'mreally not involved in
that part of the decision and cannot answer your
guesti on.

Q Al right. Fair enough. W've tried
three, 1've gotten three strikes so |'mgoing to nove
off of that line of questioning. Now, at the tine |
remenber reading in Holnstead's testinony that the --
that the EPA was | osing a variety of enforcenent
actions. Are you aware of that part of his
testi nony?

A Yes, | am

Q Did that factor into Aneren's
deci si on maki ng process?

A. There was a host of information at
that tinme when we were | ooking at these projects.

The regul ati ons were very dynam c, EPA s enforcenent
action that began in 1999 was very dynamc. So we've
took, as part of our evaluation, a host of

i nformati on that was provided to us from several
sources, frominside our utility groups within

M ssouri and talking to other utilities, talking with
DNR, talking with EPA, and also getting information
fromUility Alr Regulatory G oup which were a | aw

firmand a group that was supporting the industry and
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hel pi ng us navigate across the board of all these

nunmer ous cases and dynam cs associ ated with New
Source Review. So | can tell you that there was a
body of work that we were | ooking at with close
attention. W did not, in environnental, analyze the
court cases, we relied on the attorneys, both
I n-house and with UR and ot her sources, to provide us
with information about those cases as they provided
as they went through their course. However we were
al so | ooking at what our requirenents were in the
state of Mssouri as well as |ooking at what the
other utilities were doing both in Mssouri and then
across the country with regard to | ooking at these
routine mai ntenance projects that were being
conducted to maintain availability and the
reliability of the Ameren M ssouri generating fleet.

Q | remenber sonewhere in your
testinony readi ng sonet hing about sonme of these
smal | er replacenents were being targeted and that ESD
was aware of it. Do you renenber that portion of
your testinony?

A If -- | don't have any testinony in
front of ne. But what | said and what | think is in
the testinony, | knowis in the testinony, is that

there was a list of projects provided by URto all
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t he nenber conpanies that |isted a host of projects

that were very simlar in nature to projects that we
had been conpleting at Ameren both on the Illinois
fleet and the Mssouri fleet as well as the other
utilities in Mssouri. The list included projects
that were conducted at the Rush Island units and al so
i ncl uded ot her projects. So there was a general

awar eness across the industry about what projects
were being | ooked at by EPA and that was part of the
consi derati ons nmaking sure that we were aware of
those projects and paying attention to them and
maki ng sure that they were fully eval uat ed.

Q Al'so in your testinony | renenber
reading that -- that the -- and |'m goi ng use quotes
here. The obvi ous engi neeri ng concl usi on was t hat
there would be no increase in emssions. Do you
remenber that?

A. | don't have the testinony in front
of me, Judge, but...

Q That was one of the reasons given for
not doing an em ssions calculation, that it was
obvi ous fromthe engineering and the engi neers that
it didn't need to be done. So | guess ny question is
what happened?

A When you' re tal ki ng about em ssi ons
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cal culation, can you clarify what you're directly

referring to?

Q It was -- |'ve heard two reasons that
em ssions cal cul ati ons were done, not done. One
reason that |'ve cone across in the case is that they

wer e not done because they were not required in

M ssouri ?

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER: So we only have
t hr ee.

JUDGE CLARK: Sonebody -- if sonebody
could nute. | am picking up sonebody el se's WDbEKX.
Thank you.

BY: JUDGE CLARK

Q The ot her reason that was given and
was nentioned in your testinony was that there was no
need to do em ssions cal cul ati ons because the
engi neers said from an engi neering standpoint it
didn't need to be done, the em ssions weren't going
to be exceeded from an engi neering angle so why --
why do an em ssions cal cul ati on?

A If I can, | would like to give a
little nore context. But your question -- |
apol ogize but it's alittle bit out of context. So
our project -- our process was to |look at potenti al

em ssions so the unit operating at maxi num
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capability, 87 and 60 hours a year, |ooking at those

maxi mum em ssions that were required to be | ooked at
by the Mssouri SIP. W also | ooked at actual
em ssions. W performed qualitative type anal ysis.
We had experience on our Illinois units because the
IIlinois law was a different inplenentation.
I1linois had a del egated programso the M ssouri --
or the federal regulations were inplenented directly.
And so we had know edge of simlar projects where we
had done those types of projects and | ooked at the
application of the actual em ssions test that was not
yet inplenmented in the Mssouri SIP -- state
i npl emrentation plan. As well as the fact that |
mentioned that these projects were routine in nature
and net the qualifications of routine. |In fact,
there was an exenption in the Mssouri state
I npl enentation plan for those types of projects as
wel | .

So we did performa -- both a potential to
emt evaluation, we perforned using engineering
j udgnment both fromthe engineering -- project
engi neering and design folks as well as from our
know edge of working day-to-day wth all of the
em ssions data and know ng the operating

characteristics of these units from an environnent al
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air em ssion perspective. And then also with our

experience | ooking at -- because the rules in
I1linois were different but we had that know edge
base, we | ooked at actual em ssions as well and knew
that those types of projects were not the types of
projects that would cause an increase in both actual
em ssions or potential em ssions.

Q Thank you. Hold on just a nonent.
Ckay. | have no further questions.

JUDGE CLARK: Any re-direct from-- |I'm
sorry. Any re-cross fromthe Conmm ssion Staff?

M5. MERS. Briefly.

EXAM NATI ON CONDUCTED

BY: MS. MERS

Q Do you recall having a conversation
with the Judge about the types of things that
utilities were looking at to informtheir
interpretation of the Mssouri SIP and how permtting
woul d wor k?

A Vell, they -- we did just have this
di scussion and it's in the record, yes.

Q Ckay. And do you recall using the
word dynam c?

A. | think | used the word dynamc in

terns of the evolving regulatory, both the M ssouri
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-- not the Mssouri, the federal rules for changing

as well as EPA's interpretation and inplenentation of
revised regulation, in that context | nentioned
dynam c.

Q Ckay. And your statenent just now,
that inplies that perhaps those | aws and regul ations
and the interpretations of themwere not as constant
and known as inplied then, correct?

A. No, that's not correct.

Q So they were dynam ¢ and changi ng but
static and known to be equally applied by all the
utilities?

A You're m scharacterizing what | said.
The | andscape was dynamc in that there was a | ot of
activity wth EPA and the enforcenent initiative.

The process for changing rules in a state

I npl enentation plan stay is for the state to either
be asked by EPA or has an obligation to revise their
regul ations and a process for doing that and then
inplementing it into the program |It's then approved
by EPA.

So as those things were changi ng EPA was
proposi ng several different rulings. W were
tracking federal regulations as well. And so things

m ght be proposed and we woul d be review ng them
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eval uating them maybe submtting comments on them

And in that sense the actual M ssouri regulation did
not change but what ny intent to say was, or ny
nmeani ng was that the | andscape was very dynam c
because of the nunber of activities and other actions
that were taken fromit both in a litigation and then
on EPA changi ng or proposing to change regul ati ons.

Q So it sounds like the EPA, it's not
surprising -- wouldn't be surprising to anybody in
the industry that they may change how they're | ooking
at sonet hing, you know, have a different
interpretation, at a rule or regulation?

A Vell, | think it's a consistent
process. You know, for exanple, as the rules were
evolving in 2003 EPA program staff had been proposing
different regulations to help clarify sone of the
regul ations as well as change their position on the
enforcenent initiative and actually suspended t hat
for a period of tinme. So as you |ook at that the
during the tine that we were eval uating these
proj ects EPA did have a view of definitions of what
sone of these things may have neant.

However the outstanding rules that were in
pl ace at the tinme that we had to abi de by, even

t hough we were tracking things on a federal
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| andscape, we had to abide by the Mssouri state
I npl enentation plan that again was approved by US
EPA.

Q And woul d they have been eval uati ng
that in 2003?

A Excuse ne, who -- would who be
eval uati ng what ?

Q Anmer en.

A | still don't quite understand the

context of your question.

Q Wul d Aneren have been still
evaluating in 2003 the changi ng or potential changi ng
| andscape and dynam cs?

A Vell, the regulations -- it was our
job in Environnental Services to keep track of
regul ati ons and be abreast of what the requirenents
were and then hel p advise the Conpany on what things
needed to be done to nmmintain conpliance.

Q You -- do you recall, in a
conversation you had with the Bench, nentioning a
list of projects that included Rush Island that it
was i nplied that the EPA was nmaybe keeping a cl oser

eye on or nonitoring closer?

A. | mentioned a list that's a schedul e
to ny direct testinony. | do not have that in front
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of ne.

Q So if Ameren knew that it was on this
list and that there was a little bit closer scrutiny
would it not then be prudent to reach out to MDNR and
EPA?

A. Well, | did not say that the Rush
| sl and projects were on that list. | said that
projects that were simlar in nature to the Rush
| sl and projects were on the list as | recall. And we
had constant contact with MDNR on these issues as we
moved forward. |t was standard practice in the
i ndustry for both MDNR did a great job with outreach
and the industry took advantage of that have and nade
sure that we were on the sane page.

Q But did you seek a permt
applicability determ nation from MVDNR?

A No. And there was no need to do so
In this case.

Q You al so had nentioned in your
conversation with the Judge that Aneren M ssouri did
its own industry cal cul ations, do you recall that?

A. Yes.

Q Were those provided to the district
court?

A | really can't recall what
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you.
JUDGE CLARK: Public Counsel ?
MR WLLIAVMS: Thank you.
JUDGE CLARK: Public Counsel ?
MR WLLIAMS: Thank you.
EXAM NATI ON CONDUCTED
BY: MR WLLIAMS

the routine mai ntenance repair and repl acenent

recall that?

A Yes, they did.

state inplenentation plan as of the 2005 to 2010

timefrane, was he not?

comment on his decision at the tinme but | do know

deci sion was issued as witten and that's the

informati on was provided directly at this point in

Q Ckay. No further questions. Thank

Q You testified that the projects net

excepti on whenever -- back in 2007 and 2010, do you

Q Judge Sippel found they did not, did

he not ?

A. In his opinion, issued several years
later, | think that was his opinion.

Q But he was construing the M ssouri

A Well, | can't | guess understand or

Page 354

hi s

888-893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required Nevada Registration #116F.
www.lexitaslegal.com California Firm Registration #179

LEXITAS



© 00 N oo o b~ w N Pk

N N NN NN R R R R R R R R R
g A W N P O © W N O O M W N B O

Evidentiary Hearing April 15, 2024

. . . . . Page 355
decision that he made in his opinion in, what, 2017.

Q Wul dn't your answer be nore accurate
If you' d said that it conported with -- that based on
Ameren M ssouri's -- and you can add in M ssouri DNR
and other utilities if you like. But the projects in
2007 and 2010 in your view were routine maintenance
repair and repl acenent ?

A As | nmentioned, our eval uation was
based on initially -- we had a three pronged approach
initially. W |ooked at the scope of the project,
| ooked at potential em ssions, we also | ooked at
actual em ssions. As well as the projects when you
| ook at them and | ook at the scope of the projects
and the definitions in the Mssouri SIP as well as in
the industry and EPA's interpretation at the tine
were considered to be routine maintenance and repair
type projects.

Q Well, what I'mtrying to get at is
whet her you're saying that was the |law at the tine or
that was Ameren M ssouri's understandi ng of the |aw
at the tinme in terns of the routine nmaintenance,
repair, and replacenent exenption?

A It was Anmeren M ssouri's
interpretation as well as the utility industry's

opinion as well as advice that we had gotten from
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counsel at that tine.

Q And when you say the utility
I ndustry's opinion, are you speaking beyond the
bounds of the state of M ssouri?

A Yes. Both in Mssouri, with Mssouri
DNR as you will, as well as frominformation that we

gl eaned fromthe utility and regul atory group.

Q No further questions. Thank you.

JUDGE CLARK: Any re-direct from Aneren
M ssouri ?

MR. LONG Yes, your Honor. Thank you.

EXAM NATI ON CONDUCTED

BY: MR LONG

Q Just to start wth that |ast issue,
M. Whitworth, that you discussed with M. WIIlians
about the routine nmaintenance, repair, and
repl acenent test that was applied by Judge Sippel in
his 2017 decision. Do you know whet her he was
| ooking at that fromthe perspective of whether
sonething was routine at the unit or routine in the
I ndustry or sone ot her perspective?

A M. Long, | can't answer that as |
sit here today.

Q Ckay. Fair enough. Wy did you at

Anreren M ssouri believe that these projects at Rush

888-893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required Nevada Registration #116F. LEXITAS
www.lexitaslegal.com California Firm Registration #179




© 00 N oo o b~ w N Pk

N N NN NN R R R R R R R R R R
o A W N P O © 0O N O OO A W N B O

Evidentiary Hearing April 15, 2024

. Page 357
| sl and were routine?

A There's three reasons why they were
considered to be routine. There was the exenption in
M ssouri state construction permtting rule that
I ncluded itens |ike routine maintenance and boil er
tubes explicitly. There was the routine nature of
the projects that had been conducted in the Anmeren
fleet over the years with replacenents of |ike kind
repl acenents, functionally equival ent repl acenents of
tubes for exanple reheater, econom zers, as well as
there was consistency wth routine in the industry as
ot her conpani es were being both advised by, you know,
their original equipnent manufacturers, the boiler
provider, as well as, in the industry, these types of
projects were routine in nature.

Q There was a di scussion that you had
you wth counsel for the Staff about sone |ist that
you received through the Utility Air Regulatory
group, do you recall that discussion a few m nutes
ago?

A. Yes.

Q And you didn't have that list in
front of you at the tine you had that discussion with
the counsel for Staff?

A That's correct.
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MR. LONG  Your Honor, can | approach and

show an exhibit, Schedule SCWD6 to M. Witworth?

JUDGE CLARK: Yes, you nay.

THE W TNESS: Thank you.

JUDGE CLARK: And did you say this was
Schedul e SCW D6?

MR. LONG Yes, your Honor, | did. And I
will also note for the record it's one that has been
mar ked confidential but | don't believe, for purpose
of ny question, that we need to nove this in-canera.

BY: MR LONG

Q M. Whitworth, do you have in front
of you schedule SCWD6 to your direct testinony in
this case?

A Yes.

Q Was that the list that you were
referring to in the discussion you had with the
counsel for Staff?

A It is.

Q Okay. Does it have a table of
contents sonewhere in the first few pages.

A Yes.

Q And is there any reference to Aneren
M ssouri at all in any of the table of contents?

A No, there is not.
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Q | s there any reference, to your

know edge, to Aneren M ssouri or any of its plants
anywhere in that Schedule D67

A Not that | am aware.

Q |'"d like to go back to a topic that
you had di scussion on with Judge C ark about em ssion
calculations. | think his question was about
sonet hing you had witten in your testinony about the
obvi ous engi neering concl usion was that there was no
increase in emssions. And you had a discussion then
wi th Judge G ark about that. | think his question
was about whether em ssions cal cul ati ons were
required or a part of that analysis. Is it your
under st andi ng, when you were answering his questions,
whet her you were tal ki ng about potential em ssions
under the SIP or an actual em ssions cal cul ati on?

A No, | didn't understand the context.

Q So let's just break this down and
make sure that it's clear for the record. $So in
determ ni ng whet her potential em ssions increase
woul d occur for a project at an existing coal fired
unit, what were the things that you would | ook at at
the tinme that you were maki ng these decisions?

A. Well, there were several paraneters

and | did try to explain our process for the Judge.
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However | ooking at potential em ssions, nmaxinmum

capacity of operation at a steamelectric generating
unit, so we're |looking at primary design capability
of the unit, its rated heat input, its rated steam
flow, those type of things are fundanental and, you
know, the unit is certified and insured at those

|l evels. So step one was really | ooking at was

anyt hing going to change that design rate of the
generating unit which would inpact em ssions. For
exanple, if the heat input capacity was increased
em ssion -- potential em ssions could increase. So
| ooki ng at those projects, these types of projects
did not cause that type of a change. The unit

mai ntai ned its current design, maxi mum design
operating capabilities.

Q So what sort of change, in your
experience, to a coal fired unit on the Anmeren system
woul d cause an increase in the potential em ssions?

A | have an exanple and it was incl uded
in ny testinony. But in Illinois another steam
generating unit, the Duck Creek facility, a project
was scoped to increase the maxi num heat i nput
capacity of a boiler, increase the coal burning
capability, and increase the maxi num heat i nput

capability to take advantage of steam turbine when it
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was constructed had a higher capacity than the boiler

could provide steam So for Environnental Services,
iIf there was going to be that change in in design of
the actual unit changing its design capabilities that
was al nost an automatic for us. So that first step
the potential em ssions could increase. And as |
mentioned, rules in Illinois were different but the
anal ogy was | ooki ng at the maxi num desi gn capability
of the permtted steam generating unit change was
going to increase. So then the process began to

eval uate the em ssions, | ook at the requirenents, and
apply for a PSD permt in that case to cover that
wor k that was bei ng perforned.

Q So you're tal king about the increase
in the maxi mum capability of the boiler --

A. Yes.

Q -- or sone other conponent?

A. No. The boiler. The permtted coal
burning emtting unit, vyes.

Q kay. So is there any way to change
that potential coal burning capability of the boiler
I f you don't increase the fuel feed rate?

A Not that |'m aware of.

Q Was there anything like that at issue

in the Rush Island projects that PSD eval uated?
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A No. That was step one in all of

t hese eval uati ons was | ooking at where the primary
design, rated design paraneter is going to be changed
as a result of the project that was bei ng proposed.
And in this case they were not being changed.

Q And where did you get that
I nformati on?

A We got that information --

Envi ronnental Services got that information from
engi neering, fromthe project engineering staff.

Q Was there a need to do any kind of
calculation to verify what you were | earning about
the paraneters of the project and whether it woul d
I ncrease potential em ssions?

A No. These types of -- you know, a
boiler is an association of a |ot of different
equi pnrent that all works together, if you wll. So
| ooki ng at one piece, you know, a tube that allows
steamto go through it would not have the type of
change that would increase the anobunt of em ssions or
change the design capability of the unit.

Q So | would like to go back to where
we started, which is Exhibit 22. You were asked sone
guestions about this docunent by the attorney from

Staff. And | think her question was based upon the
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date of this docunent which is 2011. Do you see
t hat ?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. | think her question was

whet her this docunment was in existence at the tine
that the permtting decisions were nade by the
Environnent al Services departnent on the Rush |sl and
projects, do you renenber that colloquy?

A. Yes, | do.

Q kay. And in terns of how the state
was applying its SIP and what it considered
triggering projects for construction permtting
review, did this Exhibit 22 change fromwhat it had
been at the tinme that you were eval uating the project
at Rush I sl and?

A. No.

Q It starts on Exhibit 22 with an
inquiry into whether the potential em ssions
I ncrease, do you see that?

A. Yes.

Q Was that the way that the SIP was

interpreted and applied at the tine?

A. Yes.
By you?
A By ne as well as M ssouri DNR and the
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other utilities in the state.

Q Thank you. No further questions.

MR. LONG  Your Honor, | have been
corrected by ny co-counsel. M. Wiitworth is not
com ng back again and |I've neglected to nove
Exhibits 8, 9, and 22 into the record and so | woul d
make that notion at this tine.

JUDGE CLARK: Any objection -- any
obj ections to admtting Exhibit 8C, 8P, 9C, and 9P
and Exhibit 22 onto the hearing record? Any
obj ecti on?

MR. WLLIAMS: No objection.

JUDGE CLARK: kay. Exhibits 8, 9, and 22
will be admtted onto the hearing record. And M.
Whi tworth, you may step down. It is now 6:19. It
seens |like a good tine to break for the evening at
this point.

MR. LONG Thank you, Judge.

MR. LOAERY: Thank you.

JUDCE CLARKE: So with that, | wll
adjourn until tonorrow at nine a.m

(Heari ng was concluded at 6:20 p.m)
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CERTI FI CATE OF REPORTER

STATE OF M SSCOURI )
) ss.
CITY OF KANSAS CI TY )

I, JILL A BLESKEY, a Registered
Prof essi onal Reporter, Certified Shorthand Reporter
(IL), and Certified Court Reporter (MJ, do hereby
certify that the testinony was taken by ne to the
best of ny ability and thereafter reduced to
typewiting under ny direction; that | am neither
counsel for, related to, nor enployed by any of the
parties to the action in which this hearing was
taken, and further that | amnot a relative or
enpl oyee of any attorney or counsel enployed by the
parties thereto, nor financially or otherw se

interested in the outcone of this action.

QM (. %ZQZ, CSK kok

J|II A.. Bl eskey, RP CSR, CCR
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